
Agenda for a meeting of the Children's Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on 
Tuesday, 11 April 2017 at 4.30 pm in Committee Room 1 
- City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT INDEPENDENT

D Smith
M Pollard

Engel
Mullaney
Peart
Shaheen
Tait

Ward Sajawal

Alternates:
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT INDEPENDENT

Riaz
Rickard

Akhtar
Bacon
Abid Hussain
Thirkill

J Sunderland

VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS:
Sidiq Ali Parent Governor Representative
Claire Parr Church Representative (RC)
Joyce Simpson Church Representative (CE)
Gull Hussain Parent Governor Representative

NON VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS
Kerr Kennedy Voluntary Sector Representative
Stephen Pickles Teachers Primary Schools Representative
Tom Bright Teachers Secondary School Representative
Irene Docherty Teachers Special School Representative
Tina Wildy Health Representative

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by contacting the 

Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if Councillors 

vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of the meeting and 
behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending 
the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda 
Contact who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those 
present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be 
filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer named at 
the foot of that agenda item.

From: To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Fatima Butt / Jill Bell
Phone: 01274 432227/434580
E-Mail: fatima.butt@bradford.gov.uk / jill.bell@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

3.  MINUTES

Recommended –

That the minutes of the meeting held on 31 January and 14 
February  2017 be signed as a correct record (previously 
circulated).

(Fatima Butt – 01274 432227)



4.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Fatima Butt - 01274 432227)

5.  REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Committee is asked to note any referrals that have been made to 
this Committee up to and including the date of publication of this agenda.

B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES

6.  THE YOUTH OFFER IN THE DISTRICT

Members are reminded that the Assistant Director for Neighbourhood 
and Customer Services presented a report to the meeting of this 
Committee on 12th April 2016. This report outlined plans for 
establishing a new Youth Offer for the Bradford District in response to 
the recommendations made in the Youth Offer Review Report 
produced in November 2014. 

The Strategic Director, Children’s Services will submit Document 
“AO” which reports on the progress made in relation to the 
establishment of the new Youth Offer in the District.

Recommended-

(1) That the Work undertaken by the Youth Offer Working Group 
and the districts Youth Sector be welcomed. 

(2) That the Committee considers and comments on the shared 
direction of travel and of the continued commitment from the 
Youth Sector to work together, and to do things differently. 



(3) That the work already undertaken around Youth Voice be 
noted and the Committee commits to formalising Youth 
Voice arrangements in respect of Overview and Scrutiny 
work going forward.

(4) That the achievements of the Youth Offer Working Group as 
outlined in the Action Plan be noted and a further update be 
submitted to the Committee in 12 months time. 

(Heather Wilson – 01274 431781)

7.  SCHOOL CAPITAL FUNDING AND SCHOOL EXPANSION 
PROGRAMME 2017-2018

The Council has a programme of school expansions which it is 
delivering to ensure that all Children have a school place available. To 
date many of the expansion projects have been at primary school level 
but secondary Schools are now been expanded as the increased pupil 
numbers move through from primary to secondary schools.

The Strategic Director, Children’s Services will submit Document 
“AP” which details the school expansion projects the Authority is 
currently undertaking.

Recommended-

That the report be noted.

(Judith Kirk – 01274 431078)

8.  SCHOOLS FORUM UPDATE

The Committee has asked for regular updates to be provided on the 
work of the Schools Forum. 

The last update was presented to the Committee on 24 January 2017. 

The Strategic Director, Children’s Services will submit Document 
“AQ” which reports that the Schools Forum has met once on 15 March 
2017. The decisions list from the 15 March meeting is attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report. The 2nd spring term Schools Forum meeting 
is typically low key in terms of agenda items, falling between the 
Dedicated Schools Grant setting process and the presentation of more 
detailed information about the position of school balances, which is 
available following the closure of accounts in May. As a result, 
Document “AQ” is a short update report.



Recommended-

That the information provided in Document “AQ” be noted.

(Andrew Redding – 01274 432678)

9.  RESOLUTION TRACKING 2016-17

The Chair of the Committee will submit Document “AR” which details 
the progress made against the resolutions passed by the Committee 
during the 2016-17 municipal year. 

Recommended-

That the Committee comments on areas where resolutions do not 
appear to have been acted upon or feel insufficient progress has 
been made.

(Licia Woodhead – 01274 432119)

___________________________

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services to the 
meeting of Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
to be held on 11

th
 April 2017  

 
 

          AO 
Subject:   
 
The Youth Offer in the District  
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report informs the Committee of the progress made in relation to the establishment of 
the new Youth Offer in the District.   
 
 
 
 
 

Jenny Cryer  
Assistant Director – Performance, 
Commissioning and Partnerships  

Portfolio:   
Education, Employment and Skills  
 
 

Report Contact: Heather Wilson  
Commissioner (Youth Provisions) 
Phone: (01274 431781) 
E-mail:heather.wilson@bradford.gov.uk  

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
Children’s Services  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6/

mailto:heather.wilson@bradford.gov.uk


 

2 

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report informs the Committee of the progress made in relation to the 

establishment of the new Youth Offer in the District.   
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Assistant Director for Neighbourhood and Customer Services presented a 

report to the meeting of the Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 12th 
April 2016. This report outlined plans for establishing a new Youth Offer for the 
Bradford District in response to the recommendations made in the Youth Offer 
Review Report produced in November 2014.  

 
2.2 The new Youth Offer for the district comprises of 5 key elements:  

- Information and advice  
- Voice and influence 
- Open access 
- Targeted provision  
- Active citizens and young people’s contribution towards community life.   
 

2.3 Options for change and recommendations were presented to the Committee which 
resolved:  
“That a joint meeting be held with the Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
and the Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider 
young people’s mental health issues and that young people be invited to attend 
that meeting” 

“That a progress report on the new Youth Offer be submitted to the Committee in 12  
months time”  

“That the service encourages young people’s voices to continue to be heard in  
influencing the provision of Youth Services”  

 
2.4      Youth Offer Working Group took responsibility to oversee the implementation of the  
   proposals and recommendations from the 2016 Report. There have been closer  

working relationships developed across the Youth Sector with representation from  
the Voluntary Sector, the Council, the Police, Community and Faith sectors, working 
together to develop and lead the Youth Offer Action Plan. This working group feeds 
into the core strategic group of the Young Lives Bradford Network and the Safer 
and Stronger Communities – Active Communities Group.  

 
2.5    The Youth Offer Action Plan was devised and supports the Council’s budget  

considerations in relation to Youth Work and its future in the district. There was 
recognition of the need to do things differently and to increase sharing resources 
and expertise from across the sector. The Youth Offer Action Plan and 
achievements are detailed in Appendix A.   

 
2.6 The Council’s Youth Service is a key player in the development and delivery of the 

Youth Offer in the district. Recent savings has driven and heightened the need to 
do things differently and to work closer with a wider range of youth sector providers. 
The development of a “Key Individuals Network” for organisations and adults who 

Page 2



 

3 

work in the voluntary, community and faith side of the Youth Sector in the District 
has a sign up of 118 organisations. Added to the network supported by Young Lives 
Bradford there is significantly more routes and opportunities to share and promote 
opportunities for young people, training for staff and volunteers and to share details 
of funding pots that may support youth work delivery.  

 
Information and advice  
 

i) Information service have operated for many years from 2 key locations – 
the Information Shop for Young People, sited within the Culture Fusion 
premises and the Keighley Connexions Centre sited in the Keighley Town 
Hall. What is evident is that young people are seeking less Information, 
Advice and Guidance (IAG) from these 2 sites.  

 
ii) Information Services from the 2 existing locations is no longer viable in 

the face of reduced resources, but the commitment to provide good 
quality and trusted IAG is still considered to be essential for the districts 
young people. The Youth Service has now developed an alternative 
model of support for young people in relation to IAG in the district. This 
will see the relocation of information workers to the Customer Services 
Team based in Britannia House, offering opportunity to expand existing 
offer by sharing knowledge with the existing customer services team. This 
provision will operate alongside a wider offer from a broader range of 
community settings (both voluntary and statutory) which will ensure 
increased locality based support for young people to seek IAG.  

 
iii) Working with the Safeguarding Children’s Board and the Virtual College 

we have been able to strengthen the offer around IAG and create a web 
based app which is intended to be rolled out across the district in early 
April 2017. Young people have worked with us to shape the app and 
engagement will continue throughout the roll out. Recognising that 
national use of the smart phone stands at 72%, in Bradford this is even 
higher with 76% of the population engaged in smart phone use. In terms 
of technology and its use Bradford again outshines the national picture 
with 81% liking or loving technology compare to 78% nationally Mosaic 

Research 2016.  
 

iv) We have undertaken work with the Children’s Commissioner for England 
to explore her desire to develop an App based on IAG for more 
vulnerable young people, particularly those at risk from CSE. This is to be 
called “Is It OK?”, and whilst this has some distance to travel before it will 
be live, Bradford’s young people have contributed significantly in helping 
the Commissioners Office to understand how young people use the 
different platforms within social media and what they consider to be 
trusted sources of information. Bradford has agreed to be a pilot area, 
(alongside a London Borough) for the App which is expected to be 
several more months in its development.  

 
 

Page 3



 

4 

 
Voice and influence 
 

v) The Youth Voice Framework – We have worked with young people to 
develop a Youth Voice Framework as part of the Children and Young 
People’s Priority 6. This can be seen in Appendix B.  

 
vi) Using the Youth Voice Framework we have run 15 district wide cross 

sector Youth Voice events which have influenced key plans around 
services for young people. This has included identification of the Top 10 
priorities for young people in relation to the development of the District 
Plan, the priorities for the Children, Young People and Families Plan and 
development of a Youth App for the district. Attendance by young people 
to the Public Forum for Education saw young people raising their 
concerns around the future of Education in the District. Further meetings 
with lead members for Education enabled young people to raise and 
discuss their concerns directly and start to better understand the role they 
can play in the contributing towards the districts Education Covenant. 

 
vii) West Yorkshire Police has used the district Youth Voice to undertake 

consultation around an awareness raising poster campaign that is to be 
rolled out into key transportation hubs across West Yorkshire. This 
campaign is aimed to support more vulnerable young people in the 
indentifying signs of abuse and CSE, and to signpost towards help and 
support services.  

 
viii) The voice of transgendered young people - The Youth Service has 

maintained the partnership working with voluntary sector provisions that 
has enabled the continuation of provision for LGBT young people. More 
recently the Youth Service has made significant steps in developing 
provision specifically to meet the needs of Transgender young people. 
This has seen the local authority Youth Service, partner with the national 
organisation Gender Identity, and through sharing of resources we have 
shared knowledge and expertise that has enabled supportive work to be 
established in the district for transgendered young people and in return 
24 staff and volunteers have received introduction training for working 
with young people.    

 
ix) Growing up North – working with young people from across the District 

Bradford has hosted a team from the Children’s Commissioners Office to 
explore the impact on where you live on your aspirations and successes. 
Early in the year we facilitated the visits to more vulnerable young people, 
including those who were living in Care, in supported housing or who 
were homeless. The findings of the Commissioners visit has been 
presented back to young people and the strategic director for Childrens 
Services, and has been key in shaping the District Plan and the Children 
and Young People’s Plan. (appendix C)  This has been followed up with 
further work and the creation of a film which has been used to launch the 
12 month project. The launch at the BBC in Salford in December 2016 

Page 4



 

5 

was the start of the voice and influence by Bradford’s young people on 
the Northern Powerhouse developments. Young people who made the 
film had opportunity to attend the launch and chat to decision makers 
about their aspirations for Bradford and its future.  

 
x) The Takeover Challenge – This was an opportunity for young people to 

“takeover” adult roles for the day, and during that takeover to have their 
voices heard. Professionals agreed to a young person taking on their role 
for the day. Working with a steering group of young people we saw a 
diverse range of opportunities including through health, the Council, 
Housing and voluntary sector providers.  82 young people and 17 schools 
offered “takeover” opportunities that supported young people into 
decision making roles which included local and strategic levels. For 
young people this had been an empowering experience with a team of 
roving reporters working alongside the Takeovers to capture and record 
the day. Following positive feedback from both professionals and young 
people we are just starting to plan “Take 2” the 2017 Takeover Challenge.  

 
xi) Young people’s mental health services - At the 2016 report to 

Overview and Scrutiny young people raised their concerns around 
services to support their mental health. Following this a further Committee 
meeting was established bringing the Health and Childrens Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees together to hear what young people had to say. 
Young People presented a report with recommendations called “Help 
today’s youth to help tomorrows Bradford”. The joint Committee agreed 
that a sub group would be established to receive a response to the young 
people’s paper. This response was heard on 27th March 2017.  

 
xii) The Youth Survey – Across the Youth Sector a survey has been 

undertaken to identify and inform the future direction of Youth Work in the 
District. This survey saw 1,700 young people completing the survey 
which gives some clear directions in terms of the needs and priorities for 
young people. Highlighted from this survey are how young people feel 
people from different backgrounds generally get on with each other, how 
adults respect young people, how safe they feel when it’s late and dark 
and during the daytime and the pride they feel about the area in which 
they live. The Youth Survey results (appendix D) will be examined closely 
by the Youth Offer Working Group and responses to the findings will be 
embraced by the working group in the development of the Youth Offer 
Action Plan. Young people from across all communities have contributed 
to the survey with each area asked to undertake around 200 surveys.  
We had returns of larger numbers from some areas and these results will 
be taken back to constituency areas to work with focus groups of young 
people examine and influence local planning and to present to their local 
Area Committees. 

 
xiii) Interview panels – During recent months we have worked with the 

Department of Children’s Services Senior Management Team to support 
their interviews for key strategic positions including the Safeguarding 

Page 5



 

6 

Children’s Board Manager and the Head of Social Work Service. This has 
seen a unique opportunity for young people from different organisations 
to come together to be key contributors and to influence decision making 
at a high level in being part of a process of appointing lead officers for 
services for children and young people.   

 
Open access 

 
xiv) Youth Work Grants – working with the Youth Offer Working Group and 

Young Lives Bradford we have in the last 12 months undertaken a radical 
overall of the grants allocated to the Voluntary Sector for the delivery of 
youth work. The budget of £311K has been able to be retained but 
needed to be aligned to the priorities of the Youth Offer Review, with an 
emphasis on the work meeting gaps in services and contributing to the 
wider district wide youth offer. The first part of the financial year we 
retained the existing 13 providers, but were able to create 2 stands to the 
funding from Quarter 3. The remaining funding in 2017-18 saw 22 
providers securing awards for the delivery of sessional youth work (week 
in week out type provision) and 3 securing awards to seed fund a piece of 
developmental youth work. A further round to consider further one off 
seed funding for developmental youth work for delivery in 2018-19 has 
seen a further 11 providers securing grants. This is a significant increase 
in providers with the funding supporting 36 VCFS led initiatives. Early 
indications from the first round of sessional work are that 656 young 
people have benefitted from 415 sessions within Quarter 3 of the financial 
year 2017-18. These figures are encouraging in being able to evidence 
contribution towards a wider youth offer and have been something we 
have previously been unable to quantify.     

 
xv) Accreditation and The Duke of Edinburgh’s Award – Youth workers 

have worked with 241 young people to gain Accredited Outcomes in the 
current financial year to date. This includes ASDAN qualifications, the 
Lord Mayors Award and The Duke of Edinburgh’s Award.  

 
xvi) In partnership with the Regional Duke of Edinburgh’s Award Charity we 

have successfully remodelled the provision and accessibility for young 
people enrol on the Award across the Bradford area. This model has 
seen 28 schools directly licensing their Award activity to the Awards 
Operations Team, with 1985 young people enrolled to participate. IN 
addition to this there are 805 young people gaining full awards,  which is 
more than 3 times as many as last year’s 243 and again and puts the 
figures at an all-time high. In addition there are various voluntary 
organisations operating through the Bradford licence, who again this year 
have seen growth. Through direct support from the operations team over 
100 members of teaching staff have received introduction to Duke of 
Edinburgh’s Award and eDofE training, 40 new Award Expedition 
Assessors have been trained and 24 new Expedition Leaders have been 
trained. 
 

Page 6



 

7 

The local authority Youth Services has retained a licence to deliver the 
Award. Currently it runs Award activity in 4 constituency locations, 
supporting 452 individual participants. Since April 2016 the Youth Service 
has supported young people to complete 136 Awards (88 Bronze, 37 
Silver and 11 Gold Awards). The Youth Service provision is heavily reliant 
on a team of youth service volunteers who support the direct delivery of 
the Award and particularly the expedition section. The Youth Service 
retains a store of outdoor education equipment, which is available to any 
young person in the district regardless of where they take part in the 
Award. We have, during the last 10 moths worked closely with a team of 
volunteers in preparation for the transition of the management of these 
stores to a voluntary sector group. This will enable and support young 
people to be able to both continue to access equipment, but also to 
undertake volunteering hours by supporting the running of the stores. 

 
xvii) Youth Service / Ward based provision – The Youth Service continues 

to offer a locality based open access provision as part of the ward offer. 
There are 47,817 young people in the 13-19 cohort and between 
01.04.16 and 20.03.17 there were 7,572 individual young people who  
have attended one of more Youth Service sessions. These provisions are 
detailed in the profiles of provision in appendix E and are led by a ward 
based youth worker. Increasingly we are seeing sessions delivered in 
partnership with other youth providers which is increasing the use of 
resources and removing duplication. The Youth Service continues to 
have a pivotal role in empowering and supporting the development of 
locality based provisions for young people. This includes working with 
and alongside volunteers in a range of settings and supporting training 
and skill building to deliver locality based provisions.  

 
Targeted provision  
 

xviii) Early Help – The changing face of Early Help has see youth work input 
into the 2 pilot Early Help hubs in Keighley and BD3, 4 and 5. The 
learning and successes of these pilots have enabled a district wide roll 
out of the Early Help model in January this year. These 5 hubs will see 
increased joining up and coordinated responses to families and young 
people from across the  youth sector within the hub areas, ensuring 
families and young people have the best possible voluntary engagement 
and interventions early in the life of identified problems.  

 
xix) Targeted Support – The Youth Service continues to identify through its 

needs assessments areas of targeted support. This includes work 
undertaken in school settings through provision of Teenage Information 
Centres / Teenage Advice Centres (TIC TAC’s) where one-to-one support 
can be provided on a broad range of social and emotional issues. 
Commonly youth workers are supporting young people in increasing 
resilience and critical thinking around issues such as bullying, mental 
health and relationships.  

 

Page 7



 

8 

xx) CSE Hub – Youth Workers are working closely with the district wide CSE 
Hub, taking referrals for young people at Tier 1 identified as those who 
undertake or are in peer groups where there are concerns or risk taking 
behaviours. The Youth Service Youth Workers have worked with 64 
young people since this work commenced, providing 1-1 support, and 
using a ‘Signs of Safety’ framework to enabling these young people to 
develop local support networks and feel empowered to make positive 
choices with their lives.    

 

xxi) Youth Work Grants – the realignment of the Youth Work Grants has 
seen a significant increase in the number of Voluntary, Community and 
Faith providers securing grants for youth work. This means we are 
beginning to build clearer evidence of an increased offer to those groups 
identified previously by the Youth Offer Review as being “bordering on 
insufficient services”. This included young people who were affected by 
drug misuse, Young parents, LGBT young people, young people who had 
been homeless, Missing from Home or had runaway and those who were 
from New Migrant Communities or who had mental health problems.  

 
xxii) Fire Fit – Bradford has seen the first cohort of young people through the 

Fire Fit Training. Run by West Yorkshire Fire Service this is a programme 
designed and targeted towards young people who have disengaged with 
physical activity. It uses fire fighter training as a tool for re-engaging 
young people into regular physical activity.  

 
xxiii) Bradford District Police through their Safer Neighbourhoods and 

Partnerships Team are undertaking a range of projects offering targeted 
youth provision. The vast majority are focused on engagement of 
vulnerable young people, with opportunities for young people to gain an 
insight into policing. Through the Police partnership working they offer a 
range of activities designed to divert young people away from crime, 
especially in the school holidays. The E-Safety Team engages and 
educates young people around online safety, with school and community 
engagement opportunities. The Police Spring, Summer and Autumn 
Summer camps recruit staff and volunteers from a wide range of 
services to deliver diversionary activities in school holiday periods. The 
Police Explorers programme offers young people 15-18 a real insight 
into policing, working on evenings and weekends to undertake project 
work. Safer Schools Officers are aligned to schools in the district and 
run bespoke sessions with students. The Police Ridealong Scheme 
offers young people 16-18 years an opportunity to work alongside a 
police officer whilst on duty.   

 
Active citizens and young people’s contribution towards community life.   
 

xxiv) People Can - The district wide “People can” initiative has been warmly 
embraced by young people from across the youth sector with increased 
numbers taking part in locality based activity. The development of a 
“Young People Can” arm to the initiative has empowered more young 

Page 8



 

9 

people to get involved. There are many examples from across the district 
evidenced on the “people can” web pages at 
www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk. This sees the range of active 
citizenship activity undertaken by young people including many examples 
of neighbourliness, volunteering, raising money for good causes and 
taking part in community action.  

 
xxv) National Citizenship Service (NCS) has seen 1039 of Bradford’s young 

people using their free time to take part in this national programme during 
2016, with a further 800 already signed up for this years summer 
program. From the 2016 cohort 53 young people have taken up the 
opportunity to progress to the NCS Graduates programme, and these 
young people will be trained to take an active role in supporting the 
delivery of this coming summers activities.  
The NCS programmes run during school holiday periods recruiting young 
people who are 15/16 years of age from across the district to come 
together in cohorts of between 12-15 young people to develop and take 
action in response to locally identified needs in an area. Bradford Young 
People raised £10,014 for community partners in the Summer of 2016. 
Feedback from young people who have participated in these programmes 
has been extremely positive with 87% of participants reporting increased 
skills and confidence in themselves. 

 
xxvi) Formalised partnerships with education providers – There are good 

examples of the impact of youth work practice within a more formal 
educational setting. In partnership with schools the Youth Service offers a 
range of programmes of citizenship, anger management conflict 
resolution and one-to-one support that supports and enables more 
vulnerable young people to remain within formal education.  

 
xxvii) Informal Learning – a broad offer of informal learning is offered by youth 

workers using a Youth Service Curriculum. This curriculum is 
underpinned by a commitment to make activity fun and engaging, whilst 
presenting challenge and opportunity for personal and social 
development for young people who participate. Young people are 
presented with choices and are encouraged and supported to make a 
positive contribution towards the communities in which they live and 
within the wider district.  

 
xxviii) Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee – the Committee has 

been supportive and encouraging of youth voice within the Committee. A 
number of young people have attended Committee meetings over the last 
12 months, and have had their voices heard, with regular attendance by a 
small number. Work is now being developed to ensure those in regular 
attendance are representative of a wider youth voice.  

 
Appendix F outlines the contributions made towards the key elements of the Youth 
Offer in Constituency areas and by the voluntary, community and faith sector.  
 

Page 9

http://www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk/


 

10 

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
  

No other considerations. 
 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1      As part of the Budget decisions taken by the Council for the financial year 2016-18 

the Youth Service budget has already delivered savings of £750,000.  
The Youth Service budget will see a realignment of resources based on the Youth 
Population from April 2017. The local authority has committed £1.8m to the Youth 
Service for 2017-18.  
 

4.2       This is set in the context of reduced financial resources for the whole of the    
Youth Sector and the delivery of youth work, including the voluntary, community 
and faith providers. 
 

4.3   The Youth Service budget whilst devolved to the respective Area Committee also  
supports aspects of district wide provision.  
 

4.4      There are increasing numbers of Voluntary and Community providers who are     
      contributing towards the districts Youth Offer through delivery of services that are  
   funded from external resources.  
 
 
5.        RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

 
The Youth Offer Working Group is chaired by the Commissioner (Youth Provisions) 
and includes the Area Co-ordinator with lead responsibility for the Youth Service. 
Other members of the Working group are representatives from Young Lives 
Bradford, Voluntary, Community and Faith Groups and the Police.   
 

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

6.1  The Council has a responsibility to co-ordinate and offer support for the Health and    
            Well-being of Young People set down by Statutory Guidance issued in 2012.  
  

The duty is to secure equality of access for all young people to the positive, 
preventative and early help they need to improve their well-being. This includes 
youth work and other services and activities that:  

 Connect young people with communities so they contribute to society including 
through volunteering and ensure they have a voice in decisions affecting them.  

 Offer young people opportunities in safe environments so they develop a 
sense of belonging, socialise safely with their peers, enjoy social mixing, 
experience time with older people and develop relationships with adults they 
trust 

 Support the personal and social development of young people to build 
capabilities needed for learning, work ad the transition to adulthood 

Page 10



 

11 

 Improve young people’s physical and mental health and emotional well-being 

 Help those at risk of dropping out of learning or not achieving their full potential 
to engage and attain in education or training; and 

 Raise young people’s aspirations, build resilience and informs their decisions – 
particularly to address risky behaviours 

 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 

The Youth Service has a responsibility to ensure that the services are accessible to 
all young people and that participation in the service reflects this approach. Specific 
targeted work takes place to encourage participation from under represented 
groups. 

            
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Youth Service delivery enables local initiatives to be supported, encouraging 
groups and individuals to undertake activities that improve the social, economic and 
environmental well being of their communities. 
 
The Youth Work Developmental Grants have inbuilt sustainability plans, activated 
from the offset of the grant in an attempt to reduce dependency on Council funding 
and grants in future years.  

 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

No Greenhouse gas emissions apparent within the context of this report.  
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are a number of youth work projects who are concerned and driven to 
improve Community Safety within local communities. The increased opportunities 
and involvement of young people in local decision making has the potential to 
improve Community Safety. The Youth Sector provides positive experiences for 
young people helps to build self-confidence, raise aspiration and can provide and 
encourage ‘diversionary activities’, these are key contributors in  builds and helps to 
support safer and stronger communities.  
 
The Commissioner (Youth Provisions) works with the district wide Anti-Social 
Behaviour Panel, the Youth Service and key providers across the Youth Sector to 
ensure young people are informed of the consequences of their participation in Anti 
–Social Behaviours. This ensures early interventions, joined up responses and 
positive requirements are offered to reduce criminalisation of young people and 
support community safety  

 
 
 

Page 11



 

12 

7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the recommendations 
below. 

 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are no implications for Trade Unions arising from this report. 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

District-wide Youth Service work and activities support young people and 
communities within all the Wards in the Bradford District. 

 
7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  
 

Youth Service projects and activities support priorities within each Constituencies 
Area Committee Action Plan. 

 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 

None. 
 

9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in 

this report.  
 

9.2 That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in 
this report, with amendments.  

 
9.3  That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee decides not to accept the 

recommendations outlined in this report.  
 

10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the Work undertaken by the Youth Offer Working Group and the districts Youth 

Sector is welcomed.  
 
10.2 That the Committee considers and comments on the shared direction of travel and of 

the continued commitment from the Youth Sector to work together, and to do things 
differently.  

 
10.3 That the Committee notes the work already undertaken around Youth Voice and 

commits to formalising Youth Voice arrangements in respect of Overview and 
Scrutiny work going forward 

 

Page 12



 

13 

10.4 That the Committee notes the achievements of the Youth Offer Working Group as 
outlined in the Action Plan and receives a further update in respect of the work in 12 
months time.  

 
11.  APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A - Youth Offer Action Plan  
Appendix B - The Youth Voice Framework  
Appendix C - Growing up North – Feedback from the Commissioner’s Office   
Appendix D - The Youth Survey – Snapshot of Results  
Appendix E - Profiles of Provision 
Appendix F - The Constituency / VCFS Delivery under the key elements of the Youth  
 Offer  

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 Bradford Youth Offer Review, Document ‘BQ’, Council Executive, 10th March 2015  
 
12.2 Delivering a new Youth Offer for Bradford, Document ‘BH’, Children’s Services 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 12th April 2016  
 

Page 13



 

14 

Appendix A – The Youth Offer Action Plan  
 

1. Information, Advice and Guidance 
 

Code Action Progress Description RAG Status 

1.1 That IT solutions and technological 
responses are explored and maximised  

 

 Explored the potential of an app, Market testing with young 
people  

 Worked with the BSCB to develop their App  

 Increased use of facebook through area offices to evidence 
work and celebrate contributions made by young people 

 10 young people from the Bradford West involved in giving 
feedback on the new Youth Information and Guidance App 
being created for Young people.  

 Regular IAG posts put on Info Shop Facebook Page 

Green  

1.2  That Information, Advice and Guidance 
(IAG) work is delivered by face-to-face 
youth workers and embedded into all 
youth work provision in the district 

 

 Piloting in Wyke area the Wyke Library Youth Workers 
delivering ward based drop in sessions  

 All the Youth Work Sessional grants recipients have clause for 
IAG incorporation into their projects which will be monitored 
quality  

  All youth service provisions have IAG available and visible to 
all young people these all include positive images of young 
people. 

 JNC qualified Youth Information Officer has supported youth 
work projects across the district to develop IAG offer  

Green  

1.3 Manage the closing of information 
shops and develop approaches that 
enable wider access to a range of 
information to a wider group of 
organisations and providers  
 

 Action plan put in place to ensure the effective closure of the 
Shop 

 Information shared with partners and young people on 
appropriate services that can be used in the future 

 Wider development of IAG services district wide 

 Alignment of Youth Information Services to Customer Services 
Team  

Green  

1.4  Involving young people in planning 
future information needs of the youth 

 Sessions with young people undertaken District Wide around 
development of the Children and Young People’s Plan and the 

Green  

P
age 14



 

15 

population  
 

District Plan 

 Young People involved in the visit by Children’s Commissioner  

 The Youth Survey completed by young people from across the 
district and this informing future directions  

 
 

2. Voice and Influence  
 

Code Actions Progress Description RAG Status 

2.1 We should build on the existing youth 
voice work and look to ensure pathways 
that enable this to become more joined 
up across the District.   

 

 Development of the District wide Youth Voice Framework  

 Commitment by youth sector to work together on district wide youth 
voice events delivering 15 district wide opportunities this year 

 Regular feedback to young people about difference made from their 
participation in youth voice events 

Green  

2.2 That we should share good practice and 
create opportunities for Youth Voice to 
be embedded into youth work practice 

 

 In Bradford West there are Allerton & Thornton Youth Council and 
Clayton Junior Parish council in partnership with Clayton Full Parish 
Council. 

 Youth Service advanced practitioners meet regularly to share 
good practice and develop service and district wide responses  

 25 young people in Bradford West meet in their youth clubs who all 
volunteer their time to develop youth provision and engage in 

community activities, fundraising events and planning weekly.  
 

Green  

2.3 To take a strategic lead across the 
Sector in developing the 
Commissioners Takeover Challenge  
 

 Takeover Challenge took place across the District in November 
2016.  

 Young people provided direction and led on aspects of the takeover 

 A multi disciplinary team of professionals including those with 
responsibility for health services, work experience placements, local 
learning establishments, youth work practitioners and the voluntary 
sector worked together to recruit professionals and young people 
and to organise a shared celebration experience.  

Green  

2.4 Enable young people to be active  Young people have  a voice by attending a series of Community Green  

P
age 15



 

16 

participants in district wide public 
consultations around services that 
directly impact on young people.  
 

forums and in the development of 12 week plans within Youth 
Service provisions 

 A number of young people from across the district have  attended to 
represent Young people’s voice at Children’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 Young people have actively participated in User surveys and Voter 
registration forms.  

 Young people from across the district in both VCS and Youth 
Service provisions have participated in the feedback on the Bradford 
council budget proposals. 

 Young people from Bradford West have provided feedback on the 
proposal for the new sports facilities in the City. 

2.5  To develop a Youth Voice Framework 
that is adopted across the sector 
showing pathways for participation.  
 

 Youth Voice Framework developed in partnership with young 
people.  

 Youth Voice Framework adopted as part of Children, Young People 
and Families Plan.  

 Evidence of young people’s participation in District wide youth voice 
events 

 Evidence of young peoples participation in Regional and national 
youth voice initiatives  

Green  

2.6  To ensure that Area Committees when 
considering reports on services that 
directly impact on young people extend 
offers to young people in the area to 
attend and comment  

 Young people involved in Grants Advisory / Community Chest 
applications and recommendations in Constituency areas.  

 Young people attending local Area Committees in all areas to talk 
about their participation with Youth Services and the Youth Offer.  

Green  

 
 

3. Open Access 
 

 Action Progress Description RAG Status 

3.1. The council to work more closely with 
Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector 
providers to ensure consistent coverage 

 Ward mapping has taken place in all the constituency areas to 
inform the ward plans. 

 Bradford West is leading work with Faith settings seeing partnership 

Green  
 

P
age 16



 

17 

and lack of duplication of open access 
opportunities  

working with local mosques and Churches in Manningham area. 

 Youth Workers are linking together in locality areas to share and 
plan for the youth offer delivery.  

 
 

3.2 Support local people to become 
volunteers in open access provision and 
take over the provision, enabling staff 
resources to be prioritised on capacity 
building, outreach and addressing 
barriers  

 Summer camps delivered in partnership with private 
   sector (Morrisons, Tescos, M&S, Hanson School, elected   
   members and local volunteer residents) 

 Police summer camps delivery with partner organisations 

 25 young people in Bradford West meet in their youth 
   clubs who all volunteer their time to develop youth    
   provision and engage in community activities, fundraising   
   events and weekly planning.  
 Young volunteers are leading and developing youth 
   provisions, supported by youth workers right across the    
   Youth Sector.  

 

Green   

3.3 Develop a collaborative / partnership 
approaches that support jointly planning 
provision and development of good 
practice to ensure open access activity 
is inclusive and open to all  

 Contributions and the shared working of the Youth Offer Working 
Group  

 Collaborative working between VCS providers working in close 
proximity to each other for example at the Greenwood Centre and 
the Springfield Centre working together to plan delivery and offer a 
more coherent and joined up and progressive offer for young people 
that is responsive to identified needs.  

Green  

3.4 Collaborative work to seek resource and 
use existing resources more effectively 
and innovatively  
 

 Gardening tools in communities used by young people  

 The bicycle hub in Manningham Park id used District wide. 

 Bradford West also have a smoothie bike which is used in most fun 
days across the district.  

 The Duke of Edinburgh’s Award outdoor education kit stores is 
available and used by young people from across the district 
participating in the award.  

Green  
 

 
 

P
age 17



 

18 

4. Targeted  
 

Code Action Progress Description RAG Status 

4.1. To support innovation in youth work 
practice  

 

 Realignment of the Youth Work Grant Scheme to support 
developmental and innovative and sustainable models of youth 
work practice 

 Youth Service undertaking Early Help Interventions in locality 
areas using innovative engagement with young people.  

Green  
 

4.2 To consider allocating small amounts of 
funding to groups where there are 
additionality opportunities and increased 
opportunities to access other funding 

 

 Youth Work Grants re sessional 

 In Bradford West £2000 funding received from Sandy Lane 
Parish Council to establish local Youth Provision 

 Grants Advisory Groups working with young people at Area 
Committee levels to influence allocations of community chest 
funding in an area 

 Sharing of funding opportunities (external funding) across the 
Key individuals Network and Young Lives Bradford   

 
Green  

4.3 To reduce duplication and increase 
coordination of activity  

 Identifying CSE Champions within Youth Services  

 In constituency areas youth workers are attending the Multi 
agency panel meetings to establish a seamless service and 
work with young people before being referred to Social Care. 

 All constituency areas  have a named  CSE champion 

 Ward Plans are mapping the provisions in areas to enable / 
reduce duplication  

Green  
 

4.4 Ensure better support to young people 
to enable access to targeted youth 
provision / universal provision 
 

 Summer camps focussed on targeted cohorts of young people in 
transitions in partnership with private sector (Morrison’s, 
Tesco’s, M&S, Hanson school, elected members and local 
volunteer residents) 

       Bradford West has two Community Alcohol partnership (CAP) 
projects one in City Centre and the other in Clayton. Keighley 
has a Community Alcohol Partnership in Ilkley.  

 Every Childrens home in the district has allocated a youth work 
practitioner who regularly attends the home and supports 
Looked After children in the respective areas.  

Green  
 

P
age 18



 

19 

 There are provisions that are targeting youth work support to 
groups of girls and Young Women, LGBT young people, 
disabled young people and young people from new migrant 
communities. These provisions give young people safe space to 
explore issues whilst engaging in creative sessions in a safe 
and fun arena.  

 
5. Active Citizens and Young People’s Contribution to Community Life.  
 

Code Action Progress Description RAG Status 

5.1. Seizing opportunities that challenge 
young people to take social action 

 Developing a Young People Can arm to the People can 
campaign  

 Young people being involved in a wide range of activities 
(www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk). 

 70 Young People from Bradford West planned and delivered 
community clean ups in the ward including; West Royd park 
,Thornton Community Centre , Heaton, Frizinghall Manningham 
and Girlington Over 15  community clean up’s were done  

 10 young people from Thornton participated in the ‘Thornton In 
Bloom, working with local residents to re-pot plants and flowers 
in the area to promote intergenerational work, community 
cohesion and community pride. 

 Bradford West Supports the delivery of the Prince’s trust 12 
week development programme through IAG workshop and 
fundraising 

 
Green 

5.2 Influence and shape provision to 
develop opportunities for active 
engagement and co-production  

Refocus youth work practitioners 
towards ownership for young people to 
become “creators not consumers”  

 Takeover Challenge Steering Group has 14 members and they 
took on the whole organisation of the district Takeover 
challenge for 2016  

 82 young people from across the Youth Sector took part in the 
Take over day.  

 The B-friending project runs weekly in City ward of Bradford 
West, giving young people volunteering experience working 
along side young people who have a disability.  The project 

 
Green  

P
age 19

http://www.peoplecanbradforddistrict.org.uk/


 

20 

aims to promote inclusion whilst giving the young people the 
opportunity to gain transferable life skills 

 We have 12 Junior Parish Council members and 14 young 
people who meet at lower grange on a Tuesday who all 
volunteer there time to develop youth provision and engage in 
community activities, fundraising events and weekly planning. 

5.4 Developing initiatives and projects that 
give opportunities for young people to 
meet other young people from different 
backgrounds to their own.  

 The Youth Service and VCS have developed a range of locality 
based activities that support young people to meet others from 
different backgrounds.  

 Bradford West Youth Service in partnership with Bradford 
Disability Sports and Bradford University, have built a hub of 
accessible bikes for all communities to use, and provision of 
safe cycle activity brings young people together to share 
experiences. .  

 This cycling season has hosted over 20 themed Sky ride local 
events across the district themes include faith rides, women & 
girls, family, festival and inclusions rides all of which are 
supporting. This plays an active role in developing community 
cohesion. 

 Youth sessions weekly at Toller Youth Café and Great Horton 
for EU communities, supporting them to access other 
mainstream provisions and to meet other young people 

 The Youth Service hosts 4 weekly D of E sessions at Culture 
Fusion, Laisterdyke, Parkwood Centre, and in Wharfedale. 
These sessions enable young people to attend from across the 
district and enables the young people to engage in activities 
around team building. Community cohesion. Volunteering and 
inclusion work.  

 The B-friending project runs weekly in City ward of Bradford 
West, giving young people volunteering experience working 
along side young people who have a disability.  The project 
aims to promote inclusion whilst giving the young people the 
opportunity to gain transferable life skills 

 
Green  

P
age 20



 

21 

 Star is an inclusion project in Bradford West which supports 
young people with a disabilities age 11 to 25.  We offer with a 
variety of activities on offer including: pool, table tennis, console 
gaming, Arts & crafts, cooking, DJ work shops,  sports activities 
as well as issue based sessions. These present  opportunities 
to join up with other inclusion sessions and with other provisions 
to broaden the offer  to disabled young people   

 

 
 
 
 

6. Cross Cutting Themes, Quality Assurance and Commissioning  
 

Code Action Progress Description RAG Status 

6.1 Ensure all Council funded services 
provide: 

 Access to information at a level 
that is right for young people 

 Have youth voice and influence 
as integral parts of service 
delivery  

 More emphasis on active 
citizenship within young people’s 
services 

 Embed the “Foundations of a 
new Youth Offer”  

 

 Young people are actively involved in 12 week plans, 
fundraising in their youth clubs as well planning and budgeting 
for their sessions.  

 The Youth Work Grants have been aligned to the priorities of 
the Youth Offer 

 Quarterly monitoring of delivery of provisions will evidence 
difference made.  

Green  

6.2 To develop with young people a set of 
common youth work quality standards 
and outcomes that allow self evaluation 
and improvement 
 

 Work has commenced on the development of youth work 
standards aligned to the Youth Offer Key Elements. This is 
planned to be a self evaluation process.  

 External funding has been applied for to support development 
of this work  

Green  

P
age 21



 

22 

 Young people have started to draft the Self Evaluation Quality 
Youth Work Standards  

 

6.3 To increase understanding of social 
value within the Youth Sector 
 

 In Bradford West 5 Members of Allerton & Thornton Youth 
Council have worked in partnership with St James church 
members to make rucksacks filled with basic supplies for the 
homeless to promote intergenerational work, community 
cohesion and community pride. 

 Young People are engaging with people can and active 
citizenship activities that are enabling young people to be seen 
more visibly and positively as active contributors in communities  

Green  

6.4  To ensure developments are future 
proofed with regular reviews to ensure 
early identification of emerging needs 
within the Bradford District. 
 

 The Youth Offer Working Group keeps abreast of the changing 
face of youth work delivery. National policy is due to change 
and the local authority youth services and the wider youth 
sector are committed to working together to respond to this.  

 There is a stronger desire to do things differently and to work 
alongside young people to ensure responses are appropriate 

Green  

6.5 Develop pride in the Bradford District  
 

 Community Stars Awards saw young people taking pride in their 
communities  

 Love Bradford Event was embraced by young people with 
schools and young people making up the record breaking 
achievment 

 Bradford West Youth Service has a key role in City Park events 
these have included Bradford Festival, Festival of Lights and 
Christmas lights.  

 Inclusion in the Youth Survey around young peoples feelings of 
pride of the district and where they live  

 Participation in Growing up North initiative.  

Green  

6.6 Encourage private companies to invest 
in young people in local areas where 
they are based 
 

 There have been investments made in kind and contributions in 
terms of furniture and staff / volunteering support for a variety of 
youth initiatives including VCS run summer schemes in BD2 
area, Cycling helmets and cycling clothing donations to the 
district wide cycle hub and use of space within the local hotel for 

Green 

P
age 22



 

23 

award and celebration events for the district   

6.7 Encourage local “giving” to create a 
community fund for young people 
 

 Bradford District Community Fund distributing funding to 
projects to work with children and young people.   

 

6.8  Increase networking and sharing of 
resources across the Youth Sector.  

 Youth Offer Working Group 

 Takeover Challenge Task and Finish Group.  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix B - The Youth Voice Framework 
Attached as PDF document 

  
 
 
Appendix C - Growing up North – Feedback from the Commissioner’s Office 
Attached as PDF document 
 

 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 23



 

24 

Appendix D - The Youth Survey – Snapshot of Results   
This survey was undertaken within existing resources  

 

 

 
NB There was disproportionate responses from Keighley and Shipley areas - both of which have smaller 
BME populations.   
 

 

Page 24



 

25 

  
 
 

 

     
 

   
 

  

Page 25



 

26 

Appendix E - Profile of Provision 
Bradford East  
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Little Horton………………. 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

 
Open access 
 

 
Canterbury Youth 
Club 

 
All young people 

 
Weekly 

 
Tuesday 6.00 - 8.30 
p.m. 

 
Phil Kitson 

 
Open access 
 

 
Canterbury Youth 
Club 

 
All young people 

 
Weekly 

 
Thursday 6.00 – 
8.30 p.m. 
 

 
Phil Kitson 

 
Sports related youth 
work – aimed at 
increasing youth and 
fitness 
 

 
Parkside Youth 
Centre, West Bowling 

 
All young people 

 
Weekly 

 
Saturday – 10.00 – 
12.30p.m. 

 
Gurm Chand 

 
Young Volunteers, 
Targeting BME 
groups 
 

 
Parkside Youth 
Centre, West Bowling 

 
Open to all 

 
Every two weeks  

 
Wednesday – 5.00 – 
7.00 p.m. 

 
Norrina Rashid  

 
After school provision 
for young people 

 
One in a Million Kids 
Club – The Arc, 
Canterbury Youth 
Club 
 

 
All young people - 
aged 5 – 11 years 

 
Four days a week 

 
Monday, Tuesday, 
Wednesday and 
Thursday – 3.30 – 
5.00 p.m. 

 
Phi Kitson 

P
age 26



 

27 

 
Targeted youth 
session aimed at 
young people aged 
13 – 25 years with 
disabilities 

 
South Youth Service 
Disabilities, Parkside 
Youth Centre 

 
 
Young people aged 
13 – 25 years 

 
Weekly 

 
Thursday 6.00 – 
9.00 p.m. 

 
Anthony cassom 

 
Open access – 
young people aged 
11 – 20 years 

 
St Stephens Church, 
West Bowling 

 
Emerge Youth 
Sessions - young 
people aged 11 - 20 
years 

 
Twice weekly 

 
Tuesday and Friday 
– 7.00 – 9.00 p.m. 

 
Emerge 

 
Open access – West 
Bowling, BD5 

 
Light of the Word 
 
 

 
young people aged 8 
– 19 years 

 
Weekly 

 
Thursday 6.00 – 
9.00 p.m. Youth 
Club 

 
Light of the world  

 
West Bowling, BD5 

 
Phab Club – MAPA 
 

 
Targeted youth 
session – 11 – 25 
years with disabilities 

 
Weekly 

 
Wednesday  - 7.00 – 
8.30 p.m. 

Phab Club – MAPA 
 

 
Canterbury 
Children’s Centre 

 
Cecil Green Arts 

 
Delivering arts and 
craft sessions – 
whole community 

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday  6-8pm 

Cecil Green Arts 

 
Boxing Sessions, 
 

 
Healthy Lifestyles 
Project, Huggies Gym 

 
Young people aged 
13-19 year old 

 
Weekly 

 
Tuesday – 6.00 – 
8.00 p.m. 

 
Huggies Gym 

  
Private after school 
care – young people 
5- 16 year olds 

 
I-Inspire after school 
club - Parkside, West 
Bowling 

 
Young people aged 
5 – 16 year old 

 
Weekly 

 
Monday – Friday 
3.00 – 5.00 p.m. 

I-Inspire after 
school club - 
Parkside, West 
Bowling 

 
Secondary schools 
and targeting asylum 
seekers 

 
Homework Club Plus 
– Park Lane Centre, 
West Bowling 

 
Young people 

 
Weekly 

 
Saturday 2.00 – 
3.30 p.m 

Homework Club 
Plus – Park Lane 
Centre, West 
Bowling 

P
age 27



 

28 

Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Bowling and Barkerend………………. 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

  
Open access 

 
Karmand Centre  

  
All young people 

 
Weekly  

 
Monday – 5.15 – 
8.15 p.m.  

  
Taira Shah 

  
Girls only provision 
(Women Zone on 15 
November 

 
Power Girls – various 
venues  

 
Girls group  

 
Weekly  

  
Tuesday – 6.00 – 
9.00 p.m.  

 Taira Shah 

  
Street Contacts, 
home visits, holiday 
activities 
 

 
Outreach/detached – 
Hustler Street, 
Prospect Road and 
Paley Road 

  
All young people 

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday – 5.00 – 
9.00 p.m.  

 
Nola O’neil 

  
 

  
 

    

  
Football for Girls – 13 
– 16 years 
 

 
Karmand Centre  

  
Girls group 

 
Weekly  

 
Monday 4.30 – 6.00 
p.m.  

Karmand Centre 

  
Boxing – mixed aged 
8+ 

 
Karmand Centre  

 
All young people  

 
Three times a week  

 
Mon, Tues and 
Thurs – 4.30 – 6.30 
p.m.  

Karmand Centre 

  
Karate – mixed – age 
5+ 

 
Karmand Centre  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday – 7.00 – 
8.30 p.m.  

Karmand Centre 

        

P
age 28



 

29 

Akido/MMA Mixed – 
aged 10+ 

Karmand Centre  
 

All young people Weekly Wednesday – 7.00 – 
9.00 p.m.  

Karmand Centre 

  
11 – 24 age range of 
activities 

 
E-merge, 18 Pawson 
Street, BD4 8BY  
 

 
All young people 

 
Twice weekly  

 
Tues and Weds – 
5.45 – 7.45 p.m.1  

 
Emerge  

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward…… Bolton and Undercliffe………………. 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

  
Open access 

 
Greenwood Centre – 
Open access youth 
club – age 11 - 19  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Tuesday – 6.30 – 
8.30 p.m.  

  
Sharon Osoba 

  
Open access 

  
SORTED2 Youth 
club 

 
All young people  

 
Weekly (term time 
only)  

 
Friday (term time 
only) – 6.45 – 8.45 
p.m.  

 Sharon Osoba 

  
Engaging young 
people – Information, 
advice, guidance and 
networking with local 
businesses 

 
Detached youth work 
– BD10 and BD2  

 
All young people  

 
Three times a week – 
as and when needed  

 
In general – Weds, 
Thurs and Sat – 
6.00 – 9.00 p.m.  

 
Sharon Osoba 

  
After school club – 
homework support, 
creative writing, health 
and wellbeing.  

 
Greenwood Centre  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Tuesday – 4.00 – 
5.30 p.m.  

Sharon Osoba 

P
age 29



 

30 

Supporting young 
people in transition 
from primary to 
secondary school 

  
Planning Group for 
SORTED 2 – 15 – 25 
years  

  
SORTED 3 faith 
based youth 
provision, Bolton 
Villas church hall 

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday – 6.00 
– 9.00 p.m.  

Sorted Church 

 
Faith based youth 
provision – all ages 
 

 
Abundant Life youth 
program – Abundant 
Life Centre  

 
All young people  

 
Twice weekly  

 
Sunday – 10.30 – 
5.00 p.m. 
Friday – 7.00 – 
9.00 p.m.   

Abundant Life  

  
Ages 5 - 8 

 
One in a Million 
junior youth club, 
Greenwood Centre, 
Wood Lane  

  
All young people 

 
Weekly  

 
Friday – 3.15 – 
5.00 p.m.  

One in aMilion 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Bradford Moor………………. 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

 
Open access 
 

 
Laisterdyke Youth 
Club  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Tuesday 6.45 – 9.15 
p.m.  

  
Sab Ghazi 

  
Open access 

 
Laisterdyke Juniors  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Tuesday – 4.00 – 
6.00 p.m.  

 
Sab Ghazi 

P
age 30



 

31 

  
Open access for 
young people with 
disabilities 

 
FAB group  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday – 5.30 – 
8.30 p.m.  

 
Sab Ghazi 

  
Open access 

 
Laisterdyke Youth 
Club  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Thursday 4.45 – 
7.15 p.m.  

 
Sab Ghazi 

 
Open access  

 
Laisterdyke Youth 
Club  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Friday – 6.45 – 9.15 
p.m.  

 
Sab Ghazi 

 
Open Access  

 
Thornbury Youth and 
Community Centre, 
16 Lower Rushton 
Road, Bradford, BD3 
8PX  

  
All young males 

 
Twice weekly  

 
Monday – 5.30 – 
8.00 p.m. 
Friday – 5.00 – 7.30 
p.m.  

 
Thornbury Centre  

Open age – Eastern 
European (Young 
and old LACO 
project) 

  
Thornbury Centre, 79 
Leeds Old Road, 
Bradford, BD3 8JX 

  
All young people 

 
Twice weekly  

 
Monday – 4.00 – 
6.00 p.m. 
Wednesday – 4.00 – 
6.00 p.m.  

 
Thornbury Centre  

  
Girls group  
 
Talent match 
Run throughout the 
week 
 
 

 
 
Women Zone, 19-21 
Hubert Street, 
Bradford, BD3 9TE  
 
 
  

 
 
Girls/Women’s group 
  

 
 
Weekly 

 
 
Tuesday – 6.00 – 
7.00 p.m.  
Tuesday 1.00 – 3.00 
p.m. 
 

 
Nola  
 
 
Womens Zone  

11 – 14 years – 
Female 
8 – 19 years – Male 
and female 
 

E-merge, 18 Pawson 
Street, Bradford, BD3 
9LS 
 

  
Mixed 

Weekly Wednesday – 6.30 – 
8.30 p.m. (Female_ 
Friday – 5.30 – 8.30 
p.m. (Male/Female) 

E merge  

P
age 31



 

32 

Hindu Kids Club – 6-
11 years – Male and 
Female 

Hindu Cultural 
Society of Bradford 
341 Leeds Road, 
Bradford, BD3 9LS   

  
 

  
Monthly 

1st Sunday of each 
month – 5.30 – 8.30 
p.m. 

 
Hindu Cultural 
society  

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Eccleshill………………. 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Open access age – 
11+ 
 

Ravenscliffe Youth 
Centre  

All young people  Twice weekly  Tuesday 6.30 – 9.30 
p.m. 
Friday 6.00 – 9.00 
p.m.  

 Nicky Lanen 

Detached /Project – 
targeted work (age 
11+) working with 
identified young 
people, sports, arts 
and issue based 
sessions 

Eccleshill Ward 
Detached / Project 
Work 

All young people  Weekly  Thursday 6.00 – 
9.00 p.m.  

 Nicky Lanen 

  
Junior Youth Club – 
ages 8 – 11 years – 
play, sports and arts 
and crafts 

 
Ravenscliffe Youth 
Centre  

 
All young people 

  
Weekly 

  
Monday 5.30 – 8.30 
p.m. 

 
Nicky Lanen 

After school club – 
homework support, 
literacy and creative 
writing, health and 
wellbeing.  

Ravenscliffe Youth 
Centre 

 All young people Weekly  Friday 4.00 – 5.30 
p.m.  

Nicky Lanen 

P
age 32



 

33 

Supporting young 
people in transition 
from primary to 
secondary school 

Play sessions – ages 
5 –13 
Family Day 

The Big Swing @ 
Eccleshill Adventure 
Playground 

All young people Four days a week 
 
 
Weekly 

Tuesday – Friday 
3.30 – 6.30 p.m. 
(play sessions) 
Saturday – 12.00 – 
3.00 p.m. (Family 
day 

Big Swing  

8 - 13  
 

Rockwell Centre 
Junior Youth Club – 
(Eccleshill ward but 
very close)  

All young people Weekly  Tuesday 4.00 – 6.00 
p.m.  

Rockwell centre  

8 - 13  
 

Rockwell Centre 
Junior Gardner’s – 
Eccleshill ward but 
(very close) 

All young people Weekly Wednesday 4.00 – 
6.00 p.m. 

Rockwell centre  

 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Idle and Thackley………………. 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Play, sports, arts for 
5 – 12 year olds 

Junior Youth Club  All young people  Twice weekly  Wednesday and Fri 
– 4.30–6.30 p.m.  

 Helena Rhodes 

  
Homework support, 
literacy and creative 
writing, health and 
wellbeing, school 
years 6+ 

 
Intermediates Club  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday 6.45 – 
8.15 p.m.  

 Helena Rhodes 

P
age 33



 

34 

  
Open access 

 
Senior Youth Club  

 
All young people  

 
Weekly  

 
Friday – 7.30 – 9.30 
p.m.  

 
Helena Rhodes 

  
Junior club  

Rockwell Centre 
Junior Youth Club – 
(Eccleshill ward but 
very close) 
  

  
All young people 

 
Weekly  

 
Tuesday 4.00 – 6.00 
p.m.  

Rockwell Centre  

  
Junior gardeners  

Rockwell Centre 
Junior Gardner’s – 
(Eccleshill ward but 
very close) 
 

  
All young people 

 
Weekly  

 
Wednesday – 4.00 – 
6.00 p.m.  

Rockwell centre  

 
Boxing  
 

 
Platinum Boxing (very 
small fee for entry)  

 
All young people  

 
Four times a  week  

 
Monday – Thursday 
5.00 – 7.00 p.m. 

Springfield  

 
 
Appendix E - Profile of Provision 
 
Bradford West  
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Manningham WARD 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, monthly 
etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Youth Activities- 
detached Lister Park 
and Penzance court  

Youth Service Young People. Weekly Detached 
Session 
 

Monday 
5.00 -8.00pm 
 

Imran Akbar on 
01274 431944 or 
imran.akbar@bradf
ord.gov.uk 
 

P
age 34



 

35 

Youth Activities  
 

Youth Service in 
partnership with 
Bangladesh youth 
Organisation  
   

Young People. 
 

Weekly Open Session 
 

Friday , 
6 - 9 pm 
 

Imran Akbar on 
01274 431944 or 
imran.akbar@bradf
ord.gov.uk 
 

Hanfia Mosque, 
Carlisle Road  

Youth Service Young people 
 

Weekly  
 

Saturday  
11:00— 2.00 
 
 

Imran Akbar on 
01274 431944 or 
imran.akbar@bradf
ord.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: City Ward 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, monthly 
etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Youth Activities 
Great Horton Village 
Open Access 

Youth Service Eastern European 
Young People. 

Weekly Open Session 
 

Monday 
5.30-8.30pm 
 

Shaun Wilkinson  
07582101962 
Mark Kellet   
07582103696 

Youth Activities @ 
Markaz ul islami 
(Pilot) 
 

Youth Service in 
partnership with 
Markaz ul islami 
 
   

Young People who 
attend Markaz ul 
islami Beckside 
Road. 
 

Weekly Open Session 
 

Wednesday, 
6 - 8 pm 
 

Shaun Wilkinson  
07582101962 

STAR GROUP 
Culture Fusion, 
125 Thornton Road, 
BD1 2EP 

Youth Service Young people 
with disabilities, 
LAC & friends. 

Weekly Targeted 
Session 
 

Thursday, 
6.30 - 8.30 pm 
 

Shaun Wilkinson  
07582101962 
 

B-Frienders GROUP 
Culture Fusion, 

Youth Service Young Volunteers . Weekly Open Session 
 

Thursday, 
5 - 8.30 pm 

Shaun Wilkinson  
07582101962 

P
age 35



 

36 

125 Thornton Road, 
BD1 2EP 

  

City Ward Detached Youth Service in 
partnership with 
Bradford College 
Youth Base  

Young people who 
attend Bradford 
College. 

Weekly Targeted 
Session 
 

Monday 
Wednesday 
11am-2pm 

Shaun Wilkinson  
07582101962 
 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Clayton Fair-weather Green  
 

Offer/ activity  
(For example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Clayton Junior 
Youth Council  

Youth Service & Clayton 
Parish Council  

Young People who 
reside in the 
Clayton area. 

Weekly  Mondays 4 – 
6pm  

Nicole Stott  - 
07582101131 
Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk 

Clayton Youth 
Club  

Youth Service  All Young People  Weekly  Mondays 6 – 
9pm  

Nicole Stott – 
07582101131 
Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk 

Lower Grange 
Girls Group  

Youth Service  Young Girls  Weekly  Tuesdays 4 – 
7pm  

Nicole Stott – 
07582101131 
Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk  

Beckfoot Thornton 
School Tic Tac  

Youth Service & 
Beckfoot Thornton 
School 

Students at 
Beckfoot Thornton 
School 

Weekly Wednesdays 
8am – 12pm  

Nicole Stott – 
07582101131 
Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk 

Lower Grange 
Youth Club  

Youth Service  All Young People  Weekly  Thursdays 6 – 
9pm  

Nicole Stott – 
07582101131 
Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

P
age 36

mailto:Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk


 

37 

Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Thornton & Allerton  
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Targeted 
Sports activities 

Youth Service Girls Weekly Monday 4:30pm 
– 7:00pm 

Calais Lawrence 
07582101067 

Thornton Open 
Access session 

Youth Service/Thornton 
Community Centre 

All young people Weekly Tuesday 
6:30pm  - 9pm 

Calais Lawrence 
07582101067 

Allerton Open 
Access session 

Youth Service/ 
Weymouth Centre 

All young people Weekly Wednesday 
6:30pm  - 9pm 

Calais Lawrence 
07582101067 

Sandy Lane Open 
Access Session 

Youth Service/ Bethel 
Baptist church 

All young people Weekly Thursday 
5:45pm – 
7:45pm 

Calais Lawrence 
07582101067 

Open Access 
Football session 

Youth Service/Thornton 
Recreation Centre 

All young people Weekly Friday 5pm – 
7pm 

Calais Lawrence 
07582101067 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Heaton  
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Open Access 
youth Session @ 
Frizinghall 
Community Centre  

CBMDC YS  Young People 12- 
19  

Weekly Tuesday 
6.00pm 8.30pm  

Imran Hussain 
07582100174 

Open Access @ 
Heaton Village Hall  

CBMDC YS  Young People 12- 
19  

Weekly Friday 6.30pm 
9.00pm  

Imran Hussain 
07582100174 

P
age 37



 

38 

Duke Of Edinburgh 
Award @Culture 
Fusion, Thornton 
Road. 

CBMDC YS Young People 12- 
19  

Weekly Thursday 
5.30pm 8.00pm  

Imran Hussain 
07582100174 

Sports Session@ 
Zara Sports 
Centre, Thorn 
Lane 

Zara Sports, UHWTG Young  People 8-16 Weekly  Friday 5-6pm  
Saturday 2-3 
pm  

Zara Sports Centre 
 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward Toller and Girlington  
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

 
Open access  
 

Youth service & 
Girlington Com 
Centre  
 
Girlington community 
centre, Girlington Road  

Young people  Weekly  Monday 4 till 7 Krishna lal 
07582192592 
Or 01274 431944 

Open access  
 
 

Youth Service 
Toller youth Café 
2 Duckworth Lane.  Bd9 
5EP 

Young people 
Mainly Eastern 
European young 
people and their 
siblings  

Weekly  Wednesday  
5 till 8  

Krishna lal 
07582192592 
Or 01274 431944 

 
Open access 
Until May  and 
then sports related 
 

Youth Service 
Manningham Sports 
Association, Scotchman 
Road   

Young people  Weekly  Thurs 6 till 9  
From April 6th 
Gt  Horton 
Cricket club, 
Allerton road, 
BD8  

Krishna lal 
07582192592 
Or 01274 431944 

P
age 38



 

39 

Appendix E - Profile of Provision 
 
Bradford South  
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Queensbury  
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

 
Scouts  
 

Scouts / uniformed 
groups  

Young People  Weekly  Various  www.queensburyscouts.org.uk  

Scout – Marching 
Band  
 

Scouts / uniformed 
groups  

Young People  Weekly  Various  www.Revolutionshowcorps.org.uk 
  
 

 
Youth Club  
 

 Youth Service  School years 9, 
10 and 11  

Weekly  Wednesday  
5:30 – 8:00  
Victoria Hall 
Queensbury  

Emma Jones 07582108191 
John Uleichuk 0758210 

 
Youth Club  
 

Youth Service  School years 7 
and 8  

Weekly  Thursday  
5:30 – 7:30  
Victoria Hall 
Queensbury  

Emma Jones 07582108191 
John Uleichuk 0758210 

 
Tic Tac / small 
group work  / one 
to one support  
 

Youth Service in 
partnership with 
Queensbury 
School and School 
Nursing Team  

11 – 18 – school 
based provision  

Weekly  Mondays  
9 – 2:45 
Queensbury 
School  
Wednesdays – 
small group / 
intensive work 

Emma Jones 07582108191  

 
Arts Award  

 
Youth Service  

10 – 18 Set Projects  
£2.50 per session 

Tuesday Evening 
– Needs to be 

John Uleichuk  

P
age 39

http://www.queensburyscouts.org.uk/
http://www.revolutionshowcorps.org.uk/


 

40 

 to include all 
Materials 

booked in 
Advance  

 
Sport Based 
Holiday Scheme  
 

Youth Service and 
Sports and Leisure 
via Victoria Hall  
 
 

Young people 6 – 
11  

Holiday Provision  Holiday Provision 
– Cost 
Implications  

Queensbury Swimming Pool  

 
Guides  
 

Guides / Uniformed 
Group  

Up to 19  Weekly  Various  www. 

Football – 
Queensbury Celtic  
 

Sports Clubs All Ages  Weekly – Seasonal  Various  Pit Lane Queensbury  
07581330397 

Cricket 
  
 

Sports Clubs  All Ages  Weekly – Seasonal  Various   

Rugby – 
Queensbury 
ARLFC 
  

Sports Clubs  All Ages  Weekly – Seasonal  Various  Queensbury ARLFC  
07973669146 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Royds  
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Open Access Aim High Mixed age 5-8        Weekly Monday 5:15-
6:30pm 

Buttersahw Youth centre 
Chris : 07874090204 

Open Access Aim High Mixed age 9-12       Weekly  Monday 6:45-
7:45pm 

Buttershaw Youth centre 
Chris : 07874090204 

P
age 40



 

41 

Open Access Edan, Step2,Youth 
Service  

Girls only age 8-
18 

       Weekly Tuesday 4:15-
5:45pm  

Buttershaw Youth centre 
Stella: 07505941574 

Open Access Youth Service Mixed age 11-18        Weekly Tuesday 6:15-8pm Buttershaw Youth centre 
Steven: 07582101715 

Closed session 
Heat crime  

Youth Service & 
Motive college 

Mixed 16-18       Weekly  Wednesday 1-
3pm   

Motive College 
Steven: 07582101715 

Open Access Youth Service  Mixed 11-18       Weekly Wednesday 6pm-
9pm 

Woodside community centre 
Steven: 07582101715 

Open Access Youth Service  Mixed 11-18       Weekly Thursday 6:15-
8pm 

Buttershaw youth centre  
Steven: 07582101715 

Open Access Aim High Mixed 9-12       Weekly Friday     5-
7:30pm  

Buttershaw Youth centre 
Chris : 07874090204 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Great Horton  
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Open Access Youth Service All Young People Weekly 
(2 sessions) 

Great Horton 
Village Hall 
Monday & 
Thursday 
6 – 9pm 

Mark Kellett 
07582 103696 

Open Access 
(Conversations 
With) 

Youth Service & 
Scholemoor 
Beacon 

All Young People Weekly Scholemoor 
Community Centre 
Tuesday 
6.30 – 8.30pm 

Mark Kellett 
07582 103696 

Open Access Scholemoor 
Beacon 

All Young People Weekly St Wilfrids Church 
Wednesday 
6.30 – 8.30pm 

Matthew Milnes 
07908855258 

P
age 41



 

42 

Open Access Youth Service All Young People Weekly Scholemoor 
Community Centre 
Wednesday 
6.30 – 8.30pm 

Mark Kellett 
07582 103696 

Sports Session Scholemoor 
Beacon 

All Young People Weekly Scholemoor 
Community Centre 
Wednesday 
4 – 5pm 

Matthew Milnes 
07908855258 

Information Advice 
& Guidance 

Youth Service All Young People Weekly Scholemoor 
Community Centre 
Monday 
3 – 4.30pm 

Mark Kellett 
07582 103696 

Information Advice 
& Guidance 

Youth Service All Young People Weekly Great Horton 
Village Hall 
 
TBC 

Mark Kellett 
07582 103696 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Tong  
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Girls Session – 
targeted work to 
reduce 
vulnerability  
(Holme Wood)  

BMDC – Youth 
Service in 
partnership with 
Build a Girl Project  

Girls Session – 
targeted work to 
reduce 
vulnerability 

Weekly  Monday 4-7pm Senior Youth Worker – Emma 
Jones  

Open Access  
(Holme Wood) 

BMDC – Youth 
Service  

All young people 
aged 13-19 years 
old 

Weekly  Tuesday 6-9pm  Ward Lead – Chris McMahon  
 

P
age 42



 

43 

Boys Session – 
targeted work to 
reduce 
vulnerability  
(Holme Wood) 

BMDC – Youth 
Service in 
partnership with 
Build a Boy Project  

Boys Session – 
targeted work to 
reduce 
vulnerability 

Weekly  Wednesday – 6-
9pm  

Ward Lead – Chris McMahon  
 

Open Access  
(Holme Wood) 

BMDC – Youth 
Service  

All young people 
aged 13-19 years 
old 

Weekly  Thursday 6-9pm  Ward Lead – Chris McMahon  
 

Open Access  
(Bierely) 

BMDC – Youth 
Service in 
partnership with 
Step2 and Bierely 
Life Centre   

All young people 
aged 13-19 years 
old 

Weekly  Friday 6-9pm  Ward Lead – Chris McMahon  
 

Tong Cycling 
Project  

BMDC – Youth 
Service 

All young people 
aged 13-19 years 
old 

 Monthly  Saturday Day time Ward Lead – Chris McMahon  
 

TICTAC (Teenage 
Information Centre 
– Teenage Advise 
Centre) 
Tong School  

BMDC – Youth 
Service 

11-16 year olds Weekly  Tuesday Ward Lead – Chris McMahon  
 

Step2 – Drop in  
Tong Street  

Step 2  11-18 year olds Weekly  Mon – Fri 3-5pm  Step2 – Liz Robinson  

The Edge Youth 
Project  
(Holme Wood) 

The Edge  11-18 year olds Weekly  Mon – Fri 4-7pm The Edge - Adam Woodhouse  

Holme Wood 
Advice Centre and 
Library  

BMDC – Youth 
Service in 
partnership with 
MUMUP and other 
local orgs 

11-25 year olds Weekly  Mon – Fri 12-3pm MUMUP – Suzanne Ester  

 
 
 

P
age 43



 

44 

Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Wyke 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Delph Hill youth 
club open access 
young people aged 
13 to 19 

Bradford south 
youth service 

Girls boys from 
Wyke  

Weekly 2 a week Thursdays and 
Fridays 6pm to 
8.30pm  

Kamrun Haq 07582 107053 

St Marys church 
targeted work 
young people aged 
13 to 19 

Church voluntary 
sector run with 
support from Youth 
service south 

Girls group from 
Wyke 

fortnightly Tuesdays 5-7pm Kamrun Haq 07582 107053 

Appleton academy 
IAG sessions drop 
in young people 
aged 13 to 19 

Appleton academy 
Wyke library  

Wyke young 
people  

weekly Tuesdays 3 to 
5pm  

Kamrun Haq 07582 107053 

Woodlands Cricket 
club low moor 
sports young 
people - all ages  

Voluntary sector  Young people in 
Low moor and 
Oakenshaw  

Various  Various  Brian Pearson - Woodlands 
Cricket Club,  Albert Terrace 
Oakenshaw BD12 7AX 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Wibsey 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Wibsey Rygby 
club, Rugby 

Voluntary sector  Girls and boys 
from wibsey 

Various training 
sessions  

Various days and 
times  

143 high street wibsey bd61ju 
01274 671643 

P
age 44



 

45 

League and Union 
opportunities for 
young people age 
6 to 18 

Salvation army 
youth club for 
young people aged 
8 to 17 

Voluntary sector  Girls and boys 
from wibsey 

Every Friday night  Every Friday night 
6pm to 8.30pm  

Rachel , 01274 677591 

20th Low Moor 
Scouts scout hut 
Wibsey 

Voluntary sector  Beavers 6 to 8 yrs  
Cubs 8 to 10.5 yrs  
Scouts 10.5 to 
14.5 years  

Wed 5 to 6pm 
Mon 6.30pm to 
8pm 
Fri 7.15 to 9pm 

 Jon Rowley 07824 509353 

 
 
Appendix E - Profile of Provision 
 
Keighley 
 
Ward based offer to Young People:  Name of Ward:  Keighley Connexions Centre and Information Shop for Young People 
Description of Ward boundaries     Constituency Wide 
 

Offer  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Youth Service 
direct, Voluntary 
Sector,  

Who for?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact details 

Supporting young 
parents and families.  
 
Offering sexual 
health advice and 
health drop in 
sessions 
 

Keighley Healthy 
Living 
13 Scott St 
Keighley  

Young mums and 
dads 
 
 
All young people 

Weekly 
 
 
Weekly 

 Flora Jennings 
01535 677177 

P
age 45



 

46 

HIV Testing 
 

Mesmac 
Keighley Connexions 
Centre and 
Information Shop for 
Young People, 
Town Hall, Keighley 

All young people Monthly First Friday of the 
month 

Jonathan Cookson 
01535 618100 (Info 
Shop) 

Drug and alcohol 
advice  
 

Project 6 
11-19 Temple Street 
Keighley  

Young people either 
self-referred or 
referred via another 
professional or 
organisation 

Daily Contact project to 
make appointment 

Project 6,  
01535 610180 
 

Connexions 
Information and 
Advice 
 

Prospects 
Connexions Centre 
Town Hall, Keighley 
 

Young people 13 – 
19 yrs.’ old 

Daily - appointment 
only 

Mon – Thur  
2.00pm -5.00pm 
 
Fri 2.00 – 5.00pm 

Liz Hemsley 
01274 377800 
  

Volunteering 
opportunities 
 

Keighley and District 
Volunteer Centre 
8-10 North Street 
Keighley  

All young people By appointment By appointment 01535 609506 

CSE or at risk 
 

The Children’s 
Society 
Hand in Hand Project 
12 Russell Street 
Keighley 
 

Targeted young 
people 

Weekly By appointment Zoe Stephenson-
Jones 
01535 606868 
 

Sound Keighley – 
Confidential Group 
and one to one 
support for young 
people who Identify 
as lesbian, gay, 
bisexual, transgender 
or and questioning 
their identity 

 
 
Youth Service 

 
 
Keighley Wide 

 
 
Weekly 

 
 
Tuesday  
6.30 – 8.30 p.m.  

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
For more 
information, to talk 
to a youth worker 
text or call 
07582100677 

P
age 46



 

47 

Saturday Inclusion 
Open access youth 
project  for young 
people with 
disabilities 
 
 

Youth Service in 
partnership with SIP 

Keighley Wide  Weekly Saturday   
10am – 1 p.m. 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

 Wednesday Leisure 
Session  takes place 
at  the Keighley 
Leisure Centre 

Partnership between   
Wednesday Leisure, 
Bradford Sports and 
Youth Service 

Keighley Wide young 
people with 
disabilities 

Weekly Wednesday  
7p.m. – 9p.m. 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

 Eastern European 
project  

Youth Service Keighley Wide Weekly Saturday   
2p.m. – 5 p.m. 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

Volunteering 
Opportunities  

Youth Service Keighley Wide Weekly Varies days and 
times through the 
week 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

 
Ward based offer to Young People:  Name of Ward:   Worth Valley      
Description of Ward boundaries: Encompassing Oxenhope, Oakworth, Haworth, 
 

Offer  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Youth 
Service direct, 
Voluntary 
Sector,  

Who for?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, monthly 
etc.) 

Day and times Contact details 

Open Access Youth 
Provision 
 

Youth Service All Young People Weekly at Haworth 
Community Centre 

Tuesdays 
6.30pm  - 9.00pm 

Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 
Haworth Community Centre, 
Butt Lane, Haworth, BD22 
8QJ 

Open Access Youth Youth Service All Young People Weekly at Holden Hall Fridays Keighley Young people’s 

P
age 47



 

48 

Provision 
 

6.30pm  - 9.00pm Project  01535 618191 
Holden Hall, Colne Rd, 
Oakworth, BD22 7PB 
 

Open Access Youth 
Provision 
 
 

Youth Service All Young People Weekly at Oxenhope 
Community Centre 
 

Fridays 
6.30pm  - 8.30pm 

Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 
Oxenhope Community 
Centre, Shaw Lane, 
Oxenhope, BD22 9LS 
 

Football club running 
teams and coaching.  

Oakworth 
Juniors F.C 

For young people 
aged 7 upwards 
to adults 
 

Most days Various Oakworth Juniors Football 
Club, Bronte Playing Fields, 
Goose Cote Lane, Oakworth, 
BD22 7NG 

Members support group 
for young farmers 

Worth Valley 
Young Farmers 
Club (VOL) 
 

All people aged 
10 upwards 

Weekly at Parkside 
Social Club 

Tuesdays 
7.30pm 

www.facebook.com/WorthValleyYfc 
and@worthValleyYfc 
Chairman Eleanor Moore : 
07827292675 
 

Provide horse riding 
facilities for disabled 
people 
 
 

Haworth – RDA,  Riders of all ages 
from 4 upwards 

Different activities 
throughout the week 

Mon – Sat  
Various times 

Haworth RDA 
Vale Mill Lane Stables, Vale 
Mill Lane, 
Crossroads, Nr Haworth,  
West Yorkshire, BD22 0EF 
Tel: 01535 649448 
Mobile: 07771 531058 

Haworth Scouts ( 
Beavers, Cubs and 
Scouts) 
 
 

Scout 
Association 

People aged 6 to 
25 years old 

Weekly at Haworth 
Community Centre 

Wednesdays 
7.00pm – 8.30pm 

General Contact 
Jeanette Young 
T: 01535 661902 
E: dc@keighleyscouts.org.uk 
 

Oxenhope Cricket Club 
running teams and 
coaching 

Oxenhope 
Cricket Club 

All people aged 8 
upwards 

Seasonal April to 
September 
2 to 3 times a week 

Various Mr. Keith Yates   
Oxenhope CC Secretary 
  

P
age 48

http://www.facebook.com/WorthValleyYfc
mailto:dc@keighleyscouts.org.uk


 

49 

 
 

The Old Vicarage,    
Hebden Bridge Road, 
  
Oxenhope   
Keighley   
West Yorkshire   
BD22 9LY   
Email :- 
keith.yates@headlam.com  
Phone:- 01535 646109 
  
Mobile:- 07801 834248 

 
 
Ward based offer to Young People:  Name of Ward:  Keighley Central    
 

Offer  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Youth Service 
direct, Voluntary 
Sector,  

Who for?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact details 

Open Session youth 
session 

Voluntary Service All young people up 
to 14years 

Weekly 
 

Wednesdays 
 

Highfield Centre  
01535 608900 

Sports session Voluntary Project 
(James Project) 

All young people Weekly 
 

Thursdays 
1900-2100hrs 

James Project 
01274 483075 

Open session Youth 
Work session 
 

Partnership work 
Youth Service, 
Highfiels Centre and 
Rashni and Ghar 

Young people 
 Girls’ Group 
(Highfield Centre) 

Weekly  
 

Tuesdays  
1600-1830hrs 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
Highfield Centre  
01535 608900 
Roshnir Ghar 
01535 609927 

Open Session Play 
session 

Play Rangers 
Voluntary Service 

All young people up 
to 14years 

Weekly 
 

Wednesdays 
 

Highfield Centre  
01535 608900 

P
age 49



 

50 

Open Session youth 
Work session 
 

Youth Service All young people  
(Highfield Centre) 

Weekly  
 

Tuesdays  
1700-2130hrs 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

Open Session youth 
work session 
 

Youth Service All young people  
(BCA) 

Weekly  
 

Thursdays  
1800-2030hrs 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

Open Session 
 

Youth Service IAG Young Advisors 
Group 
(Keighley Wide)  

Weekly 
 

Various Times  Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 

Closed Army Cadets 
 

Army All young people Weekly Tuesdays 
1900-2100hrs 

Keighley Army Cadets 
01535 647774 

Detached 
Sports/Project Work  
 

Youth Service in 
partnership with 
JAMES 

All young people  
(Lawkholme) 
 

Weekly Mondays 
1600-18o0hrs 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

Closed sessions 
 

One to one work with 
targeted young 
people  

Targeted group weekly Various days 
and times 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

Various activities and 
projects using sports, 
Trips, Teambuilding  
Sessions  

Holiday Activities in 
partnership with local 
organisations  

 Keighley Wide School holidays  Various days 
and times 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

 
 
Ward based offer to Young People:  Name of Ward:  Keighley Central    
 

Offer  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 

Provider  
(e.g. Youth Service 
direct, Voluntary 
Sector,  

Who for?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact details 

P
age 50

tel:01535647774


 

51 

activity). 

Open Session youth 
session 

Voluntary Service All young people up 
to 14years 

Weekly 
 

Wednesdays 
 

Highfield Centre  
01535 608900 

Sports session Voluntary Project 
(James Project) 

All young people Weekly 
 

Thursdays 
1900-2100hrs 

James Project 
01274 483075 

Open session Youth 
Work session 
 

Partnership work 
Youth Service, 
Highfiels Centre and 
Rashni and Ghar 

Young people 
 Girls’ Group 
(Highfield Centre) 

Weekly  
 

Tuesdays  
1600-1830hrs 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
Highfield Centre  
01535 608900 
Roshnir Ghar 
01535 609927 

Open Session Play 
session 

Play Rangers 
Voluntary Service 

All young people up 
to 14years 

Weekly 
 

Wednesdays 
 

Highfield Centre  
01535 608900 

Open Session youth 
Work session 
 

Youth Service All young people  
(Highfield Centre) 

Weekly  
 

Tuesdays  
1700-2130hrs 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

Open Session youth 
work session 
 

Youth Service All young people  
(BCA) 

Weekly  
 

Thursdays  
1800-2030hrs 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

Open Session 
 

Youth Service IAG Young Advisors 
Group 
(Keighley Wide)  

Weekly 
 

Various Times  Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 

Closed Army Cadets 
 

Army All young people Weekly Tuesdays 
1900-2100hrs 

Keighley Army Cadets 
01535 647774 

Detached 
Sports/Project Work  
 

Youth Service in 
partnership with 
JAMES 

All young people  
(Lawkholme) 
 

Weekly Mondays 
1600-18o0hrs 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

Closed sessions 
 

One to one work with 
targeted young 

Targeted group weekly Various days 
and times 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   

P
age 51

tel:01535647774


 

52 

people  01535 618191 
 

Various activities and 
projects using sports, 
Trips, Teambuilding  
Sessions  

Holiday Activities in 
partnership with local 
organisations  

 Keighley Wide School holidays  Various days 
and times 

Keighley Young 
People’s Centre   
01535 618191 
 

 
Ward based offer to Young People:  Name of Ward…CRAVEN…….  
 Description of Ward boundaries  ……Addingham, Silsden and Steeton with Eastburn…….. 
 

Offer  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in 
session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Youth 
Service direct, 
Voluntary 
Sector,  

Who for?   
(e.g. All 
Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact details 

Open Access 
Youth projects 
Sildsen 
 

Youth Service 13 – 19 yrs 
old 

Weekly Mondays & Thursdays  
6:30pm – 9pm  

Keighley Young people’s Project   
01535 618191 

Open Access 
Youth Project 
Addinghan 

Youth Service 13 – 19 yrs 
old 

Weekly Tuesdays 
6:30pm – 9pm 

Keighley Young people’s Project  01535 
618191 

Specific 
Activity 
 

Addingham 
Cricket Club 
 
Voluntary 
Sector 

9 – 17 yrs old Seasonal See Website for days 
and times 

 
http://www.addinghamcricketclub.co.uk/juniors/c
ontacts/ 
 

Specific 
Activity 
 

AWARE 
 
Voluntary 
Sector 

0 – 19 yrs old Weekly See Contact for days and 
times 

Mrs Jo Galasso. 
52 Chippendale Rise,  
Otley, LS21 2BJ 
Phone: 01943 466543 
Mobile: 07764 432933 

P
age 52

http://www.addinghamcricketclub.co.uk/juniors/contacts/
http://www.addinghamcricketclub.co.uk/juniors/contacts/


 

53 

Email: jo.galasso@tesco.net 
Specific 
Activity 
 

Silsden AFC 
 
Voluntary 
Sector 

7 – 16 yrs old Weekly / 
Seasonal 

Various 
See Website for days 
and times 

 
http://www.pitchero.com/clubs/silsdenafc 
 
 

Specific 
Activity 
 

Silsden Amateur 
Rugby League 
Club 
 
Voluntary 
Sector 

8 – 16 yrs old Seasonal Various 
See Contact for days and 
times 

Margaret Proctor 
Cobbydale Social Club, 5 Hayhills Road, 
Silsden, BD20 9NE 
Secretary:- dave.procter@hotmail.com 

01535 662665 or 07980 893003 

 
Ward based offer to Young People:  Name of Ward Keighley West.   
Description of Ward boundaries : Braithwaite, Bracken Bank, Fell Lane, Oakbank School. 
 

Offer  
(for example 
open access, 
drop in session, 
specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Youth 
Service direct, 
Voluntary Sector,  

Who for?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact details 

Open access 
Project 
Braithwaite 
 

Youth Servicers  Young people 
13+ 

Weekly  Thursday 18.00 – 
20.30 

Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 

Open Access 
Project  
Braithwaite 
 

Youth Services  Young People 11 
– 13 

Weekly  Friday 18.00 – 20.30  Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 

Innit Mega  
Braithwaite 
 

Voluntary Sector – 
Keith Thompson 
Centre   

Young people 5 – 
11 

Weekly  Monday 18.00 – 19.30  Maxine  
07956017768 

James – Sports  Voluntary sector – Young People – Weekly  Wednesday 17.00 – James Project  

P
age 53

mailto:jo.galasso@tesco.net
http://www.pitchero.com/clubs/silsdenafc
mailto:dave.procter@hotmail.com


 

54 

 Merlin Top  14+ 19.00 Carla/Steve 07583602583  

Scouts  
 

Merlin Top Parents  Young people 
under 7’s 

Weekly  Thursday 18.00 – 
19.00 

Merlin Top reception  
01535 210028 

Scouts  
 

Merlin Top Parents  Young people 7 – 
11’s 

Weekly  Thursday 19.00 Merlin Top reception  
01535 210028 

Rugby  
 

Cowling 
Harlequines  

Young 
people/adults 
16+ 

Weekly  Monday & 
Wednesdays 

Merlin Top reception  
01535 210028 

Rugby  
 

Cowling 
Harlequines  

Young 
people/adults 
16+ 

Weekly  Monday & 
Wednesdays 

Merlin Top reception  
01535 210028 

Rugby  
 

Cowling 
Harlequines  

Young people 7 – 
11’s 

Weekly  
 

Thursday  Merlin Top reception  
01535 210028 

Open Access  
Bracken Bank  
 

Youth Services  Young people 
11+ 

Weekly  Monday  Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 

Open 
access/Sports  

One in a million Young people  Weekly  Tuesday and Thursday  Jack – 07912251231  

Tic Tac Youth 
Service/Oakbank 
School  

Young people  Weekly Tuesdays 10.30 / 
13.30  
 

Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 
Oakbank School  

Group Work – 
ABS, Supportive,  

Youth Service and 
James project 

Young People  Weekly  Wednesday/Thursdays  Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 

 
 
Ward based offer to Young People:  Name of Ward :  Ilkley     
 
Offer  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Youth Service 
direct, Voluntary 
Sector,  

Who for?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact details 

Lunch time Youth 
Club at Ilkley 

Parish Church Year 7’s Every Wednesdays 12noon till 1pm Lawrence – Parish Church 
Mobile: 07891001592 

P
age 54



 

55 

Grammar School 
 
 

Open Access at 
Parish Church  
 
 

Parish Church All young People Every Wednesdays 3pm till 4pm Lawrence – Parish Church 
Mobile: 07891001592 

Mixed Martial Arts  
 

Kokora  Academy For 
Martial Arts 

Under 14’s Tuesday 
Thurs  
Fridays 

5.45pm till 6.30pm Kathryn Pawson 
Mobil: 07801697852 

Scouts Group 
 

Ben Rhyding Scouts 
Group 

Under 14’s   Robin Beaumont 

Cricket coaching Ilkley Cricket Club 
 

Under 11 to 13’s 
Under 15 to 17 years 

Mon 
Thurs 

6pm till 7.30pm Tel: 01943 607269 
Email: ilkleycc1850@gmail.com 

Cricket matches Ben Rhydding Cricket 
Club 
 

Under 15’s 
Under 17 years 
Under 11’s 

Sundays 
Thursday 
Friday 

10am  
6pm 
6.15pm 

Robin Snook 
robin@snook.ndo.co.uk 

Hockey Matches Ilkley Hockey Club 
 

Under 12’s 
Under 14’s 
Under 16’s 
Under 18’s 
 
Boys Teams 
And Girls Teams 

Sundays 
 

Various Times Vaughan Stell  (07966 770375) 
 
 

Inclusion Project 
Open Access 
 
 

Youth Service All young people Mondays 6pm till 8pm Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 

Open Access 
 

Youth Service 11 to 19’s Wednesdays  5.45pm till 8.15pm Keighley Young people’s 
Project  01535 618191 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55

http://ilkleycc1850@gmail.com/


 

56 

Appendix E - Profile of Provision 
 
Shipley  
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward………Windhill & Wrose ……………. 
 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Highcroft 
Open Access 
 

 
YS, 
 

All Yp between 
ages of 11-19  
(upto 25 if disabled) 

Weekly Mon 
6.30 – 8.30pm 

Ash Ibrahim 

Highcroft  
Open Access 
 

 
YS,  

All Yp between 
ages of 11-19  
(upto 25 if disabled) 

Weekly  Tues  
6.30 – 8.30pm 

Ash Ibrahim 

Highcroft Open 
Access 
 

YS  Weekly when 
agreed 

Friday or weekend  Ash Ibrahim 

 
Windhill CC 
 

 
OIAM  

All, 9 to 16 yrs  Twice Weekly  Monday & 
Wednesday  
3.30 to 5.30 pm 

Danny Forrest  

 
Open Access youth 
provision, 
Christchurch 
Church, Hall Lane  
 

 
EMERGE  

All,  9-16yrs Weekly  Wednesday  
6pm till 8pm 
 

James Stannett  
May move to Park and 
have Community Forest 
focus when in spring  

School Based 
Forrest Schools 
Group @ 
Christchurch 
Academy  

EMERGE and 
Christchurch 
Academy  

School only KS2 8-
12yrs  

Weekly Fridays  James Stannett 

P
age 56



 

57 

Sports sessions x 2 
nights  
Windy Hill Park  

EMERGE funding 
secured  

5-16 yrs  Weekly Tuesday 7-8 & 
Friday 
3.30 – 5.30  

James Stannett  

After school Forest 
Schools session  

EMERGE 8-12yrs Weekly Planned TBA 
3.30 to 5.30 

James  Stannett  

Community Forest 
Schools Windhill 
Wild Park  

EMERGE  NEET & schools  Weekly  Daytime 
Planned  

James Stannett link to 
friends of Wild Park etc  

Open Access Play 
Activities Windhill 
CC  
[Rec in Summer] 

Big Swing  
Lottery funded  

5-13 yrs  Weekly  Tuesday 3.30pm 
onwards 
12.30 onwards in 
school hols  

michaela.bigswing@yahoo.co.uk 
01274 613254 

 
Football  
 

 
Bolton Woods 
Juniors Football 

Young people  Weekly  Saturdays 3 Laburnum Rd, 

Shipley BD18 2JA 

07860 856204 
 

 
Cricket  
 

 
Windhill Cricket 

Young people   Ian Holdsworth  
Ground: Busy Lane, Thackley 
Old Road, Windhill BD18 1BR 
Telephone 01274 584446 

 
Football  
 

 
Eccleshill United  

 
Young people  

 
 

 
 

Kingsway, Bradford 

BD2 1PN 

01274 780481 
 

YP Activities @ 
Windhill Com Centre 
 

NEWCA  Open 4 – 11ys  Three evening s Thursday, Friday 
evening  

Gianfranco Sabelli 
working with families first  
 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward……Shipley ………………. 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 

Day and times Contact 

P
age 57

mailto:michaela.bigswing@yahoo.co.uk
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)


 

58 

access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

People, girls 
group etc.) 

monthly etc.) 

Drop in Support 
Service   
By appointment 
only  
 

Shipley Youth Café 
Youth Service  

Young people 
aged 13 to 25 
years  

Weekly  Monday 12.00pm 
– 4.00pm  

Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk  

 
Information, Advice 
Support Service.  
Benefits Housing. 
Referrals to hostels. 
Accommodation. 
CV Writing Job / 
Training Advice  
 

Youth Service 
Shipley Youth Café  
 
16-2-25 Advocacy 
Action Advice 
Service  

Young People 
aged 16 to 25 
years 

Weekly Tuesday 12.30pm 
-4.30pm 

Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk 
 

Open Youth 
Provision  
 
 
 

Youth Service 
Shipley Youth Café 

Young People 
aged 11 to 14 
years  

Weekly Wednesday 
5.30pm to 8.30pm  

Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk 
 

 
Information, Advice 
Support Service.  
Benefits Housing. 
Referrals to hostels. 
Accommodation. 
CV Writing Job / 
Training Advice  
 
 
 
Open Youth 

Youth Service 
Shipley Youth Café  
 
16-2-25 Advocacy 
Action Advice 
Service 
 
 
 
 
 
Youth Service 

Young People 
aged 16 to 25 
years 
 
 
 
 
 
Young People 
aged 11 to 19 
years (25 years  
With a disability) 

Weekly  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thursday  
1.30pm to 5.00pm  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Thursday 3.30pm 
to 9.00pm 

Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 58

mailto:Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk


 

59 

Provision  
 

Shipley Youth Café  
 

Aged 11 to 14 
years leave at 
6.30pm   

Weekly  Aged 11 to 14 
years leave at 
6.30pm   

Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk 

Open Youth 
Provision  
 
 

Youth Service 
Shipley Youth Café  
 

Young People 
aged 15 to 19 
years (25 years  
With a disability) 
 

Weekly Friday 3.30pm to 
9.00pm 

Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk  

Open Youth 
Provision  
 

Youth Service 
Shipley Youth Café  
 

Young People 
aged 11 to 19 
years (25 years  
With a disability) 
Aged 11 to 14 
years leave at 
6.30pm   

Weekly Saturday 3.30pm 
to 9.00pm 

Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk 
 

Health Project  
 

Hale  Young People & 
Adults  all ages  

On-going activities  Please contact the 
organisation direct  
Times and dates 
vary 

Contact Hale 01274 271088 

Mental health 
Project for women  
 
 

Isis Project Women ages 18+ 
years. Referrals 
only   

On-going activities Please contact the 
organisation direct  
Times and dates 
vary 

Contact Isis Project  
01274 595689 

Training, Crafts, 
Courses, Links to 
colleges  
 
 

The Hive Project  All ages  On-going activities Please contact the 
organisation direct  
Times and dates 
vary 

Contact info@hivebradford.org.uk 
01274 598928 
 

 
Churches  
 

St Pauls  
Saint Peters 
Shipley Baptist  

All ages  On going  Please contact the 
organisation direct  
Times and dates 
vary 

St Peters 01274 400381 
Shipley Baptist  01274 
533732  

Homeless Young 
People 16-25  

Centre Point  16 to 25 years  Referral service 
email 

Please contact the 
organisation direct  

01274  533400 

P
age 59

mailto:Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:Carole.bywater@bradford.gov.uk
mailto:info@hivebradford.org.uk


 

60 

www.centrepoint.org.uk  Times and dates 
vary 

Dance studio young 
people  

Vogue  All ages  Weekly  Please contact the 
organisation direct  
Times and dates 
vary 

07736469270 

Church Community 
Activities  

St Pauls  
Girl Guides / 
Rainbows  
 
 
Messy creative 
play 

Rainbows 5-7 
years  
GG 10-14 years  
 
 
 
All ages 

 
Weekly  
 
 
 
1 per month  

Please contact the 
organisation direct  
Times and dates 
vary 
 
Thursdays 3.30pm 
-5.30pm 

St Pauls 01274 583652 
 

 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Wharfedale 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

 
Scouts Burley 
 

 
Vol 

 
11-16 

 
weekly 

 
7.45-9.30 Fridays 

Peel Pl, Burley in 
Wharfedale, Ilkley LS29 
7JS 
Phone: 01943 862777 
 

 
Explorers Burley 
 

 
Vol 

 
15-18 

 
Weekly 

 
Sundays & 
Thursdays 

Peel Pl, Burley in 
Wharfedale, Ilkley LS29 
7JS 
Phone: 01943 862777 
 

 
Guides Burley 
 

 
Vol 

 
11-15 

 
Weekly  

 
Mondays 7-9 

Peel Pl, Burley in 
Wharfedale, Ilkley LS29 
7JS 

P
age 60

http://www.centrepoint.org.uk/
https://www.google.co.uk/search?rlz=1C1AOHY_en-GBGB709GB709&q=burley+scouts+and+guides+phone&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LVT9c3NEzOS65MTzNM0dLPTrbST87PyUlNLsnMz9PPzssvz0lNSU-NL0jMS80p1s9ILI4vyMjPS7UCkwCJMndWQgAAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwjhp8GY9djSAhVMKsAKHTIFANwQ6BMIezAW
https://www.google.co.uk/search?rlz=1C1AOHY_en-GBGB709GB709&q=burley+scouts+and+guides+phone&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LVT9c3NEzOS65MTzNM0dLPTrbST87PyUlNLsnMz9PPzssvz0lNSU-NL0jMS80p1s9ILI4vyMjPS7UCkwCJMndWQgAAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwjhp8GY9djSAhVMKsAKHTIFANwQ6BMIezAW


 

61 

Phone: 01943 862777 
 

 
Burley YOB  
Church based 
Children and young 
peoples club 

 
 
Vol 

 
 
 

 
 
Weekly 

 
 
Wednesdays 6-8 

Diane Henderson on 
01425 403739 
or 07899946289. 

 
Scouts Menston 
 

 
Vol 

 
11-16 

 
Weekly 

 
Thursdays 

Low Hall Road 
Menston LS29 6GA 

 
DofE/ Youth service  
 

 
Council 

 
13-19 Bronze Silver 
and Gold 

 
weekly 

Mondays 
 
Wednesdays  

 c.o.Shipley Area office  
     437035 

 
DofE/ Youth service  

 
Council 

13-19 Bronze Silver 
and Gold  

 
Bi weekly 

 
Fridays 

c.o.Shipley Area office  
        437035 

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Bingley  
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls group 
etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

 
Open Access Youth 
Provision at Bingley 
Youth Café  
 

 
Youth Service 

 
All young people 
aged 13-19 years  

 
Weekly  

Tuesday: 3pm – 
8.30pm 
 
Thursday: 3pm – 
8.30pm 
 
Friday: 3pm – 
8.30pm  

 
Carys Bose 
 
01274 437146 

Bingley Inclusion    Monday: 5.30pm –  

P
age 61

https://www.google.co.uk/search?rlz=1C1AOHY_en-GBGB709GB709&q=burley+scouts+and+guides+phone&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LVT9c3NEzOS65MTzNM0dLPTrbST87PyUlNLsnMz9PPzssvz0lNSU-NL0jMS80p1s9ILI4vyMjPS7UCkwCJMndWQgAAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwjhp8GY9djSAhVMKsAKHTIFANwQ6BMIezAW


 

62 

Project at Bingley 
Youth Café  
 
 

Youth Service Young people with 
disabilities aged 13 -
25 years  

Weekly 7.30pm 
 
Thursday: 5.30pm – 
7.30pm  

Gemma Booth 
 
01274 431995 

 
Bingley Beavers 
 

All Saints Scout HQ 
(across the yard 
behind Church 
House) 

 Weekly Tuesday 6pm Birgit Carey 07943 
703473 

 
Cubs and Scouts 
 

All Saints Scout HQ 
(across the yard 
behind Church 
House) 

 Weekly Tuesday 6.30pm Sally Brough 

Scouts 
 

All Saints Scout HQ 
(across the yard 
behind Church 
House) 

 Weekly Tuesday 7.30pm Estelle Wilsson 

Explorer Scouts 
 
 

All Saints Scout HQ 
(across the yard 
behind Church 
House) 

 Weekly Monday 7.30pm David Snowden 
01943 602237 

 
Bingley Swimming 
Club 

Bingley Swimming 
Club, Myrtle Park, 
Bingley BD16 2LF 

 Three days per week Tuesday 6-8.30pm 01274 560620 

 
Bingley Swimming 
League 

Bingley Swimming 
Club, Myrtle Park, 
Bingley BD16 2LF 

 Weekly Friday 6-8.30 01274 560620 

 
Bingley Cadets 
 
 

Bingley Cadet 
Centre, Hill Side 
Road, off Park Road, 
Bingley BD16 4BW 

12-18 year Twice a week Tuesday / Thursday  
7-9pm 

 

Bingley Junior FC Beckfoot School 
Bingley BD16 1EE 

  7.30-9pm INVITE ONLY 

Karate/Kickboxing Bingley Grammar  Weekly Wednesday 6.45pm Claire Adams  

P
age 62



 

63 

School, Keighley 
Road, BD16 2RS 

 
Thursday 7.45 

01274 807726 / 
807700 

Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward Baildon 

 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open 
access, drop in 
session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org name, 
Council Youth 
Service etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly 
etc.) 

Day and times Contact 

Open Access 
 
 

Youth Service All young people 
aged 11-19  

Weekly Monday’s  
7:00-9:00pm  

Stacey Tolley 07582103718 

Youth Club  
 
 

Baildon Community 
Link 

All young people 
aged 10-13 

Weekly Monday’s  
5:30-7:00pm 

Lucy Maddison 01274 588681 
 

Youth Club  
 
 

Baildon Community 
Link 

All young people 
aged 10-13 

Weekly Tuesday’s  
5:30-7:00pm 

Lucy Maddison 01274 588681 

Dance 
 
 

Baildon Recreation 
Centre 

All young people 
aged 10-13 

Weekly Tuesday’s  
7:40-8:20pm 

01274 599245 

8th Shipley Scout 
Group 
 

St Aidan’s Parish 
Centre  

All young people 
aged 10-13 

Weekly Tuesday’s  
7:30-9:00pm 

Alistair Nisbet 07796315088 

Baildon Runners 
 
 

Car park by Heygate 
Lane and Jenny Lane 

All ages Weekly Tuesday’s  
6:30-7:30pm & 
Thursday 7pm  

baildonrunners@yahoo.co.uk 

Baildon Youth 
Council 
Focus work 
/meetings 

Youth Service  
Hale Project 

All young people 
aged 11-19 

Weekly Wednesday’s  
5:30-7.00pm 

Stacey Tolley 07582103718 
Laura Sewell 07507763597 

Detached  Youth Service All young people 
aged 11-19 

Weekly  Wednesday’s 
6.30-9.30pm 

Stacey Tolley 07582103718 
 

P
age 63



 

64 

Freestyle Dance 
 
 

Baildon Recreation 
Centre 

All young people 
aged 3-14 

Weekly  Wednesday’s 
6.30-9.30pm 

07527590549 or 
07983721138 

Baildon Rangers 
 

Baildon Methodist 
Church 

All young people 
aged 13-18 

Weekly  Thursday’s 
7.00-9.00pm 

Christine  
07941 305257 

Youth Group 
 

Baildon Methodist 
Church 

All young people 
aged 6-15 

Every other 
Friday  

Thursday’s 
7.00-9.00pm 

Allen Pollard 
07840 605307 
 

Freestyle Dance 
 
 

Baildon Recreation 
Centre 

All young people 
aged 8-25  

Weekly  Saturday’s  
11.00-12.00pm 

07527590549 or 
07983721138 

Baildon Rugby Club 
 
 

Heygate Lane, Jenny 
lane, BD17 5NH 

All young people 
aged 8-25  

Weekly  Saturday’s  
10.30-12.00pm 

07527590549 or 
07983721138 

Archery 
 
 

Old Barn, Esholt All young people 
aged 11+  

Weekly  Saturday’s  
2.00-4.00pm 

Bob Green  
01274 428001 

Golf Ghyll Beck Driving 
Range  

All young people 
+ Girls only 
sessions   

Weekly  Saturdays daytime or 
evenings  

Andy Watmuff  
07782 195 007  

 
 
Ward based Youth Offer:  Name of Ward: Bingley Rural 
 

Offer/ activity  
(for example open access, 
drop in session, specific 
activity). 

Provider  
(e.g. Vol org 
name, Council 
Youth Service 
etc) 

Who aimed at?   
(e.g. All Young 
People, girls 
group etc.) 

Regularity  
(e.g. weekly, 
monthly 
etc.) 

Day and 
times 

Contact 

YOUTH CLUBS 

P
age 64



 

65 

Cottingley Youth Club 
Cottingley Cornerstone 

Community Centre 
Littlelands 

Cottingley BD16 1AL 

CBMDC Youth 
Service 

Girls and Boys 
aged 11 – 19 
years old (or 
upto 25 years 

old with a 
disability) 

Weekly 
Wednesdays  

6 – 8pm 

Contact Debra Peters 
07582 101849 

debra.peters@bradford.gov.uk 

Denholme Youth Café 
Foster Park, 
Denholme, 

Bradford BD13 4EB 

CBMDC Youth 
Service 

Girls and Boys 
aged 11 – 19 
years old (or 
upto 25 years 

old with a 
disability) 

Weekly 

Thursdays  
6.45 – 8.45pm 

Fridays  
6.45 – 8.45pm 

Saturdays  
(Community 
Café for All) 
11 – 1.30pm 

Contact Franco Biancardo 
07582 100691 

franco.biancardo@bradford.gov.uk 

Harden Youth Club 
Harden Memorial Hall 

Wilsden Road 
BD16 1JP 

 

CBMDC Youth 
Service 

Girls and Boys 
aged 11 – 19 
years old (or 
upto 25 years 

old with a 
disability) 

Weekly 
Tuesdays  

6.15 – 8.45pm 

Contact Manzar Iqbal  
07582 108010 

manzar.iqbal@bradford.gov.uk 

Wilsden Youth Club 
Wilsden Village Hall 

Townfield, 
Wilsden, 

Bradford BD15 0HT 

CBMDC Youth 
Service 

Girls and Boys 
aged 11 – 19 
years old (or 
upto 25 years 

old with a 
disability) 

Weekly 

Mondays  
6.15 – 8.45pm 

Thursdays  
6.15 – 8.45pm 

Contact Manzar Iqbal 
07582 108010 

manzar.iqbal@bradford.gov.uk 

UNIFORMED GROUPS 

P
age 65



 

66 

1st Cottingley Brownies 
The Guide Hut 

Cottingley Recreation 
Ground 

Moorfield Road 
Cottingley 

BD16 

Voluntary Org: 
Girlguiding UK 

For girls aged 7 
– 10 years old 

Weekly 
Mondays  

6.15 – 7.45pm 
Contact = Muriel Baines 01274 

560361 

1st Cottingley Guides 
The Guide Hut 

Cottingley Recreation 
Ground 

Moorfield Road 
Cottingley 

BD16 
 

Voluntary Org: 
Girlguiding UK  

For girls aged 
10 – 14 years 

old 
Weekly 

Tuesdays 
7 – 9pm 

Contact = Muriel Baines 01274 
560361 

 

 
Bingley Division Senior 

Section 
The Guide Hut 

Cottingley Recreation 
Ground 

Moorfield Road 
Cottingley 

BD16 

Voluntary Org: 
Girlguiding UK 

For girls aged 
14 – 25 years 

old 
Fortnightly 

Alternative 
Fridays 
7 – 9pm 

Contact = Muriel Baines 01274 
560361 

 

3rd Cottingley Brownies 
Cottingley Town Hall 

Main Street  
Cottingley 
BD16 1SX 

Voluntary Org: 
Girlguiding UK 

For girls aged 7 
– 10 years old 

Weekly 
Thursdays  
6.30 – 8pm 

Contact Katie Swinden – 
katieswinden@hotmail.com 

 

P
age 66



 

67 

4th Cottingley Brownies 
St. Mary And St. Monica 

Church,  
Bradford Old Road,  

Cottingley,  
Bingley, BD16 1SA 

Voluntary Org: 
Girlguiding UK 

For girls aged 7 
– 10 years old 

Weekly   
(Church tel. no. = 01274 567639) 

 

Denholme Cubs 
Scout Hut,   

Minorca Mount,  
Denholme,  
Bradford.  

West Yorkshire 

Voluntary Org: 
Scouts 

For ages 8 – 10 
years old 

Weekly 
Thursdays  
6.30 – 8pm 

Contact: Alice Wear 07892 700797 

Denholme Scouts 
Scout Hut,   

Minorca Mount,  
Denholme,  
Bradford.  

West Yorkshire 

Voluntary Org: 
Scouts 

For ages 10 -14 
yrs old 

 
Weekly 

Tuesdays 
7 – 8.30pm 

Contact: Alice Wear 07892 700797 

Girl Guides 
Wilsden Village Hall 

Townfield, 
Wilsden, 

Bradford BD15 0HT 

Voluntary Org: 
Girlguiding UK 

For girls aged 
10 – 14 years 

old 
Weekly 

Monday 
7.15pm 

Part of Girlguiding UK 
01904 676076 

Scouts 
Wilsden Village Hall 

Townfield, 
Wilsden, 

Bradford BD15 0HT 

Voluntary Org: 
Scouts 

For ages 10 -14 
yrs old 

 
Weekly 

Tuesday 
7.30pm 

Part of Girlguiding UK 
01904 676076 

SPORT & FITNESS CLUBS 

P
age 67



 

68 

Taekwondo 
Cottingley Cornerstone 

Community Centre 
Littlelands 

Cottingley BD16 1AL 

 
For anyone 

aged 4 years + 
Weekly 

Tuesdays 5 – 
9pm 

Contact 
www.horizontaekwondo.co.uk 

 

Zumba 
Wilsden Village Hall 

Townfield, 
Wilsden, 

Bradford BD15 0HT 

 
Open to all 

ages 
Weekly 

Monday 
7.30pm 

 

DanceKool 
Wilsden Village Hall 

Townfield, 
Wilsden, 

Bradford BD15 0HT 

 
For 14 – 18 
year olds 

Weekly 
Thursday 
6.45pm 

 

Martial Arts Club 
Harden Memorial Hall 

Wilsden Road 
BD16 1JP 

   Tuesday 6pm  

P
age 68



 

69 

Appendix F – The Constituency Delivery under the key elements of the Youth Offer  
 
Bradford East  
 
Information and Advice 

 All youth centres in the Bradford East area provide information and advice to young 

people 

 

 The Hale Project have attended all youth centres across Bradford East to give 

information and advice to young people around healthy lifestyles and healthy 

relationships  

 

 All youth centres run by the Youth Service have Condom distribution and 

Chlamydia Screening available for young people 

 

 One to one work and drop in services offer support to young people on a vast array 

of issues. This includes support with job search, CV writing alongside advice and 

guidance on issues affecting young people. This includes housing, health, 

relationships, employment, education and training.  

 'Time to Talk' is a one to one provision that is delivered at Hanson School every 
Thursday and Friday. This provision offers support to young people who need it. 
This is a young person centred approach where we look at any issue the young 
person is facing. We also offer Information, Advice and Guidance to any young 
person regarding work, courses and sexual health. We undertake Condom 
distribution and offer Chlamydia screening.  

 
 
Voice and Influence  

 Young people consulted on a regular basis and input into programmes of activities 

across Bradford East. In Eccleshill Ward, the Ravenscliffe Youth Association has 

formed and they have accessed funding to enhance and support additional 

activities identified by young people in that area.  

 

 Young People from across the East Constituency have played a key role in 

attending youth voice and influence events and education forums. 

 Youth provisions host regular consultations with young people  about what they 
want to happen in their area.  

 

 Young People are involved in organising how their youth club runs, and take an 
active role in planning sessions and activities.  

 

 Young People are actively involved in planning and organising fund raising events 
in their areas.  

 
 

Page 69



 

70 

Open Access  

 Youth sessions are being delivered across all 6 wards for young people aged 11-19 

(up to 25 with disabilities).  

 

 A range of educational and recreational activities that are open and inclusive to all 

young people includes offers of: sports, arts, life skills, issue based workshops 

around various issues – examples include drugs awareness, internet safety and anti 

bullying. 

 There are open access sessions operating in each ward in the East Constituency 
and increased support to the voluntary sector run groups in some areas to help 
develop open access provision.  

 
Targeted Provision  

 Power Girls Group running in Bowling & Barkerend Ward.  

 

 Monthly targeted sessions for girls and boys taking place in Eccleshill Ward at 

Ravenscliffe Youth Centre – focusing on issues around confidence & self esteem, 

health and personal hygiene. 

 

 Time to Talk – offering 1:1 support in Bolton & Undercliffe within Hanson School to 

young people struggling within school setting around various issues 

 

 Detached Work across Eccleshill, Bolton & Undercliffe and Idle & Thackley Wards. 

Responding to issues of anti – social behaviour and large groups of young people 

congregating particularly starting at 5 Lane Ends. 

 

 Partnership Work with Big Swing through Funded through Youth Work 

Commissioning Funding. Youth Service running programme with young people 

identified as not in mainstream education, regular excluded, short timetables or 

elective home educated. Targeted programme to support these young people 

around various issues – young people gaining accreditation. 

 

 Partnership with SNOOP – working with young people with disabilities to provide 

open access youth provision. 

 

 Sound and Pheonix group developed to support LGBT young people. 

 

 Regular sessions taking place across East to bring young people together to 

promote community cohesion and bring different communities together – joint 

events being run in Black History Month and LGBT Week where all groups across 

East have come together. Cross Ward residentials taken place. 

 

 Work taken place with HATE Crime UK to bring different communities  together to 

develop better understanding between groups 

Page 70



 

71 

 One to one work with Young People who are at risk of CSE and vulnerable to risky 
behaviour.  

 
Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community life 

 Young people actively volunteering in developing junior youth clubs across Bradford 

East area – junior clubs set up and running in Eccleshill, Bradford Moor and Idle 

and Thackley Wards, some in partnership with local voluntary organisations.  

 

 Volunteer training taken place and now currently doing the certificate in youth work 

qualification 

 

 Young people regularly involved in environmental projects – support initiatives such 

as Great British Spring Clean – regular clean ups done within the areas, young 

people having a sense of pride in the areas they live in. 

 

 Intergenerational Work taken place – regular sessions during holidays between 

young people at Ravenscliffe YC and the Men @ Eccy Meccy Project.  

 

 Community Fundraiser taken place within Eccleshill Ward @ Ravenscliffe YC – 

organised by young people and local volunteers – raised £1,100 for activities for 

young people locally. 

 

 Community clean ups, Volunteer training in partnership with Sorted Youth club, 

Intergenerational work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Norrina Rashid  -Advanced Practitioner – Bradford Youth Service  
20th March 2017.  
 

Page 71



 

72 

 
Appendix F – The Constituency Delivery under the key elements of the Youth Offer  
 
Bradford West  
 
Information advice  
 

 10 young people from the Bradford West involved in giving feedback on the new 
Youth Information and Guidance App being created for Young people.  

 Regular Information, Advice and Guidance posts on facebook to advise young 
people of opportunities in the district using the information shops page 

 All youth settings in Bradford West have Information and advice available and 
visible to all young people these all include positive images of young people. 

 There is one JNC qualified Youth Information Officer who has supported youth work 
projects across the district in developing the Information offer in youth provisions 
across the district.  

 An Action plan put in place, led by the Bradford West Youth Work team to ensure 
the effective and smooth transition of information services from the existing site at 
Culture Fusion to Customer Services in Britannia House 

 Regular Information shared with partners and young people in response to 
emerging themes and on appropriate support services that can be used in the 
future  

 
 
Voice and Influence 

 In Bradford West we have the Allerton & Thornton Youth Council and Clayton 
Junior Parish council in partnership with Clayton Full Parish Council. 

 25 young people in Bradford West meet in their youth clubs who all volunteer their 
time to develop youth provision and engage in community activities, fundraising 

events and planning weekly.  
 Young people have  a voice In Bradford West by attending a series of Community 

forums and 12 week plans  

 3 young people from Bradford West have attended Young people’s Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 Young people in Bradford West actively participated in User surveys and Voter 
registration forms.  

 Young people from Bradford West also participated in the feedback on the Bradford 
council budget proposals. 

 Young people from Bradford West also provided feedback on the proposal for the 
new sports facilities in the City. 

 Young people are actively involved in 12 week plans, fundraising in their youth 
clubs as well planning and budgeting for their sessions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 

73 

 
Open access 
Bradford West is working with local mosques and Churches in Manningham area (St 

Margaret's Church in Frizinghall, St Barnabus Church in Heaton, St Phillips in Girlington, Clayton Parish Church, Sandy Lane Parish 

Church and the Victor Street mosque and Hanfia mosques). Work in the faith sector has enabled young 
people from different youth centres to share activity and share common interests, 
contributing towards community cohesion. This is a developing area of work with 
opportunity to undertake further partnership work with other faith providers 

 Ward mapping taking place in the constituency areas to inform the ward plans. 

 25 young people in Bradford West meet in their youth clubs who all volunteer their 
time to develop youth provision and engage in community activities, fundraising 
events and weekly planning.  

 The Bradford West Team have a district wide lead for the cycling hub based in 
Lister Park in Manningham, this has presented a breadth of opportunities for young 
people who would not usually access cycling to take part in activity. We have seen 
a significant uptake of regular cycling sessions by young women and girls and by 
young people with disabilities during the open access sessions. These sessions 
also offer opportunity to young people to come together from across the District with 
development opportunities for those who wish to take their interest in cycling 
further.  

 Bradford West also have a smoothie bike which is used in most fun days across the 
district. 

 
 
Targeted  

 In Bradford West we have been able to secure £2000 funding from the Sandy Lane 
Parish Council to establish a local Youth Provision in that area.  

 In Bradford West a youth worker is attending the Multi agency panel meetings to 
establish a seamless service and work with young people before being referred to 
Social Care. 

 Bradford West also has a named youth worker as a CSE champion. 

 Bradford West has two Community Alcohol partnership (CAP) projects one in City 
Centre and the other in Clayton who are working alongside and with youth work 
practitioners and the wider community in those areas to contribute towards reducing 
alcohol misuse, and for young people to see the consequences of alcohol abuse.  

 Bradford West is Supporting Looked After children in the area. A weekly drop in 
session has been established at Rowan House Children’s Home, which enables 
young people living within the care system to have access to a broader range of 
informal personal development activities  

 Bradford West has 2 weekly girls only youth provision’s giving young girls the space 
to explore issues whilst engaging in creative sessions in a safe and fun arena.  

 The B-friending project runs weekly in City ward of Bradford West, giving young 
people volunteering experience working along side young people who have a 
disability.  The project aims to promote inclusion whilst giving the young people the 
opportunity to gain transferable life skills 

 Star is an inclusion project in Bradford West which runs every Thursday between 
6.30 and 8.30pm for young people with a disabilities age 11 to 25.  We offer with a 
variety of activities on offer including: pool, table tennis, console gaming, Arts & 
crafts, cooking, DJ work shops,  sports activities as well as issue based sessions. 

Page 73



 

74 

 
Active Citizenship and young people’s contribution towards community life  

 70 Young People from Bradford West planned and delivered community clean ups 
in the ward including; West Royd park ,Thornton Community Centre , Heaton, 
Frizinghall Manningham and Girlington Over 15  community clean up’s were done  

 10 young people from Thornton participated in the ‘Thornton In Bloom, working with 
local residents to re-pot plants and flowers in the area to promote intergenerational 
work, community cohesion and community pride. 

 Bradford West Supports the delivery of the Prince’s trust 12 week development 
programme through IAG workshop and fundraising 

 3 young people from Bradford West took part in the Take over day. 1 of who 
shadowed the Assistant Director Ian Day 

 The B-friending project runs weekly in City ward of Bradford West, giving young 
people volunteering experience working along side young people who have a 
disability.  The project aims to promote inclusion whilst giving the young people the 
opportunity to gain transferable life skills 

 We have 12 Junior Parish Council members and 14 young people who meet at 
lower grange on a Tuesday who all volunteer there time to develop youth provision 
and engage in community activities, fundraising events and weekly planning. 

 Bradford West Youth Service in partnership with Bradford Disability Sports and 
Bradford University, have built a hub of accessible bikes for all communities to use.. 

 Through the partnership with British Cycling we have secured additional funding 
that has enabled the service to train 17 as cycle leaders from across the district this 
opening up a wider network of opportunities for the young people of Bradford 

 This cycling season Bradford West will host over 20 themed Sky ride local events 
across the district themes include faith rides, women & girls, family, festival and 
inclusions rides all of which are supporting and developing community cohesion. 

 Youth sessions weekly at Toller Youth Café for young people from EU communities. 

 Bradford West hosts a weekly D of E session at Culture Fusion. This has 
approximately 35 young people attending from across the district and enables the 
young people to engage in activities around team building. Community cohesion. 
Volunteering and inclusion work.  

 In Bradford West 5 Members of Allerton & Thornton Youth Council have worked in 
partnership with St James church members to make rucksacks filled with basic 
supplies for the homeless to promote intergenerational work, community cohesion 
and community pride. 

 Bradford West Youth Service has a key role in City Park events these have 
included Bradford Festival, Festival of Lights and Christmas lights. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Nazaket Ali -Advanced Practitioner – Bradford Youth Service  
20th March 2017.  
 
 

Page 74



 

75 

Appendix F – The Constituency Delivery under the key elements of the Youth Offer  
Bradford South  

 

Information, Advice and Guidance  

Young people in Bradford south can access a range of information, advice and guidance. 

Specialist services include Step2 Young People’s health project that provides a drop in 

centre in Tong and satellite projects in Wyke and Royds. The focus of the project is to 

reduce teenage pregnancy and STIs. The project also provides small group work focusing 

on healthy relationships and preventing domestic abuse and CSE.  

TICTAC projects are run by the Youth Service in several schools including; Tong, Wyke 

and Queensbury. In addition to this the Youth Service also supports alternative education 

provision for the district PRU which has a focus on health, nutrition, anger management 

and emotional support. 

The development of partnerships with local library services continues to provide young 

people with to access additional IAG resources in their local area.  The youth app will also 

enable more young people to access information. 

Support for employment, education and training is provided by Prospects who offer IAG to 

all young people aged 15-19 years old  

Voice and Influence  

Data from the 2017 Youth Survey indicate that over 230 young people from Bradford 

South participated and shared their views on keys issues that affect them. The result of the 

survey will be shared across the constituency and focus groups will be established to help 

shape action. 

In addition, young people have also participated in a series of Youth Voice Events which 

have enabled a greater understanding of the lived experience of young people in the 

constituency. Young people have shared their views on safety, mental health and digital 

information. 

A number of young people have also been directly involved in the GAG at city hall that 

have led to over £10,000 being allocated to fund local community groups and events.  

Open Access 

Each ward in Bradford south is different and meets a wide range of young people’s needs.  

Royds youth work provision sees the Youth Service supporting a number of local 

community based organisations to deliver youth work.  As a result of Youth Service 

partnerships with the Princes Trust, Sandale and Eden; an average of 120 young people 

access youth work sessions each week. These sessions are mainly run from Buttershaw 

Youth Centre but also see joint delivering in Sandale Community Centre in Woodside. 

Page 75



 

76 

Youth workers have worked alongside local residents to help respond to causes for 

concern and have used outreach and detached sessions to engage new members and 

address ASB. The Youth Service continues to have an excellent working relationship with 

Sandale and the Eden project and hopes to strengthen these partnerships over the next 

year. Partnerships with ward officers has seen Youth Workers identify and respond to 

emerging needs and build relationships with key individuals that have been identified as 

needing early intervention in order to avoid an increase in anti-social behaviour.   

Queensbury youth provision has developed an excellent working partnership with Victoria 

Hall and continues to meet the demand for youth work in the local area. As membership 

continues to grow youth workers have continual adapted provision to help manage the 

behaviour of large groups of young people both during and after youth sessions. An 

average of 100 young people access provision each week and participate in positive 

activities with accredited outcomes. Partnership work with Queensbury School sees the 

Youth Service support students through Teenage Information, Teenage Advice Centre. 

Each week students engage with this partnership to receive support and guidance on a 

wide range of issues. This one to one support has led to a valued and trusted partnership 

that provides a link between the school nurse and referrals to specialist support services 

such as CAMHS.   

Wibsey provision is split between large open access sessions run in partnership with 

Wibsey Rugby Club and targeted street based work. These sessions continue to see 

Youth Workers presented with a significant challenge in terms of addressing ASB whilst 

also supporting vulnerable groups. The core members of the Wibsey group have been 

particularly interested in supporting community activities and raising funds for youth 

activities. It is hoped that these members will continue to act as role models to other young 

people and help develop a broader range of community action projects over the coming 

months. In order to reduce the demand on the Rugby Club and the POD youth workers 

continue to source additional space that is able to meet the needs of young people in the 

area. A core element of the Youth Offer in 2017 will be the development of a partnership 

with the Salvation Army who can provide additional facilities for young people in the local 

area.  

Great Horton provision continues to grow with the emergence of Youth Service 

partnerships with Grange Technology College, the use of Great Horton Village Hall and a 

continued commitment to Scholemoor Beacon. Within Great Horton the demand for 

support continues to grow with new arrivals and Eastern Europeans communities making 

up a significant percentage of membership. This need has been met by the Youth Service 

who have been able to engage hard to reach members in trusted relationships. As a 

result, Great Horton has seen a significant change in behaviour and attitude with young 

people willing to engage in positive activities and reduce anti-social behaviour.  A core 

element of the Youth Offer for 2017 will see the growth in delivery of youth work by 

Scholemoor Beacon and St John’s.  

Page 76



 

77 

Wyke provision is a fantastic example of partnership working which provides low cost 

provision from a wide range of community buildings supported by a variety of partner 

organisations. The Youth Service’s ward lead has developed and maintained working 

partnerships with St Marys Church, Westfield Church and the Delph Hill Centre. Working 

alongside community volunteers to provide a sustained commitment to service delivery 

over 90 young people attend provision each week. Partnership work with St Marys Church 

has supported the develop of local community action projects such as the community 

garden. In addition to this a partnership with Young People’s Health Project Step2 has 

helped to address health needs. The partnership with Royds - Delph Hill continues to 

present a challenge in of meeting the needs of vulnerable individuals who require a great 

deal of one to one support. Partnership work with Appleton Academy continues to allow 

young people to access information, advice and guidance to each week through after 

school ‘contact points’. 

Tong provision continues to see the Youth Service working in partnership with a wide 

range of community based organisations. Youth work in Bierley is strengthen through 

partnership with the Life Centre and Step2 and provides young people with the opportunity 

to help plan and deliver community events such as Bierley Fun Day. The Youth Service 

continues to work with the local primary schools and partnerships with Tong School and 

Bradford Academy provide the opportunity to work with young people at risk of anti-social 

behaviour and develop relationships that help change attitudes and behaviour. In Holme 

Wood youth workers continue to develop a model of integrated working alongside YOT, 

Ward officers and NPT. Youth workers have been able to respond to the on going 

concerns ASB and have used street based work to build relationships, challenge and 

encourage different ways of thinking and acting. The challenge of this work remains high 

and youth workers have started to look beyond the individual and try and offer more things 

to the family with a view to establish closer working relationships that offer both support 

and challenge.  This work is supported through partnership with West Yorkshires Police 

and Crime Commissioner. As a result, Youth Service open access provision is 

complimented by targeted intervention work with key individuals and small groups.  

Targeted  

Intensive 1-to-1 support is provided to 11-19 year olds who are from high priority group 

such as LAC, YOT, Teenage Pregnant, Young Mums, At risk of CSE and missing. Youth 

workers find these young people, build a relationship and support them to deal with issues 

such as drugs and alcohol, family breakdown, mental health, homelessness and domestic 

violence. Each ward worker now holds responsibility for a localised case load which 

connects intensive support to local services. As a result the youth service have seen a 

significant increase in contact with these young people and progress is being made in 

making them less vulnerable and ensuring that they are more connected, safer and self-

confident. This work sees youth workers work in partnership with Social Care, Youth 

Offending, Early Help and a wide range of community based organisations.  

Page 77



 

78 

Work with vulnerable people  

The youth service has continues to support young people who are NEET. Many of these 

young people continue to require support after engagement with Prospects. Youth workers 

provide this additional support through offering young people the opportunity to volunteer 

and support their local community. As a result a number of young people have been 

supported to gain a local award in volunteering and engage with local projects, events and 

community action. Through maintaining this relationship workers have been able to offer 

‘Early Help’ and link young people and their families into additional support such as 

parenting groups, debt and housing advise and Families First.  

  Specialist Projects:  

Inclusion – the constituency wide provision attracts young people from Wyke, 

Queensbury, Royds, Wibsey, Great Horton and Tong. Now in its fifth year the 

project supports a wide range of young people with referrals from social care, local 

schools and individual families. Over 80% of the young people that attend this 

weekly provision are disabled and the project has seen young people grow from 

points of extreme isolation and vulnerability on initial contact to happy, social and 

confident young adults who are more able to engage in the wider community. In 

addition to providing a wide range of positive activities the club also supports 

parents by providing them with a place to meet and share experiences. The 

success of the project comes from the strength of several partnership with local 

organisations and the continued commitment of local volunteers.  Recently, 

members of the club have formed a committee and have started to develop a 

constituted Friends of Group with the view accessing additional funding.  

Child Sexual Exploitation - work in this area continues to develop and support a 

wide range of young people and families. Throughout the constituency youth 

workers provide one to one support to young people who are identified as being at 

risk of CSE by the Hub. Youth workers work closely with social care and referring 

agencies to provide support and reduce vulnerability. This work takes place in a 

variety of settings including specialist work in schools and within the community 

based provision. Over the last 12 months young people have been able to access 

specialist support in the form of a programme called ‘Build a Girl’ which explores 

issues of confidence, self-esteem, value and worth, individual identity and risk 

taking. As a result young people have been able to offer support to their peers and 

help others to stay safe. The Youth Service has developed a number of 

partnerships to help strength this work. The youth service continues to focus on 

early intervention and prevention and has worked closely with local primary schools 

to support the transition from primary to secondary school when young people can 

be at an increased risk.   

 

Page 78



 

79 

Active Citizens and Young People’s Contribution to Community Life 

Over the last year young people have been support to play a bigger part in their local 

community. Youth workers have helped young people to identify local needs and plan 

action in response to the needs. Over the last year young people have been supported to 

run community events such as the Women’s Event in Holme Wood, Bierley Fun Day, 

Christmas meals for Older residents in Wibsey and Wyke and Buttershaw on the Beach. In 

addition young people have made their local communities cleaner through several litter 

picks throughout the constituency and have also helped to promote the value of 

volunteering through working together and fund raising events. Many of these events have 

been supported through the YOF and have encouraged young people to continue to think 

and act on behalf of their local community.  

The youth service has developed a partnership with NCS who have provided volunteers 

from outside of the local area to participate in one off events and days of action. This has 

created the opportunity for young people from different backgrounds to come together and 

learn from one another. This has had an impact on a number of levels including raising the 

profile of young people and encouraging more to become involved in community life.  

 
Cross Cutting Themes  
Developing safer and strong communities are the two cross cutting themes that have been 
supported by the Youth Offer in Bradford South. Several of key agencies have worked in 
partnership with the Youth Service and community based organisations to address key 
issues affecting communities. Youth Service resources have been directed at Anti Social 
Behaviour that has impacted on all wards in south. The Youth Service and the Police have 
worked together to develop strategies and responses to emerging ASB concerns. The 
Youth Service continues to support community based organisations in Holmewood, 
Buttershaw, Woodside and Queensbury to build relationships with young people and 
change attitudes and behaviours that impact on the wider community. The impact of these 
partnerships has seen a number of groups of young people prevented from being involved 
in ASB. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Anthony Casson  -Advanced Practitioner – Bradford Youth Service  
20th March 2017.  

Page 79



 

80 

 
Appendix F – The Constituency Delivery under the key elements of the Youth Offer 
Keighley 
 

Information and Advice 
 

 Young people can access Information and Advice in their local youth projects. 

 Youth Workers and IAG staff have been actively involved in consulting with young 
people around the format for a new ‘Youth App’.   A group of 10 young people 
attended a meeting during February half-term at Margaret McMillan Tower to 
discuss this further. 

 The Youth Service and Customer Services are working together to look at ensuring 
there is IAG available at Keighley Town Hall. 

 A key achievement this year has been developing a ‘drop in’ session for young 
people at Keighley College Campus where young people can come along and join 
in activities, access youth support, including volunteering, and get IAG on a range 
of issues. 

 
Voice and Influence 
 
Young people are positively supported to engage in the development of their Youth 
Projects and are actively involved in the planning of the programmes being delivered 
across the Constituency.   They are invited to participate in consultation events and 
District-wide Voice and Influence Workshops.   Young people attend Area Committee 
Meetings plus attend meetings on an ad-hoc basis with their local Ward and Parish / Town 
Councillors.   In November 2016 a number of young people from Keighley participated in 
the ‘National Takeover Day’ and managed to spend some time with Senior Managers in 
Children’s Services, taking on roles in Schools and in Youth Centres and with our 
Voluntary Sector partners. 
 
Young Advisors’ Project - this is joint venture between Bradford Youth Service (Keighley) 
the Young Advisors’ Charity and Keighley Youth Co-op Ltd.  Young people volunteer their 
time and have attended training provided by the Young Advisors’ Charity, this took place in 
Doncaster.  They have developed their confidence and ability to use different methods 
enabling them to look their community in a new light and, in turn, take on a range of Youth 
Action projects.   They have helped to promote the participation of other young people and 
to raise awareness around issues such as emotional health and well-being, CSE, drug use 
and Voter Registration.   They’ve attended many Voice and Influence workshops including 
meetings with Local Councillors and have presented their work at Keighley Area 
Committee.   Currently they are working towards promoting re-cycling and they are 
involved in a project which will include making a greenhouse using plastic bottles.  
 
Young People Can - Young People from Keighley East, with support from their Youth 
Workers, have been successful in their negotiation for a donation from ABL Investments 
Ltd.   The money, in memory of Shazad Mahmood, is for young people from the local area 
to try new activities.   Ciara Lelas, 18, a young volunteer and active citizen said “Not only 
will it benefit young people but also the wider community, as they carry and share their 
skills throughout their lives. We're very thankful to ALB for kindly donating this money and 

Page 80



 

81 

investing in our potential. ”Aaran Bailey, owner of ALB, presented the cheque for £3,600 to 
young people on 6thFebruary on the steps of the Parkwood Rise Developments.  
Young people from the Keighley East area have been actively involved in the Big Local 
and, as part of this, Youth workers are working alongside a young volunteer to promote 
‘Big Local’ grants for youth activities. The team will ensure that young people are involved 
in the development of activity programmes and decision making around the allocation of 
funding. They will identify and visit groups / organisations interested in applying for the 
funding. Groups will be supported in developing their ideas and submitting grant 
applications. As part of this process young people will be encouraged to get involved in the 
Big Local to ensure that young people are represented in local decision making.   
 

 
Open Access 
Across the Keighley Constituency we have a range of Youth Projects in each of the Wards 
which are open for all young people to attend (see appendix)   These are delivered either 
by Youth Workers and/or Youth Workers in Partnership with local Communities and 
Volunteers. 
 

 Accessible to any young person within the ages of 11yrs – 19yrs (up to 25yrs with a 
disability) 

 Young people attend on a voluntary basis at a time convenient to them 

 Free membership to the service and its resources 

 Facilities for young people to meet with their peers in safety 

 Trusted adults to talk to about anything (no subject is taboo) 

 No minimum attendance requirements 

 Access to sports facilities, computers, information and resources 

 A place to discuss issues relevant to themselves, peers and wider society 

 Young people can gain new experiences and skills in a safe environment 
 
 
As part of encouraging healthy lifestyles and physical activity a number of cycling events 
took place in the parks across Keighley and Ilkley, i.e. Knowle Park, Victoria Park, 
Devonshire Park, the River Gardens at Ilkley and Stockbridge. 
 
Young People from the Bangladesh Community Association (Knowle Park area of 
Keighley) participated in environmental, interactive, hands-on activities which were led by 
the Yorkshire Dales Green Guardians.   This involved discovering woodland or water 
habitats and helping the environment such as tree planting, woodland maintenance or dry 
stone walling.   This visit supported and empowered young people to make the right 
decisions on environmental issues. 

 
Targeted provision 

 Early Help Panel – closer working arrangements with different professional 
agencies to meet the needs of young people.   This has involved the development 
of Girls’ Work at Braithwaite, group work with some young people around ASB in 
partnership with JAMES.    Also four WRAP (wellness recovery action plan) 
programmes at Keighley Young People’s Centre.   The WRAP sessions involved a 
number of workshops focussed on emotional well-being and individual ways of 
managing emotions.     

Page 81



 

82 

 Referrals from the CSE Hub began In December 2016.   

 A healthy relationship has developed between the Youth Service and Specialist 
Inclusion Project where currently two sessions are delivered on a weekly basis one 
in Ilkley (Mondays) and one at Keighley Young People’s Centre (Saturdays) for 
young people with disabilities.   

 SOUND Project - there are regular one-to-one and group work sessions for young 
people who are LGBTQ, and these take place in Keighley on a Tuesday evening.     

 Saturday Eastern European Youth Project - this open youth session is going from 
strength to strength with 20+ plus young people attending each week.   
Programmes incorporating recreational activities, themed workshops, cook and 
eats, information, advice and guidance and life skills are developed and delivered 
with input from young people. Young people are increasing their confidence and 
self-esteem and accessing wider services which they were previously unaware of.  
Feedback from schools also indicates an improvement in attendance, attainment 
and engagement in school activities since the young people have attended the 
youth sessions.   

 
Active Citizens and young people’s contribution to Community Life 
 
Young people are actively contributing to their local communities in a number of ways.   
 

 In Oxenhope young people are taking on leadership roles within the local youth club 
and one young person is also a member of the Parish Council and is actively 
involved in the links between the Youth Project, the Community and the Parish 
Council.  

 Young People Rise to the Challenge - Due to the Silsden Youth Centre site 
undergoing a number of changes during the last 3 months, some young people 
have come together to further develop the current youth provision and as such are 
actively looking at different ways of raising funds. Suggestions so far include events 
at a local school, a Sleep-over, a BBQ and a Community Fun Day.    

 We are lucky that a number of young people have taken on a leadership role within 
their Youth Projects and have also become involved as BeFrienders in our Inclusion 
Projects across the Constituency. 

 Young People Community Clean-up Day at Riverside Park, Ilkley - The purpose of 
this event is to encourage young people to take part in litter picking in the park and 
surrounding areas of Ilkley.  This activity aims to promote healthier lifestyles, reduce 
litter and waste, improve perceptions of young people and also encourage young 
people to take responsibility and pride in their environment. 

 CAP (Community alcohol Partnership), Ilkley.    Youth Workers have been actively 
involved in this partnership by supporting young people to participate so as Partner 
Agencies could hear the voices of young people in terms of delivering a ‘needs led’ 
response.   As part of this Healthy Lives Healthy Futures Event was delivered at 
The Warehouse, Ilkley and young people were afforded the opportunity to access 
information on health related issues such as healthy relationships, nutrition, and 
drug and alcohol awareness. Services will provide interactive and fun activities 
which promote healthy lifestyles and well-being. 

 

Abina Dorgan-Smith -Advanced Practitioner – Bradford Youth Service  
20th March 2017.  

Page 82



 

83 

Appendix F – The Constituency Delivery under the key elements of the Youth Offer 
Shipley  

 
Information and Advice 

 Shipley Youth café working in partnership with 16-2-25 Advice, Advocacy, Action 

organisation to deliver 8 hours per week one to one IAG at Shipley Youth Café. 

 Fundraising activities have been taking place to support Shipley wide group 

Information, Advice and Guidance sessions in partnership with 16-2-25 with a view 

to early intervention and prevention. 

 All youth provision and detached youth work sessions all have access to internet 

based IAG.  

Voice and Influence 

 Young People from across the Shipley are have come together to establish the 

“Shipley Voice group” . This group has identified key issues and needs of young 

people to be addressed next year. They have also attended a residential weekend 

to explore what it means to be a Shipley Voice member and to develop ideas on 

how to consult with other young people in the Shipley Constituency.  

 All units involve young people in planning youth sessions (12 week plans) and 

evaluation of sessions and projects. 

 Young People’s Steering Groups operate in all Youth Service provisions 

 Young people have attended a number of district wide Voice and Influence groups, 

eg, Public Forum for Education, consultation group on the development of the IAG 

App.  

 Young people have attended Neighbourhood Forums in all areas. 

 Young people have 2 places on Baildon Town Council’s Community Committee.  

 Baildon Youth Council established.  

 Over 100 young people registered to vote in Shipley Constituency.  

 6 young people involved in the Takeover Challenge working in a range of roles from 

Council Warden to Family Support Worker to Administrative Assistant.  

Open Access 

 Over 60 hours per week open access youth work delivered per week in the Shipley 

Constituency at the following venues:: 

Bingley Youth Café, Shipley Youth Café, Highcroft Youth Centre, Ian Clough Hall  
Cottingley Cornerstone, Harden Memorial Hall, Wilsden Village Hall, Denholme 
Youth Café, Queens Hall, Burley, and in Kirklands Community Centre, Menston 
  

 All open access provision offers a range of activities including issue based 

workshops, arts and crafts sessions, sports sessions, group discussions around 

topical issues and access to information, advice and guidance. 

 
 
 

Page 83



 

84 

Targeted Work 

 Inclusion sessions at Bingley Youth café on Monday and Thursday: 5.30pm – 

7.30pm. 

 Shipley LGBT group meets periodically and a number of individual young people 

have been supported to attend other provision such as Sound and Phoenix and 

received one to one support with transgender issues. 

 CSE event held at Shipley Youth Café in partnership with Placement Support 

Service with young people taking a clear volunteering role and running workshops 

with other young people.   

 35 young homeless people supported through the provisions at Shipley Youth Café 

this year. 

 200 young people supported to find education or employment at Shipley Youth 

Café.   

 Partnership Project with HALE to address issues around CSE. This piece of work 

was targeted to areas where youth workers had concerns around the risky 

behaviours of some young people.  

 
Active Citizens and young people’s contribution to Community Life 

 Intergenerational weekly session at Denholme Youth Café where young people 

have opened up the Youth Café to the public. The young people are involved in 

baking cakes and serving tea and coffee for other community members.  

 National Lottery Funding raised in partnership with Denholme Youth Café to 

develop the Love Denholme project where young people will be involved in making 

old fashioned fairground games to be used at Denholme Children’s gala.  

 Young people have volunteered at a number of community galas including Wrose 

Gala, Cottingley Gala and Denholme Children’s Gala. 

 Young people have been involved in a number of community clean ups and litter 

picks in areas such as Baildon, Cottingley and Baildon.  

 Coffee mornings held in partnership with the Church at Cottingley Cornerstone.  

 Two young people serving on Denholme Youth Café Management Committee.  

 Young people gave over 2060 volunteering hours in their local community  

 International Women’s Day events at Denholme Youth Café and Shipley Youth 

Café where 3 young people made a total of 56 pancakes for other young people!  

 Shipley youth volunteer achieved the accolade of VInspired’s Volunteer of the 

Month in May 2016. 

 Intergenerational bowling session in Baildon delivered by young people as a means 

of challenging anti social behaviour at the Bowling Club and to improve the 

relationships between young people and older members of the community.  

 Baildon young people served a Christmas meal to older members of the 

community.  

Page 84



 

85 

 The Youth Service worked in partnership with the Prince’s Trust where a group of 

young people established a cinema room at Highcoft Youth Centre. This involved 

clearing out the room, preparing the walls with plaster and painting.  

 Young volunteer involved in delivering training to new volunteers.  

 Young people at Highcroft Youth Centre involved in a project around recycling and 

waste management. As a result of their involvement, they developed leaflet designs 

to encourage the wider community to re-use and recycle.  

 

Carys Bose -Advanced Practitioner – Bradford Youth Service  
20th March 2017.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 

86 

 
Appendix F – The VCFS contributions under the key elements of the Youth Offer  

 
 

VCS contributions to the Youth Offer: some examples 
 
 
 
There are a wide range of different voluntary, community and faith providers that provide 
activities and support for young people in the district. These include 
 

 Activity to support particular interests (arts, drama, junior sports clubs)  

 Alternative education providers  

 Play and adventurous activities (e.g. Big Swing / Eccleshill Adventure playground, Forest 
Schools network,  

 Specialist support (e.g. mental health, counselling) 

 Uniformed organisations (scouts, Guides, Cadets, Boys/Girls Brigade) and similar 
(Woodcraft Folk) 

 Faith based provision hosted by churches, mosques, gurdwaras, temples, or faith inspired 
organisations 

 
Some organisations operate on a very local basis and others on a district wide basis. 
Young Lives supports them with information and guidance and signposts them, to sources 
of support.  

 
There an estimated 200+ organisations that contribute to the youth offer in some way, 
Here are just a few examples of their activities – the majority of the activities listed below 
are predominantly or fully funded from sources other than the Council, although in some 
cases a small amount of Council funding has enabled the leveraging of much greater 
external funding).   

 

1. Information and Advice 
 16-2-25 advice service runs 5 session per week , 3 at culture fusion and 2 from Shipley 

youth café. They mainly advise around homelessness, housing. welfare benefits and debt 
and see on average between 25 and 30 young people a week on a drop in basis. They 
refer and signpost to all relevant organisations in the area, as well as working closely with, 
leaving care service , youth service, bradford college amongst other young peoples  
services. This is supported through lottery and trust funding. 

 

 BYDP: IAG does not have to be a separate service. BYDP describes how it embeds IAG 
within its wider offer. “we do  not provide IAG as a service. However, staff provide IAG 
support frequently in conversation with young people engaging on programmes. Typically 

Page 86



 

87 

this involves support for ‘making appropriate choices’ which may include behaviour with 
younger people and support for courses and work with older people.” 

 

2. Voice and Influence  
 Young Lives Bradford survey of organisations in 2016 indicated: 

o 81% of organisations involve young people in the governance of their organisation 
o 96% of organisations involve young people in  Planning the  activities and priorities 

of their organisation 
o 68% involve young people in the recruitment of staff  
o 88 % involve you8ng people in the running of activities (e.g. as volunteers)  

2017 data is currently being collected.  

 
 Barnardos undertake a significant amount of work supporting young people to have their 

voice heard, especially on mental health issues 

 
 Centrepoint runs a youth council, to gather views of young people and influence change 

 
 Emerge run youth councils operating in both BD4 and BD3, 8 – 10 YP involved in each, 

engaging with influencing their provision and local issues 
 

 Brathay: currently deliver a project “Have your voice” to young offenders which works with 
small numbers of young offenders who are in the system and who have been in the system 
to establish a core group of young people to take part in consultation of their experience of 
being involved with the Youth Offending Team, identify what it was like having received a 
service from the YOT, which has increased confidence and self-esteem and helped the 
young people feel empowered that their voice is valued.  

 
 BYDP: hosted the spotlight events held in Bradford to engage young people with decision 

makers. BYDP carries out research activities to understand the concerns of young people. 
An application has been submitted to the Government (Communities Fund) to support 
further research into the views and needs of local young people through the Extend Project 
in partnership with BMDC. 
 

 

3. Open Access  
 Uniformed groups: Uniformed groups provide a range of open access activities. Foer 

example Bradford Sea Cadets offer “Youth development and lifelong learning.  Through 
leadership, teamwork, friendship and self-belief the Sea Cadets help young people find 
their sense of direction: we broaden horizons and create possibilities with the aim of 
helping young people see the world through new eyes and with new confidence.” 66% of 
cadets said that attending Sea Cadets improved their attendance and engagement in 
school;  93% said it helped them gain qualifications; 94% said it provided them with the 
skills they need in later life; 88% said it will help them get a job. Their work is funded by 
subscriptions and local donations and volunteer activity.  

 
 Emerge runs a total of 28 open access sessions of youth work each week across the 

following areas (Brierley – 7 sessions per week; West Bowling – 2; East Bowling – 6; 
Windhill – 4; Undercliffe – 4; Laisterdyke – 3; Holme Wood – 2). These sessions have a 
range of content from detached work, tradition drop in youth sessions, sports sessions, 
music sessions, arts and crafts and cohesion initiatives. Most groups are for 11+ young 
people, but a couple are children’s sessions. They are all run in partnership with a local 
group providing a venue (e.g. Bierley Community Centre, Community Works in Undercliffe), 
and funding comes from a range of local sources and large and small national funders. 

Page 87



 

88 

 
 JAMES: Have been awarded doorstep sports funding from street games. This funds open 

access football sessions 3 evenings per week and pays for the hire of centres for 2 of those 
sessions. They also have a partnership with Bradford park avenue funded through the 
football association. JAMES has  been delivering homeless football and work in schools as 
well as tournaments and drop ins at bradford park avenue grounds. 

 
 Forest Schools: There is a range of Forest School provision including from Get out more 

CIC to provide adventurous and educational activities outside.  

 
 

4. Targeted Provision  
 Brathay  offer Saturday provision to young offenders who are on ISS orders, cook & eat, 

music, targeted interventions, and sports activities. They also offer CSE Awareness – 
funded through the PCC and Brathay Bursaries to deliver sessions around cyber bullying, 
social media, keeping yourself safe, its ok to talk, these sessions have been delivered to 
primary/secondary schools. They also offer tenancy ready programme – funded through 
Trust funds brought in through fundraising  to deliver skills around independent living skills 
to 15-18 years to develop their skills of living on their own,  

 
 BYDP has a specialism in social, emotional and behavioural support through its youth work 

and has been successful in gaining funding for activities that target those most in need. 
BYDP has a strong local community presence which significantly enhances its impact and 
engagement with harder-to-reach families. Our Youth Ambitions project based in 
Manningham (BMDC funding) is developing older pupil’s to take leadership responsibility 
for volunteering, such as in youth work activities. BYDP has just started the 3 year Youth 
Start programme (funded by BBC Children In Need). Activities around the city will focus on 
young people aged 8-18 and provide opportunities to experience and develop new skills, 
work together and increase inclusion, build resilience, self confidence and capacity to be 
effective citizens. 

 
 Emerge: Runs a range of targeted groups in each of the above areas including some girls 

only small groups and healthy lifestyle groups, along with a couple of faith based groups in 
partnership with local churches. They also run regular Sports Leader awards for young 
people and partners with schools to deliver interventions with individuals and groups as 
required. 

 
 Snoop:  Provides day time and evening services and activities, including holiday schemes, 

with a focus on life/independence and social skills for young adults with learning disabilities.  
They support young adults through the transition from special school into adulthood and 
support them to identify their own person goals and targets to help them gain the 
confidence they need to become more independent, make choices and take more control 
of their own lives in a person centred approach.  In addition they are a registered provider 
of ASDAN accredited awards for ‘Towards Independence’  and their young adults manage 
the Bradford Safe Place Scheme, known as the ‘Help I’m Lost Card Scheme’. 

 
 Dance United Yorkshire: Provides Specialist high-quality arts intervention working with 

some of the most vulnerable and disengaged children and young people across Bradford 
and Yorkshire. Bespoke intensive and short term projects are delivered to predominantly 12 
– 21yr olds referred from a range of services across the city in order to provoke sustainable 
and life-long change. DUY offers a unique arts experience which has a track record of 
transforming the lives of young people who are living on the margins of society.  

Page 88



 

89 

 
 Springfield Community Centre has secured £8500.00 from big lottery to provide free 

 meals and deliver healthy eating and nutrition workshops/sessions to young people in 
BD10/2 throughout the summer holidays addressing again the poverty experience by the 
most disadvantaged young people.  

 
 
5. Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community life  

 Brathay Trust deliver through Princes Trust programme, Team and Community challenges 
where young people go out and work with communities i.e. producing films around 
Refugees and their struggle and what its like to be a refugee, painted houses and tidying 
up gardens, producing packs to be given out on mental health awareness and where young 
people can be sign posted to, delivered a programme to people suffering from dementia, 
delivering fun activities and story time, and clean up campaigns.  Young people also 
fundraise in order to carry out the community activities.  This is part of their Princes Trust 
experience. 

 Emerge: Run a regular young leaders course in 2 or 3 venues (E and W Bowling, 
Laisterdyke) enabling young people to become volunteers and tackle local community 
projects 

 
 NCS: Young people on the National Citizens Service raised £1,100 in a variety of activities 

to fund other youth work in the District and are therefore investing back into provision in the 
district.  

 
 Bradford Volunteer Centre has been active in promoting information about volunteering 

and the People Can Make A Difference campaign to young people and have reached over 
1000 young people 15-18 in the District giving volunteering workshops in the following 
schools ; Dixons City Academy, St Bedes, Beckfoot Upperheaton, Bradford Girls Grammar. 
At Bradford Girls Grammar School the 67 pupils volunteered 2600 hours. 

 
Funding 
The Bradford District Community Fund is generating money for community projects and 
distributed grants from a bank to Emerge to fund ongoing youth work see this amazing video. 
https://www.facebook.com/bradforddcf/videos/1314346835274828/ 
The Community Fund also gave grants to sports clubs affected by the floods that provide youth 
sports and the monies were raised in a public appeal. The Bradford District Community Fund is 
currently accepting applications for the Pears Youth Fund to fund ongoing youth work and is in the 
process of distribution youth grants for Bradford Council. 
 
Demonstrating impact 
Emerge: are able to evidence that they work with over 500 young people weekly, and in the last 
12 months 1700 individuals were involved. Key outcomes are personal growth (confidence, self-
esteem, social skills improved), increased attendance and achievement at school (evidenced by 
schools), reduced involvement in ASB, increase health and wellbeing and safer communities. 
 
BYDP has made application to the Government Communities Fund for the Extend Project to 
develop standards and examples of best practice. If successful BYDP will work alongside BMDC to 
review, evaluate and develop ways for providers to learn and improve their own practices. 
Ultimately this knowledge will improve the value of activity with young people, increase the skills of 

organisations and provide helpful ways to ensure funding is making a bigger difference. 
 
Young Lives Bradford 
20 March 2017     younglivesbradgford@bradfordcvs.org.uk  

Page 89

https://www.facebook.com/bradforddcf/videos/1314346835274828/
mailto:younglivesbradgford@bradfordcvs.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Bradford Youth Voice Framework

  Youth activity     V
iewpoint

     C
onnexions     A

dvocacy

      B
DCHT Patie

nt 

       
       

  Experie
nce Group

       
       

       
  School Councils

VCS Groups

      C
hild

ren in Care Council

       
Youth Offe

r Activity

      N
eighbourhood work

     H
ealth

, Educatio
n and 

       
       

  Social Care 

       
       

       
Planning

STRATEGY
GROUPS

Children’s Trust 

Bradford 
Safeguarding 

Children’s Board

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Board

Children’s 
Overview 

and Scrutiny 
Committee

Children’s TIG

Regional structures

Children’s Trust

Social media engagement

Underpinned by Bradford Youth Voice Standards

Youth People’s Challenge Panels Young people’s forums /
networks / Youth Voice events

P
age 91



Regional Structures 
These are the opportunities for Bradford’s young people to have their voices 
heard and to influence developments that are further reaching. These may 
be West Yorkshire wide, or within the Yorkshire and Humber Region or the 
development of key initiatives like the Northern Powerhouse. 

The Children’s Trust 
The Trust holds responsibility for the Children, Young People and Families’ 
Plan. The plan has the priorities for our work with children, young people and 
families in the District. One of these priorities is about how our services hear the 
voice of children and young people. They will receive reports from organisations 
and young people and ensure that all the agencies working with the Children’s 
Trust are activity listening and responding to what young people are saying. 
They will involve young people when the plan is reviewed each year. 

Young People’s Challenge Panel(s)
This is a local opportunity for young people to come together to share concerns 
and comments, or to speak directly to adults who make key decisions in relation 
to services for young people. This may be decision makers and budget holders 
within the Council, health or education. It may be those who buy services or 
those who deliver services for young people. 

Young People’s Forums / Networks / Youth Voice Events 
These are forums held locally or for the District on subjects that are identified by 
young people and the district as priorities. These enable young people to come 
together to discuss things that are important to them and to identify actions 
they can take themselves or, where they can, work with others to make things 
better. They are also used to talk about things that may need to be taken to a 
challenge panel for further discussion with key decision makers.  

Bradford Youth Voice Standards
These are the underpinning standards which are being developed that will 
help organisations make a judgement on how good they are at listening 
and responding to young peoples voices. These standards will be used by 
organisations so they are better at supporting young people who use their 
services. They will mean young people have access to a wider range of 
opportunities to have their voices heard.  

Social Media Engagement 
This is a growing opportunity to talk to a wider group of young people in 
the district to seek their views on particular issues or developments. This is 
intended to be used for one-off consultations so we can better understand 
what’s important for young people. Social media will also be used to promote 
the opportunities to attend Youth Forums, be part of a Network or District Youth 
Voice Events. 

For more information 
about the Youth Voice 
Framework, contact 
Heather Wilson, 
Bradford Council’s 
Commissioner for Youth 
Provision.

Email: heather.wilson@
bradford.gov.uk
Tel: 01274 431781
Mob: 07582 100 692

P
age 92



Where we visited

The Children’s Commissioner’s  
visit to Bradford

Children and young people’s Feedback

Children’s 
homes

Youth Service 
inclusion provision 

Children’s 
centres

SchoolsThe information 
shop

Young people 
leaving care and 

in supported 
accommodation

The Children in 
Care Council 

Youth centres

The Better Start 
project 

The Children’s 
Commissioner spoke 

at the Public Forum for 
Education 

It was very helpful to visit you on 4 & 5 March 2016. We 
wanted to explore your experience of growing up in Bradford 
and hear your suggestions for improvements locally. 

The views and experiences of children and young people 
help us better understand and improve things in Bradford and 
across England.

We would like to thank you for meeting with us. We have 
shared your thoughts and ideas with decision makers in Bradford, including Michael 
Jameson, Strategic Director of Children’s Services. They are looking at how they can use 
what you told us to make a difference where you live, learn and play.

Page 93



What was good

The Children’s Commissioner’s  
visit to Bradford
Children and young people’s Feedback

The relationships and support from adults is very important 
and one of the best things about Bradford. 

ÂÂStaff want the best for children and young people and for things to  
    be better

ÂÂYou felt there was someone to talk to if you needed help and the  
    info shop was good

ÂÂ  Young people who have been homeless talked about specialist  
     help with their emotional wellbeing and mental health.

Community, was very important 

ÂÂYou told us there was a strong sense of community among people based on their  
    street, their ethnicity, faith, background or the services they received e.g. from a  
    youth club. 

ÂÂThere is a rich mix of people and you want to better value the diversity of Bradford,  
    the children’s centre semed to be working well at bringing children and  
    communities together.

It feels safer in the summer in Bradford 
ÂÂThere are parks and spaces where you can hang-out, meet 

and have fun with friends 
ÂÂThe Turnaround project was helpful and needed, particularly to 

keep girls safe.
Adults listen to you

ÂÂYou often felt listened to and heard by adults about your  
    own care or support, who then try to make a difference.

Valuing opportunities

ÂÂYou value any opportunities, places to go and help that 
Bradford provides.

“He’s like the dad 
I never had  

but all the staff 
are good”

“[Best thing about Bradford]I like the diversity of Bradford there are lots of 
different races and ethnicities”

‘It’s important to have people who just get you but some people are shy and 
need help to say what they want and how they feel’.

Page 94



What you were worried about or could be improved

The Children’s Commissioner’s  
visit to Bradford
Children and young people’s Feedback

Community can sometimes feel limited and you felt they 
sometimes divided and excluded people 

ÂÂSome groups (around streets, neighbourhoods, gender, race,  
    faith but also things like dress and appearance) feel isolated and  
    separate to the wider community.

ÂÂYou wanted to get to know people who seemed different or were  
    from different backgrounds but needed more help to do this, you  
    wanted adults to get this.

Some children in children’s homes 

ÂÂWere worried about homelessness and that it could happen to anyone
ÂÂSome girls and young women were worried about being safe on the street
ÂÂThe police were called too often to sort out small things.

All the young people we met over 16 wanted more 
opportunities and jobs so that they could feel proud and 
stay in Bradford.

You wanted to share your views and be taken seriously 
across a range of subjects, such as education, leisure,  
transport, jobs and so help improve children and young  
people’s lives. 

Safety was a key issue

ÂÂ It can feel very unsafe when it is dark. There were several experiences that  
    worried you and made you feel unsafe, like feeling threatended or mugged

ÂÂThere is not much to do which can lead to young people getting into trouble.

“The police are called all the time for nothing…like parents wouldn’t call 
the police for something like [that]”

“Diversity is our strength but also our struggle”

“They all wear trackies and trainers and go about together...they smash windows and run off because 
there is nothing to do”

“If we are all mixed 
up more in all 

different places 
doing thing together, 

would be better”

Thank you for sharing your experiences  
of life in Bradford!Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services to the 
meeting of the Children’s Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to be held on 11th April 2017 

 
 

           AP 
Subject:   
 
School Capital Funding and School Expansion Programme 2017-2018 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report details the school expansion projects the Authority is currently 
undertaking. 

Michael Jameson 
Director for Children’s Services 

Portfolio:   
 
Education, Employment and Skills 
 

Report Contact: Judith Kirk,  
Assistant Director of Children’s 
Services 
Phone: (01274) 431078 
E-mail: judith.kirk@bradford.gov.uk 

  
Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Children’s Services 
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 7/



 

1. SUMMARY 
 
School Capital Funding and School Expansion Programme 2017-2018 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
The Council has a programme of school expansions which it is delivering to ensure that all 
Children have a school place available. To date many of the expansion projects have been 
at primary school level but secondary Schools are now been expanded as the increased 
pupil numbers move through from primary to secondary schools. 
Schools Capital Maintenance Grant and Devolved Formula Capital allocations are 
expected to be announced by the EFA in March/April 2017 for all Councils.  
The EFA are also expected to announce the level of Basic Need funding allocated for 
Bradford in 2019-2020.  Basic Need funding is the money the EFA allocates to Local 
Authorities to use for School expansion projects so the Council can fulfill its duty to make 
sure there are enough school places for children in the local area. 
 
 

3. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
School Expansions 
 
The following school expansion projects are currently being delivered.  Some of the 
projects are delivered in a number of stages to minimise the impact on schools and to fit 
with the funding allocations the Council is given.   
 
The list below updates the status of schemes reported to this Committee in April 2016. 
 

SCHOOL STAGE CURRENT STATUS DESCRIPTION PLACES 

Idle C of E Primary Stage 1 Complete Expansion 210 

Barkerend Primary Stage 1 In Construction Expansion 210 

Lidget Green Primary Stage 1 Complete Expansion 105 

Stocks Lane Primary Stage 1 Complete  Expansion 

}105 Stocks Lane Stage 2  Design Development Expansion 

Eldwick Primary  Stage 3 Complete Expansion 105 

Haworth Primary  Stage 3 Complete Expansion 105 

Ingrow Primary  Stage 3 Complete Expansion 210 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 98



 

Executive have approved expansion of the following schools. 
 

SCHOOL STAGE CURRENT STATUS DESCRIPTION NEW 
PLACES 
CREATED 

Ilkley Grammar Stage 1 Design Development  Expansion 195 

Silsden  Stage 1 Design Development Expansion – 
new school 
building for the 
merging 
Aireview 
infants & 
Hothfield 
Schools 

105 

Immanuel College  Stage 1 Design Development Expansion 300 

Parkside Secondary Stage 1 Design Development Expansion 150 

 
 
Executive has approved the publication of statutory notices to expand the following 
schools: 
 

SCHOOL STAGE DESCRIPTION 

All Saints Primary (Ilkley) Stage 1 Expansion 

Poplars Farm Primary Stage 1 Expansion 

 
The statutory notice period has not elapsed and Executive have not yet given full approval 
for expansions to proceed.  The notice period begins on the 27th April and ends 4 weeks 
later. 
 
Schemes in Excess of £2million 
 
For some schemes whilst the individual stages of expansion will be less than £2million  
over a number of stages the total cost may be in excess of this. Stocks Lane will cost in 
excess of £2million as will Barkerend, Ilkley, Silsden, and Immanuel.  
 
Schools Capital Maintenance Grant Allocations 

 
Since 2008 the Schools Capital Maintenance Grant (CMG) made to the Council has been 
as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



 

 
 

Table 1: Schools Capital Maintenance Grant 

  

Year DfE CMG Allocation Annual % Change 

2008-09 £5,392,740   

2009-10 £5,818,955 7.9% 

2010-11 £5,818,955 0.0% 

2011-12 £7,884,044 35.5% 

2012-13 £6,351,482 -19.4% 

2013-14 £6,137,430 -3.4% 

2014-15 £5,614,808 -8.5% 

2015-16 £5,877,114 4.7% 

2016-17 £5,856,472 -0.04% 

2017-18 To Be Announced % 

Total     

 
The Schools Capital Maintenance Grant for 2017/18 has yet to be announced and is 
expected from the EFA in March/April 2017. The Council’s Building & Technical Services 
Team will then identify the next batch of school building improvement projects which the 
money can be allocated to which will include window replacements, new boilers, roof 
renewals, electrical and structural works.  

 
School Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) 
 

In addition to the Schools Capital Maintenance Grant, Schools also receive a DFC 
allocation. This money is now passed directly to schools. 

 
Table 2: Annual School Devolved Formula Grant 

 

Year School DFC Allocation Annual % Change 

2008-09 £8,282,303   

2009-10 £8,116,273 -2.0% 

2010-11 £7,531,530 -7.2% 

2011-12 £1,567,639 -79.2% 

2012-13 £1,488,626 -5.0% 

2013-14 £1,453,034 -2.4% 

2014-15 £1,317,713 -9.3% 

2015-16 £1,310,363 -0.6% 

2016-17 £1,315,559 0.4% 

2017-18 Yet to be Allocated % 

      

 
 
 
 

Page 100



 

Basic Need Funding Allocation 
 
The announcement has yet to be announced for 2019-2020 funding. 
 
Table 3: Basic Need Funding 

 

Year Basic Need Allocation Annual % Change 

2010-11 £11,009,000   

2011-12 £17,729,194 61.0% 

2012-13 £19,611,561 10.6% 

2013-14 £7,644,753 -61.0% 

2014-15 £7,644,753 0.0% 

2015-16 £9,223,125 20.6% 

2016-17 £9,684,281 5.0% 

2017-18 £727,005 -92.5% 

2018-19 £23,839,673  3,179% 

2019-20 Yet to be Allocated % 

 
 

 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
The Council requires a Basic Need allocation that will provide sufficient funds to allow it to 
continue to expand schools to deal with the forecast increase in pupil numbers across the 
District.  The Council requires the Capital Maintenance Grant to fund major school repairs. 
 
5. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
There are no legal issues arising from this report.   
 
6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
6.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
None 
 
6.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
All school improvement projects and school expansion schemes are carried out to current 
building standards.  Energy efficient boilers, LED lighting and high levels of insulation are 
used wherever possible. 
 
6.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
None. 
 

Page 101



 

6.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
6.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
None. 
 
6.6 TRADE UNION IMPLICATIONS 
 
None.   
 
6.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
Section 3 shows the list of schools expansions which are being undertaken/planned in 
different wards across the District. 
 
7. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
None. 
 
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee notes the report. 
 
9. APPENDICES 
 
None  

 
10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 12th April 2016 regarding 
EFA capital announcements and the school capital investment programme. 

 
 
 

Page 102



 

 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services to the 
meeting of the Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee to be held on 11 April 2017. 
 
 

           AQ 
Subject:   
 
Schools Forum Update 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee has asked for a regular 
update on the work of the Schools Forum. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Michael Jameson 
Strategic Director, Children’s Services 

Portfolio:   
 
Education, Employment and Skills 
 

Report Contact:  Andrew Redding, 
Business Advisor (Schools) 
Phone: (01274) 432678 
E-mail: andrew.redding@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Children’s Services 
 

 
 

Page 103

Agenda Item 8/



 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Committee has asked for regular updates to be provided on the work of the 

Schools Forum.  
 
1.2 The last update was presented to the Committee on 24 January 2017. The Schools 

Forum has met once since on 15 March 2017. The decisions list from the 15 March 
meeting is attached at Appendix 1. The 2nd spring term Schools Forum meeting is 
typically low key in terms of agenda items, falling between the DSG setting process 
and the presentation of more detailed information about the position of school 
balances, which is available following the closure of accounts in May. As a result, 
this is a short update report. 

 
1.3 As the Committee will be aware, the Schools Forum’s recommendations for the 

allocation of the 2017/18 DSG were ratified by Council on 24 February 2017. The 
Local Authority is now engaged in delivering these recommendations.  

 
1.4 The Government’s 2nd stage of consultation on Schools and High Needs Block 

National Funding Formula arrangements was published on 14 December 2016. The 
deadline for responses to this consultation was 22 March 2017. The Local 
Authority’s / School Forum’s response is attached for the Committee’s information 
at Appendix 2 . It is expected that the outcomes of the consultation, and final details 
on the National Funding Formula, will be announced by the DfE towards the end of 
the summer term. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Under national Regulations, every local authority is required to operate a Schools 

Forum. The primary function of a Schools Forum is to recommend to the Council’s 
Executive Committee how the funding, which the Government provides for schools 
and individual pupils (known as the Dedicated Schools Grant), is managed. The 
Forum also has some specific technical decision making powers. The DfE has 
stressed that it is essential that Forum membership arrangements keep pace with 
the changing landscape, in particular the conversion of maintained schools to 
academy status. The Forum must consider annually how best to provide for 
responsive arrangements, to ensure the Forum remains representative and to avoid 
any unintended bias towards any one phase.  

 
2.2 29 maintained schools have converted to academy status between 1 September 

2016 and 1 March 2017. There are currently 9 academy members on Bradford’s 
Schools Forum, alongside 18 representatives of maintained schools. 

  
2.3 The Schools Forum meets every half term with an additional meeting in the autumn. 
 
 
 

Page 104



 

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 

3.1    The Committee may wish to focus on the National Funding Formula consultation 
and the latest news from Government regarding the implementation of this. The 
Local Authority’s response is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
3.2 The reports to the Schools Forum meeting on 15 March provided updates on a 

number of DSG and school budget matters, including an interim update on the 
anticipated volume of conversions of maintained schools to academy status in 
Bradford and the likelihood of liabilities resulting from the conversion of schools 
holding deficit budgets. The report to the Forum stated: 

 

 Since February 2016, the Local Authority has completed the financial close of 13 
maintained schools that have converted to academy status. None of these have 
closed with deficit budgets. A total of £1.90m of surplus balances has been paid 
across for these 13 conversions. 
 

 The Local Authority is currently processing the financial closures of 24 maintained 
schools that have converted to academy, 4 of which are sponsored academies i.e. 
there have been 37 conversions of maintained schools to academy status in total 
between February 2016 and March 2017. There is risk of a small value of deficit in 
one of these 24 conversions (a primary sponsored academy). However, on current 
information, the other 23 schools will convert with surplus balances. We will 
continue to keep the Schools Forum informed about the position of these 
conversions. 
 

 At 1 March 2017 we have 133 maintained schools. We have immediate sight of 
around 30 schools that are planning conversion / may convert / are likely to convert 
during 2017. The position is moving regularly. 5 of these 30 would potentially be 
regarded as sponsored academies. On current information, there is risk of a small 
value of deficit in one of the 5 potential sponsored conversions (a primary 
sponsored academy) and risk of a larger value of deficit in a secondary sponsored 
academy conversion. 
 

 In terms of the financial positions of maintained schools generally, at March 2016 
we had 6 maintained schools in deficit. At March 2017, we currently forecast that 10 
maintained schools will be in deficit. 10 represents 7.5% of our total number of 
maintained schools. We are seeing a general reduction in the values of balances 
held by maintained schools. The schools that are still maintained held a net £15.2m 
surplus balance at March 2016 and are currently forecasting to hold a net £7.7m at 
March 2017. Although we expect that the forecast of £7.7m is an underestimation, 
as schools have historically underestimated their balances in their prior-year end 
forecasts, this does identify that the values of balances are reducing. 71% of our 
schools forecast to have in year deficits in 2016/17 (where in year spending 
exceeds in year income and the school’s budget is supported by the use of carry 
forward balances). The Schools Forum will receive a report about 2016/17 final 
balances; deficits and surpluses in May 2017 and a report on forecasted 2017/18 
budget positions in July 2017. 

Page 105



 

 
 
 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
 

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
 

Page 106



 

7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  
(for reports to Area Committees only) 

 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
Not applicable – this is an update for information. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Committee Members are asked to consider and to note the information 
provided in this update. 

.   
 

11. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Decisions List 15 March 2017 
Appendix 2 – National Funding Formula Consultation Response 
 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
None 

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

DECISIONS OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM HELD ON 
WEDNESDAY 15 MARCH 2015 

 
 
DECISIONS:  
  
1. MATTERS RAISED BY SCHOOLS 
 
No resolution was passed on this item. 
 
 
2. STANDING ITEM – DSG GROWTH FUND ALLOCATIONS 
 
No resolution was passed on this item. 
 
 
3. NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA – CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

 
(1) That the drafted response to the DfE’s 2nd stage of consultation on National 

Funding Formula be supported. 
 

(2) Members should return any additional comments on the proposed response 
directly to the Business Advisor (Schools) before the 22 March deadline. 

 
ACTION: Business Advisor (schools) 

 
 
4. UPDATE ON MATTERS CONCERNING THE 2017/18 DEDICATED SCHOOLS 

GRANT 

 
(1) That Document HG be noted. 

 
(2) That a detailed update on the Authority’s SEND Review be presented to the next 

Schools Forum meeting. 
 
LEAD: Business Advisor (Schools) 

 
 
5. MATTERS CONCERNING SCHOOL AND ACADEMY BUDGETS 

 
(1) That Document HH be noted. 

 
(2) That an update on the position of school and academy delegated budgets be 

made a standing agenda item in School Forum meetings. 
 

Page 109



(3) That the values of the lump sum payments to be made by individual schools to 
the West Yorkshire Pension Fund be provided. 

 

(4) That analysis be presented on the funding streams that make up the 
Government’s “£40bn” of spending on schools; how this is distributed between 
grants and how much of this is allocated into Bradford, to inform further 
discussion on the position of school and academy budgets and opportunities for 
access to these funding streams.  

 
LEAD: Business Advisor (Schools) 

 
 
6. OTHER SCHOOLS FORUM STANDING ITEMS 
 
No resolution was passed on this item. 
 
 
7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS (AOB) 
 
(1) That an update be provided to the next meeting on the Schools Forum’s 

membership arrangements. 
 

 
8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Schools Forum is Wednesday 17 May 2017. 
 
 
FROM:  Parveen Akhtar 

City Solicitor 
  City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council 
 

Contact Asad Shah:  01274 432280 
Committee Secretariat  
i:\decsheets16-17\schoolsforum\15Mar17 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



Response ID ANON-2CXQ-1DEZ-J

Submitted to High needs funding reform - stage 2

Submitted on 2017-03-22 15:01:17

Introduction

A  What is your name?

Name:

Andrew Redding

B  What is your email address?

Email:

andrew.redding@bradford.gov.uk

C  Response type

Please select your role from the list below::

Local authority representative

Please select your organisation type from the list below::

Local authority

Organisation name::

City of Bradford MDC

Local authority area::

Bradford

D  Would you like your response to be confidential?

No

Reason for confidentiality::

Page 2 - overall approach

1  In designing our national funding formula, we have taken careful steps to balance the principles of fairness and stability. Do you think

we have struck the right balance?

No

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account:: 

A National Funding Formula that does not build into its construction growth in real terms for inflation and employer’s costs, and which therefore, locks in an 

insufficiency of funding of schools and the High Needs Block that will continue to grow over the next 3 to 5 years; an estimated £44m ‘shortfall’ within Bradford’s 

total DSG by 2020, cannot be said to support stability. We understand that this is an issue of the size of the overall funding envelop not an issue specifically 

concerning the technical construct of the Formula. However, it is an overarching influencer of views about the fairness of what is being proposed. 

 

In terms of technical construct, we agree with the general principle of protecting all parts of the DSG system, separately, against immediate and then 

unreasonable levels of total loss. 

 

However, we argue that the damping within the High Needs Block, the 0% floor combined with the 50% historical spending factor, over a medium term period, is 

excessive and will delay for too long the additional High Needs Block funding that authorities, like Bradford, critically need in order to re-shape and create new 

provisions to meet demand over the next 3 to 5 years. Such a level of damping hampers our transition. The historic protection element should represent no more 

than 30% of the formula construct. 

 

In the context of the interplay between the Schools and High Needs Blocks, it is critical to our re-shaping of provisions that, as our Schools Block funding reduces 

our High Needs Block funding increases and that we receive the full amount of additional High Needs Block monies as quickly as possible. We model that our 

damped loss (of £5.7m) in the Schools Block will take 2 financial years to be completed. However, our damped gain of £8m in the High Needs Block is likely to 

take 5 years. Firstly then, there is a mismatch in the speed of transition, which is detrimental to our creation of new high needs provision over the next 3 to 5 

years. Secondly, the proposed High Needs Block formula, undamped, would allocate an additional £16m to Bradford and there is no timescale set out for the full 

allocation of this. 

 

We do understand that, whilst we are ‘losing’ from damping in the High Needs Block, we are benefiting from damping in the Schools Block. However, we argue 

that it is unreasonable that 50% of our High Needs Block gain is not yet proposed to be allocated, especially when, as we are losing in the Schools Block, we will 

not have the ‘headroom’ to be able to consider transferring monies into the High Needs Block in future years. We argue that the 0% cash floor and a 50% historic 

spend element combine provide an excessive level of protection in the High Needs Block over a medium term period. Such a level of protection is onlyPage 111



defendable in the first year of implementation. We argue that these protections, at the very least, should be lifted incrementally year on year so that the undamped

formula allocations are fully allocated within a maximum of 5 years. 

 

We argue that critical to fairness is the cessation of the ‘separate’ funding of high needs places in free schools outside the DSG. All high needs places should be

funded from the same source so that there is a level playing field for local authorities. 

 

We also argue that, to achieve consistency and fairness with the national schools’ formula, the High Needs Block national formula should specifically recognise

the cost of PFI arrangements for high needs providers and that this should increase by RPIX each year. Bradford’s High Needs Block currently meets a £0.7m

annual cost related to our special schools.

Page 3 - formula factors

2  Do you agree with the following proposals?

To distribute 50% of the planned spending baseline on the basis of historic spending - Historic spend factor - To allocate to each local authority a sum

equal to 50% of its planned spending baseline:

Allocate a lower proportion

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We argue that the 0% cash floor and a 50% historic spend element combine provide an excessive level of protection in the High Needs Block over a medium term

period. Such a level of protection is only defendable in the first year of implementation. We argue that these protections should be lifted incrementally year on

year so that the undamped formula allocations are fully allocated within a maximum of 5 years.

Basic entitlement - To allocate to each local authority £4,000 per pupil - Basic entitlement - To allocate to each local authority £4,000 per pupil:

This is about the right amount

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

No additional comments.

3  We propose to use the following weightings for each of the formula factors listed below, adding up to 100%. Do you agree?

Population – 50% - Population – 50%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

No additional comments.

Free school meals (FSM) eligibility – 10% - Free school meals (FSM) eligibility – 10%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

No additional comments.

Income deprivation affecting children index (IDACI) – 10% - Income deprivation affecting children index (IDACI) – 10%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We would strongly prefer the school’s formula to use the full Index of Multiple Deprivation measure, rather than IDACI.

Key stage 2 low attainment – 7.5% - Key stage 2 low attainment – 7.5%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

No additional comments.

Key stage 4 low attainment – 7.5% - Key stage 4 low attainment – 7.5%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

No additional comments.

Children in bad health – 7.5% - Children in bad health – 7.5%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

No additional comments.

Disability living allowance (DLA) – 7.5% - Disability living allowance (DLA) – 7.5%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

No additional comments. Page 112



Page 4 – funding floor

4  Do you agree with the principle of protecting local authorities from reductions in funding as a result of this formula? This is referred to

as a funding floor in the consultation document.

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

Yes, however, we argue that the 0% cash floor and a 50% historic spend element combine provide an excessive level of protection in the High Needs Block over

a medium term period. Such a level of protection is only defendable in the first year of implementation. We argue that these protections should be lifted

incrementally year on year so that the undamped formula allocations are fully allocated within a maximum of 5 years.

5  Do you support our proposal to set the funding floor such that no local authority will see a reduction in funding, compared to their

spending baseline?

No

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We argue that the 0% cash floor and a 50% historic spend element combine provide an excessive level of protection in the High Needs Block over a medium term

period. Such a level of protection is only defendable in the first year of implementation. We argue that these protections should be lifted incrementally year on

year so that the undamped formula allocations are fully allocated within a maximum of 5 years.

Page 5 - local budget flexibility

6  Do you agree with our proposals to allow limited flexibility between schools and high needs budgets in 2018-19?

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We agree with the principle of this. However, it needs to be understood that, as we are losing in the Schools Block under national funding formula proposals, we

will not have the ‘headroom’ to be able to consider transferring monies into the High Needs Block in future years (we have 67% of schools on the 3% floor and an

expected 80% of schools on the MFG in the 1st year). This is a key factor behind our argument about the excessive damping currently proposed in the High

Needs Block over the medium term. Release of damping in the High Needs Block is the only way we will effectively financial transition and new places creation.

Having the flexibility to move money from the Schools Block is not a solution for a local authority that is losing so significantly in / is so reliant on the protections

being put into the Schools Block.

7  Do you have any suggestions about the level of flexibility we should allow between schools and high needs budgets in 2019-20 and

beyond?

Comments box:

We do not believe that the level of flexibility should be prescribed in terms of values of %s, unless there is a clear process that will enable exception, where a local

authority seeks to transfer larger sums. We would see the Schools Forum being important in agreeing such exceptions.

Page 6 – further considerations

8  Are there further considerations we should be taking into account about the proposed high needs national funding formula?

Comments - please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We argue that critical to fairness is the cessation of the ‘separate’ funding of high needs places in free schools outside the DSG. All high needs places should be

funded from the same source so that there is a level playing field for local authorities.

We also argue that, to achieve consistency and fairness with the national schools’ formula, the High Needs Block national formula should specifically recognise

the cost of PFI arrangements for high needs providers and that this should increase by RPIX each year. Bradford’s High Needs Block currently meets a £0.7m

annual cost related to our special schools.

We would also ask that the complexity in the High Needs Block is reviewed, in particular around the position of funding of resourced provisions and the

relationship with the October Census. Alongside the early years funding reform, from a local authority perspective, there is growing level of complexity and

administration related to relatively small amounts of money within the DSG. This is a growing administrative burden on local authorities. We welcome the

establishment of High Needs Block arrangements that simplify rather than over complicated existing arrangements.

To emphasise 2 critical points:

A National Funding Formula that does not build into its construction growth in real terms for inflation and employer’s costs, and which therefore, locks in an

insufficiency of funding of schools and the High Needs Block that will continue to grow over the next 3 to 5 years; an estimated £44m ‘shortfall’ within Bradford’s

total DSG by 2020, cannot be said to support stability.

We argue that the damping within the High Needs Block, the 0% floor combined with the 50% historical spending factor, over a medium term period, is excessive

and will delay for too long the additional High Needs Block funding that authorities, like Bradford, critically need in order to re-shape and create new provisions to

meet demand over the next 3 to 5 years. Such a level of damping hampers our transition. We argue that these protections should be lifted incrementally year on

year so that the undamped formula allocations are fully allocated within a maximum of 5 years.

Page 113



Page 7 – equalities analysis

9  Is there any evidence relating to the 8 protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010 that is not included in the equalities

impact assessment and that we should take into account?

Comments - please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

No additonal comments

Page 114



Response ID ANON-6NX3-5KFE-T

Submitted to Schools national funding formula - stage 2

Submitted on 2017-03-22 14:45:38

Introduction

A  What is your name?

Name:

Andrew Redding

B  What is your email address?

Email:

andrew.redding@bradford.gov.uk

C  Response type

Please select your role from the list below::

Local authority representative

Please select your organisation type from the list below::

Local authority

Organisation name::

City of Bradford MDC

Local authority area: :

Bradford

D  Would you like your response to be confidential?

No

Reason for confidentiality::

Page 2 - overall approach

1  In designing our national funding formula, we have taken careful steps to balance the principles of fairness and stability. Do you think

we have struck the right balance?

No

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account: : 

A National Funding Formula that does not build into its construction growth in real terms for inflation and employer’s costs, and which therefore, locks in an 

insufficiency of funding of schools that will continue to grow over the next 3 to 5 years; an estimated £44m ‘shortfall’ within Bradford’s DSG by 2020, cannot be 

said to support stability. We understand that this is an issue of the size of the overall funding envelop not an issue specifically concerning the technical construct 

of the Formula. However, it is an overarching influencer of views about the fairness of what is being proposed. 

 

In terms of technical construct, we agree with the general principle of protecting all parts of the DSG system, separately, against immediate and then 

unreasonable levels of total loss. 

 

We are specifically pleased to see that it is now proposed that the National Funding Formula will include a pupil mobility factor. 

 

However, we argue that the damping within the High Needs Block, the 0% floor combined with the 50% historical spending factor, over a medium term period, is 

excessive and will delay for too long the additional High Needs Block funding that authorities, like Bradford, critically need in order to re-shape and create new 

provisions to meet demand over the next 3 to 5 years. Such a level of damping hampers our transition. 

 

We agree that a 3% funding floor, alongside a minus 1.5% annual Minimum Funding Guarantee, does achieve a reasonable balance within the Schools Block. 

This is not said because we agree that we are currently ‘overfunded’. This is said with the understanding that, because we have taken decisions previously to 

distribute more of our ‘high needs’ monies into our Schools Block, we expected under National Funding Formula for a proportion to be ‘transferred’ back to our 

High Needs Block. In the light of responses of others to the proposals that have been recorded in the Press, we wish to make the point again that the comparative 

current rates of per pupil funding that are quoted (as a rationale for change) are misleading in that we do not see that these comparisons factor in where a local 

authority currently spends more of its High Needs Block resources in the Schools Block because of its distribution of children with SEND. Put simply, because 

Bradford has been a very inclusive authority, a larger number of children with SEND are educated in mainstream settings (funded by the Schools Block primary / 

secondary formula) and we currently have fewer places in specialist provisions (funded by the High Needs Block) than in other authorities. It is incorrect to 

conclude that our rates of funding in the Schools Block are ‘unfairly’ higher than in other authorities; we are simply allocating more of our High Needs funding in 

the Schools Block because this is where a greater number of higher cost (and higher funded) children are currently educated. We are concerned that the DfE, inPage 115



setting the final weightings of funding factors in the Schools Block, does not bend to inaccurate assertions that Bradford’s schools have up to this point been

unfairly overfunded and should lose a greater amount on current levels because of this. 

 

Our analysis indicates that the 3% floor in Bradford mainly supports the funding gap that is created for smaller schools from the proposal to set a low value of

lump sum at £110,000. This is £65,000 lower than Bradford’s current value. The proposal to set the lump sum at £110,000 does not provide stability for our

smaller schools where the 3% floor does not exist. As this is such a significant element of what is being proposed, we would now not expect the DfE to remove or

reduce this protection. We continue to argue more fundamentally however, that the lump sum should be set at a value no lower than £175,000 for primary

schools. 

 

In the context of the interplay between the Schools and High Needs Blocks, it is critical to our re-shaping of provisions that, as our Schools Block funding reduces

our High Needs Block funding increases and that we receive the full amount of additional High Needs Block monies as quickly as possible. We model that our

damped loss (of £5.7m) in the Schools Block will take 2 financial years to be completed. However, our damped gain of £8m in the High Needs Block is likely to

take 5 years. Firstly then, there is a mismatch in the speed of transition, which is detrimental to our creation of new high needs provision over the next 3 to 5

years. Secondly, the proposed High Needs Block formula, undamped, would allocate an additional £16m to Bradford and there is no timescale set out for the full

allocation of this. 

 

We do understand that, whilst we are ‘losing’ from damping in the High Needs Block, we are benefiting from damping in the Schools Block. However, we argue

that it is unreasonable that 50% of our High Needs Block gain is not yet proposed to be allocated, especially when, as we are losing in the Schools Block, we will

not have the ‘headroom’ to be able to consider transferring monies into the High Needs Block in future years. We argue that the 0% cash floor and a 50% historic

spend element combine provide an excessive level of protection in the High Needs Block over a medium term period. Such a level of protection is only

defendable in the first year of implementation. We argue that these protections should be lifted incrementally year on year so that the undamped formula

allocations are fully allocated within a maximum of 5 years. 

 

We also argue that critical to fairness is the cessation of the ‘separate’ funding of high needs places in free schools outside the DSG. All high needs places should

be funded from the same source so that there is a level playing field for local authorities.

2  Do you support our proposal to set the primary to secondary ratio in line with the current national average?

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account: :

We agree with the DfE’s view that this ‘building block’ decision must be guided by evidence of impact on educational outcomes as well as evidence for the

differential in the costs of provision between phases (‘activity-led’). This ratio should be reviewed on a regular basis, especially for major policy decisions that

significantly affect these cost bases.

However, we identify that the primary phase’s negative view of this proposal is amplified, in Bradford, by the proposal for the low value of the lump at £110,000,

and as the real terms value of funding is eroded. Both these issues must be addressed.

3  Do you support our proposal to maximise pupil-led funding?

No - you should increase school-led funding compared to the current national average

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

As we have set out in responses to previous questions, we argue that the lump sum should be set at a value no lower than £175,000. We identify that this is

higher than the current national average. We believe however, that this is a reasonable level of lump sum, balancing the need to support smaller schools, that are

not eligible for the sparsity factor but that are still essential in maintaining a sufficiency of places, with fixed costs whilst encouraging efficiencies and allowing the

majority of funding to follow the pupil. This is especially important as the real terms value of funding continues to be eroded and the financial positions of smaller

schools are significantly stretched.

Page 3 - pupil-led factors

4  Within the total pupil-led funding, do you support our proposal to increase the proportion allocated to the additional needs factors?

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

Although we have some comments about the distribution of additional educational needs (AEN) monies under the National Funding Formula, we strongly support

the proposal to increase the proportion of spending on AEN, in particular the focus on EAL and low attainment.

Supporting the needs of vulnerable learners must be placed at the heart of the new funding system. We agree that a National Funding Formula, which allocates

consistent amounts of funding for pupils with the same levels of need, removing the ‘postcode lottery’, is fair. However, also critical to fairness is that the correct

weighting (uplift) is applied to the funding of pupils with additional educational needs, recognising in particular the clear correlation between levels of deprivation,

lower pupil outcomes and higher costs.

Our formula development work has always concluded that a combination of pupil-led and area-based factors are more effective in measuring pupil-need than

using only one type of measure in isolation.

5  Do you agree with the proposed weightings for each of the additional needs factors?

Deprivation - FSM - Deprivation - pupil based at 5.5%:

The proportion is about right Page 116



Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We identify that the proposals seek to align AEN funding within the schools’ formula with the deprivation (and FSM) focused Pupil Premium Grant.

Deprivationn IDACI - Deprivation - area based at 3.9%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

Area-based measures enable a weighting of funding to schools with higher proportions of children from more deprived backgrounds. We identify that the schools’

formula as currently proposed does re-distribute deprivation-focused funding away from these schools. In this regard then, we would welcome a higher weighting

being given to the area-based measure in the schools’ formula. However, we can see how the different AEN measures currently proposed do fit together.

We strongly prefer the school’s formula to use the full Index of Multiple Deprivation measure, rather than IDACI. This is a point we have made in our responses to

previous consultations. Prior to April 2013, we used the IMD as a more comprehensive measure of the full extent of pupil need from deprivation. The refresh of

IDACI at 2015 indicates that Bradford's rank of deprivation vs. other local authorities is broadly comparable with that measured by IDACI 2010. IMD 2015

however, indicates that Bradford's pupils are comparatively more deprived than measured by IMD 2010.

LPA - Low prior attainment at 7.5%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We welcome the increased focus on the funding of low attainment. We support the view that this specifically targets funding where it is currently needed in

schools and also helps to support the delivery of funding for children with special educational needs. However, we have some reservations about the robustness /

volatility of this measure going forward and also the ‘perverse incentive’ arguments. We are concerned that schools will see over the medium term life of the

formula the loss of the targeted funding that enabled the raising of standards in the first place. As such, we would see that the specific impact of this new

additional focus of AEN funding on this measure must be reviewed on a regular basis.

EAL - English as an additional language at 1.2%:

The proportion is about right

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We welcome the increased focus on the funding of EAL.

6  Do you have any suggestions about potential indicators and data sources we could use to allocate mobility funding in 2019-20 and

beyond?

Comments::

The most convenient data source is the school’s census and both in year and longer term stability can be measured from this data. For example, we have

previously used census information (year groups and entry dates) to calculate a ‘stability’ measure for each school, measuring the % of children in a school’s year

2, year 6, year 9 and year 11, that were present in that school at the start of the relevant key stage. We used this in our local funding formula for a number of

years. We have also previously looked at using census information to calculate a turbulence rate based on the calculated volume of starters and leavers during

the school year.

In the absence of developing a more sophisticated indicator, the current method of calculating the % of pupils eligible for the mobility factor could be used. The

data is often incorrect in the October Census Dataset for schools that convert to academy status, where the academy has a different establishment number to the

predecessor school (pupil start dates are not retained and are shown as the date the academy opened). We have come across this issue for several years now

and we address it by re-calculating the pupil mobility %’s for those academies that have a new establishment number; this is a simple exercise where we use the

methodology given in the Dataset Technical Specification, but instead of using the start date shown in the October Census, we match the pupils to the latest

termly census available for the predecessor school in order to ascertain the true start date for each pupil, which we then use in the calculation.

Page 4 - school-led factors

7  Do you agree with the proposed lump sum amount of £110,000 for all schools?

Primary lump sum - Primary:

Allocate a higher amount

Secondary lump sum - Secondary:

Allocate a higher amount

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

As we have set out in responses to previous questions, we argue that the lump sum should be set at a value no lower than £175,000.

8  Do you agree with the proposed amounts for sparsity funding of up to £25,000 for primary and up to £65,000 for secondary, middle and

all-through schools?

Primary sparsity - Primary:

This is about the right amount

Secondary sparsity - Secondary:

This about the right amount Page 117



Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

Bradford’s schools are not eligible for sparsity funding and, as such, we have no direct comments. However, the uplift of the main lump sum factor to £175,000

would reduce reliance and complication in this area.

9  Do you agree that lagged pupil growth data would provide an effective basis for the growth factor in the longer term?

Comments:

We are recording a ‘no’, but really we need to see more detailed proposals in order to form a view.

If the intention is for growth funding to be allocated directly to schools and academies as part of the National Formula, but on a lagged basis, there would need to

be a change in expectation in schools regarding the real time allocation of money and certainly there would be cash flow and budget overspend issues to resolve.

There is a need for continued allocation of growth funding in real time to avoid these difficulties, whether this is allocated directly by National Funding Formula (on

estimates, which are then reconciled retrospectively) or allocated by local authorities from a centrally managed pot who are then reimbursed.

Page 5 - funding floor

10  Do you agree with the principle of a funding floor?

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We agree with the principle of protecting all parts of the DSG system, separately, against unreasonable levels of total loss.

We agree that a 3% funding floor, alongside a minus 1.5% annual Minimum Funding Guarantee, does achieve a reasonable balance within the Schools Block.

However, our analysis indicates that the 3% floor in Bradford mainly supports the funding gap that is created for smaller primary schools from the proposal to set

a low value of lump sum at £110,000. This is £65,000 lower than Bradford’s current value. The proposal to set the lump sum at £110,000 does not provide

stability for smaller schools where the 3% floor does not exist. As this is such a significant element of what is being proposed, we would now not expect the DfE to

either remove or reduce this protection. We continue to argue more fundamentally however, as we have done in previous responses, that the lump sum should be

set at a value no lower than £175,000 for primary schools.

11  Do you support our proposal to set the funding floor at minus 3%?

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We agree that a 3% funding floor, alongside a minus 1.5% annual Minimum Funding Guarantee, does achieve a reasonable balance within the Schools Block.

12  Do you agree that for new or growing schools (i.e. schools that are still filling up and do not have pupils in all year groups yet) the

funding floor should be applied to the per-pupil funding they would have received if they were at full capacity?

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We agree as this approach will prevent locking in a distorted level of per pupil funding.

We would welcome clarification on how the 3% floor will be applied to a new school that is created from the amalgamation of 2 schools (with the closure of 1 of

these schools). We would expect the values of 3% floor protection to be carried forward to the new school in this circumstance.

Page 6 - transition

13  Do you support our proposal to continue the minimum funding guarantee at minus 1.5%?

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We agree that a 3% funding floor, alongside a minus 1.5% annual Minimum Funding Guarantee, does achieve a reasonable balance within the Schools Block.

Page 7 - further considerations

14  Are there further considerations we should be taking into account about the proposed schools national funding formula?

Comments:: 

A National Funding Formula that does not build into its construction growth in real terms for inflation and employer’s costs, and which therefore, locks in an 

insufficiency of funding of schools that will continue to grow over the next 3 to 5 years; an estimated £44m ‘shortfall’ within Bradford’s DSG by 2020, cannot be 

said to be fair and cannot be said to support stability. This is an overarching influencer of views, nationally, about the fairness of what is being proposed, even 

though the way that the schools’ formula has been technically constructed has been well thought through. 

 

We would strongly prefer the school’s formula to use the full Index of Multiple Deprivation measure, rather than IDACI. This is a point we have made in our 

responses to previous consultations. Prior to April 2013, we used the IMD as a more comprehensive measure of the full extent of pupil need from deprivation. ThePage 118



refresh of IDACI at 2015 indicates that Bradford's rank of deprivation vs. other local authorities is broadly comparable with that measured by IDACI 2010. IMD

2015 however, indicates that Bradford's pupils are comparatively more deprived than measured by IMD 2010.

Page 8 - central school services block

Page 9 - central school services block

15  Do you agree that we should allocate 10% of funding through a deprivation factor in the central school services block?

No - a higher proportion should be allocated to the deprivation factor

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We argue that a greater weighting should be applied though a deprivation factor, combined with a mobility measure, especially as the Education Services Grant is

now transferred into the DSG.

We would see that the proportion allocated for deprivation / mobility within the Central Schools Block should be equivalent to the weighting given to the suite of

AEN factors within the schools’ formula, which is 12.9%.

16  Do you support our proposal to limit reductions on local authorities' central school services block funding to 2.5% per pupil in 2018-19

and in 2019-20?

Yes

Please explain your reasoning and any further evidence we should take into account::

We agree with the principle of protecting all parts of the DSG system, separately, against immediate levels of loss.

However, we are concerned with the methodology that is proposed to be used to calculate transitional floors and ceilings, specifically in the assumptions that are

made on the proportion of current spending that relates to historic commitments. In our work through of this, we believe that, although we gain in the Central

Schools Block, under transition, our allocation will actually be lower than the proportion of our current spend that is related to on-going activities. We would

welcome clarification on how transition will work and how information on historic commitments spending will be collected and will inform the formula on which the

floors and ceilings will be calculated. We expect that the calculation of floors and ceiling closely aligns with the actual split between historic commitments and

on-going functions, rather than this being based on a blanket ‘assumed formula’.

17  Are there further considerations we should be taking into account about the proposed central school services block formula?

Comments::

We argue that the Central Schools Block should also include funding on the basis of mobility / migration / places growth, as this is major influencer of the cost of

the delivery of the admissions and place planning functions. A formula that does not recognise mobility and population growth this will not fund Bradford fairly for

its statutory responsibilities.

We are also concerned about the erosion in the real terms value of the Central Schools Block, especially where the cost of Copyright Licensing significantly

increases.

Page 10 - equalities analysis

18  Is there any evidence relating to the 8 protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010 that is not included in the equalities

impact assessment and that we should take into account?

Comments::

no additional comments

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Chair of the Children’s Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to the meeting of the 
Committee to be held on Tuesday 11 April 2017. 
 

          AR 
Subject:   
 
Resolution Tracking 2016-17 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report details the progress made against the resolutions passed by the Children’s 
Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee during the 2016-17 municipal year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Dale Smith 
Chair – Children’s Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Portfolio:   
 
Education, Employment & Skills 
Health & Wellbeing 
 

Report Contact:  Licia Woodhead 
Phone: (01274) 432119 
E-mail: licia.woodhead@bradford.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 9/



 

1. SUMMARY 
 
This report details the progress made against the resolutions passed by the Children’s 
Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee during the 2016-17 municipal year. 
 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
At the Overview and Scrutiny Chairs and Deputies meeting held on 17 October 2013, 
members agreed that a report on Resolution Tracking should be placed on the Work 
Programme for each Committee at least once a year. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny team use a database to plan, report and track the work 
schedules for each committee. 
 
The most commonly used aspect of the database is the ‘work programme’ which records 
information such as meeting dates, agenda item, item description and report author. 
 
This work programme report is a standing item on the agendas of this Committee and is 
also used for information at briefings and departmental Management Team meetings. 
 

 
3. REPORT ISSUES 
 
Tracking resolutions made by the Committee helps monitor the effectiveness of the 
Overview and Scrutiny function and improves forward planning.  It also allows better 
feedback to Committee members, the Executive and Council Leadership. 
 
The database can be a powerful planning and tracking tool, as tracking the pathway of 
recommendations will help the Committee determine whether or not they are adding value 
to key decisions, bringing about positive change and impacting on service delivery. 
 
Details of the recommendations and progress against them can be found at Appendix 1. 
Please note that where the outcome refers to “No further action required by the 
Committee”, this could indicate that the resolution was thanking officers for their 
attendance or reports or that officers have taken the comments of the Committee on board 
and are progressing them. 
 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
None 
 

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
None 
 
 
 

Page 122



 

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
None 
 
 
7. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 
 
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee comments on areas where resolutions do not appear to have been 
acted upon or feel insufficient progress has been made. 
 
 
9. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Children’s Services O&S Committee Resolution Tracking report 
 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



 Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny 
 Report of All Outcomes for Childrens Services O&S Committee - 2016/17 
 Agenda item Resolution Outcome 
 Meeting date: Tuesday, 7th June 2016 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Early Education and Childcare 1 That the report be welcomed and that a progress  Report considered on 14 Feb 2017 
 report on the Children’s Centre clusters be provided to 
  the Committee later in the year. 

 2 Resolution Tracking 1 That the Chair and Deputy Chair consult with officers  No further action required by the Committee 
 on areas where resolutions do not appear to have  
 been acted upon. 

 Meeting date: Tuesday, 26th July 2016 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Referral to the Committee: Academisation 1 The Committee noted the referral would be taken into No further action required by the Committee 
  of Schools  consideration during the discussion of the items  
 relating to Schools Forum Update (Item 8) and The  
 Changing Educational Landscape (Item 9) 

 2 Young Carers 1 That Document “D” be received and welcomed and  No further action required by the Committee 
 the young carers be thanked for their attendance and  
 contribution to the meeting. 

 2 That the collaboration with school nurses and  No further action required by the Committee 
 governing bodies be welcomed. 

 3 That the Health and Wellbeing Board be requested to Raised at the Health & Wellbeing Board 29 Nov 2016 
  promote the needs of young carers by encouraging  
 GP’s to identify and refer young carers to the Young  
 Carers Service. 

 4 That a further report be presented to the Committee  Added to the Work Programme for 2017-18 
 in 12 months. 

 3 Schools Forum Update 1 That members lobby local MPs regarding the  No further action required by the Committee 
 National Funding Formula to highlight the District’s  
 mobility factor and high needs issues. 

 2 That the Executive be asked to request the Director of The Exec 20 Sep Resolved: "In receiving the above  
  Finance to explore all options regarding recharging  recommendation the Leader confirmed that a report on  
 schools for conversion costs incurred when they  the matter will be considered by the Executive in the  
 convert to Academies. 

 4 The Changing Educational Landscape 1 That the reality of the changing education landscape  No further action required by the Committee 
 be recognised. 

 2 That the importance of working with the Regional  No further action required by the Committee 
 Schools Commissioner, schools partnerships and  
 academies be supported to ensure the best possible  
 education experience and attainment for the districts  

 29th March 2017 Page 1 of 8 

P
age 125



 Report of All Outcomes for Childrens Services O&S Committee - 2016/17 (continued) 
 Agenda item Resolution Outcome 
 4 The Changing Educational Landscape 3 That the appropriate challenge for all Bradford district No further action required by the Committee 
  schools be continued. 

 5 Elective Home Education and the  1 That the terms of reference of the review of the  Report considered on 12 Oct 2016 
 Education Safeguarding Hub Council’s approach to elective home education in  
 which the safeguarding of children is central be  
 amended and reported to the next meeting of the  

 6 Block Contract Call Off from the White  1 That Document “H” be noted and welcomed. No further action required by the Committee 
 Rose Looked After Children Residential  
 Framework in Bradford & District Area 

 2 That a further report on the outcomes of the proposals Added to the Work Programme for 2017-8 
  contained in Document “H” be presented to the  
 Committee in 12 months. 

 Meeting date: Tuesday, 6th September 2016 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Child Sexual Exploitation 1 That a further report be presented to the Committee  Report considered on 14 Feb 2017 
 in January 2017 which includes information on: • The 
  outcome of training for Private Hire Drivers • An  
 explanation of the Nightwatch Initiative • A  
 breakdown of the ethnicity of CSE offenders and  
 suspects • Information on the Historic Case Unit • Work 
  relating to hard to reach children and those with  

 2 That the Committee urges all elected Members and  No further action required by the Committee 
 Co-opted Members to complete the mandatory on- 
 line Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) training. 

 3 That it be recommended that senior officers of the  Raised at CMT in November and the e-learning link was  
 Council, Partners and their Boards also undertake the  provided for circulation to CMT. 

 4 That it be recommended that all School Governors  AWAITING A RESPONSE 
 be offered CSE Training. 

 5 That the Committee encourages all Members of  No further action required by the Committee 
 Council Co-opted Committee Members and senior  
 officers of the Council to visit the CSE Hub at the  

 6 That the minutes of this meeting be submitted to  Minutes sent 2 Nov 2016 
 Professor Jay who is leading the independent enquiry 

 7 That all those who attended the meeting be thanked  No further action required by the Committee 
 for their valuable contribution. 

 2 Workloads of Children's Social Care 1 That the Committee considers further reports in the  Added to the Work Programme 
 2016/17 Work Programme to ensure the continuation  
 of safe workloads and practice into the future given  
 the current financial climate. 

 29th March 2017 Page 2 of 8 

P
age 126



 Report of All Outcomes for Childrens Services O&S Committee - 2016/17 (continued) 
 Agenda item Resolution Outcome 
 2 Workloads of Children's Social Care 2 That the Social Workers be thanked for their  No further action required by the Committee 
 contribution and attendance at the meeting. 

 3 Post 16 Review 1 That consideration of the report be deferred to a  Report considered on 15 Nov 2016 
 future meeting. 

 4 Ofsted Inspection report 1 That consideration of the report be deferred to a  Report considered on 15 Nov 2016 
 future meeting. 

 Meeting date: Wednesday, 12th October 2016 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Schools Forum Update 1 That the information provided in Document “N” be  No further action required by the Committee 

 2 Education Standards and School to  1 That the report on the improved performance of  No further action required by the Committee 
 School Partnership arrangements Bradford’s children be welcomed. 

 2 That a further report be presented to the Committee  Report considered on 14 March 2017 
 which will contain the validated data and include the  
 additional information as requested by the  

 3 That the Committee requests a report on the work of  Report considered on 14 March 2017 
 the Education Improvement Board. 

 3 Elective Home Education 1 That the limited powers of the Authority to identify  The department have had discussions with the DfE  
 cases whereby parents elect to home educate their  regarding this but in order for changes to take place there 
 child(ren) be brought to the attention of the Regional   will need to be a national decision. 
 Schools Commissioner and the Secretary of State for  

 2 That it be noted that the interventions of the  No further action required by the Committee 
 Education Safeguarding Team are a key vehicle in  
 ensuring and promoting the wellbeing of children. 

 3 That closer working between partners, especially DWP No further action required by the Committee 
  and HMRC sharing data, be strongly promoted within 
  the parameters of children missing education. 

 4 The Council's approach to identifying  1 That the Local authority works with partner  No further action required by the Committee 
 unregistered schools organisations to effectively respond to and support  
 (where necessary) any education organisation that  
 may be operating illegally, either knowingly or  

 Meeting date: Thursday, 27th October 2016 in Margaret McMillan Tower 
 1 Children's and Young People's Mental  1 That the young people be thanked for their  No further action required by the Committee 
 Health Issues and Services attendance and the contribution that they made to  

 2 That the development of services in line with the  No further action required by the Committee 
 Future in Mind Local Implementation Plan aligned  
 with priorities within the Journey to Excellence,  
 Integrated Early Years Strategy and the Early Help  
 approach for children 0 -19 years be supported. 

 29th March 2017 Page 3 of 8 

P
age 127



 Report of All Outcomes for Childrens Services O&S Committee - 2016/17 (continued) 
 Agenda item Resolution Outcome 
 1 Children's and Young People's Mental  3 That a sub-committee, which maintains the Council’s  Sub Committee meeting held on 27 March 2017 
 Health Issues and Services political proportionality, be convened from Members  
 of the Health and Social Care and Children’s Services 
  Overview and Scrutiny Committees in order to  
 receive a response to the young people’s “Help  
 Today’s Youth to Help Tomorrows Bradford”  
 document for discussion at a meeting within four  

 4 That the “Future in Mind” document be produced in  No further action required by the Committee 
 an easy read format. 

 2 Transitions between Children’s Services  1 That the progress made, and moves towards cultural  No further action required by the Committee 
 and Adult Services change as part of the development of an integrated  
 transition service for young people, be welcomed. 

 2 That a report on the draft Daytime Strategy be  No further action required by the Committee 
 presented to the Health and Social Care Overview  
 and Scrutiny Committee by the end of the 2016/17  

 3 That a further report on the integrated transition  No further action required by the Committee 
 service for young people be presented to the Health  
 and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
  12 months, to include benchmarking information and 
  appropriate indicators to demonstrate progress. 

 Meeting date: Tuesday, 1st November 2016 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Schools Forum Update 1 That Members expressed concern at the  No further action required by the Committee 
 Government’s proposals for its National Funding  
 Formulae Reform and asks officers to ensure that  
 funding is maximised due to the district’s unique  

 2 That the Committee supports the dialogue taking  No further action required by the Committee 
 place with other authorities in relation to the National 
  Funding Formulae. 

 2 Children Missing Education 1 That the report (Document “T”) on matters relating to  No further action required by the Committee 
 Children Missing Education be welcomed. 

 2 That the development of the Multi Agency  No further action required by the Committee 
 Safeguarding Team be supported. 

 3 That the work that is being undertaken in raising  No further action required by the Committee 
 awareness of Children Missing Education among  
 Council Wardens, the police and other Council  
 employees be supported. 

 4 That a report be presented to Members in March  Report considered on 14 Mar 2017 
 2017 on the outcome of the HMRC Children Missing  
 Education benefits data sharing pilot. 

 29th March 2017 Page 4 of 8 

P
age 128



 Report of All Outcomes for Childrens Services O&S Committee - 2016/17 (continued) 
 Agenda item Resolution Outcome 
 Meeting date: Tuesday, 15th November 2016 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Post 16 Review 1 That the Committee note the contents of the report  No further action required by the Committee 
 and express concerns about bullet points 1 and 4 of  
 paragraph 9.1 of Document “K”. 

 2 That the Committee asks that careful consideration be No further action required by the Committee 
  given to recruitment and retention of teachers in all  

 3 That consideration be given to the better use of the  No further action required by the Committee 
 time between finishing GCSEs and starting A levels to 
  assist with pupil’s transition. 

 4 That members of the Committee be sent information  AWAITING A RESPONSE 
 showing the outcomes and achievements of  
 secondary schools across the district in 6th form. 

 5 That Helena Blair (Queens College Cambridge) be  AWAITING A RESPONSE FROM HELENA BLAIR 
 requested to submit a copy of her findings on  
 expanding the opportunities for young people of the  

 2 Ofsted Inspection report 1 That the information provided in Document “L” be  No further action required by the Committee 
 noted and that officers be thanked for the work  

 3 School Admissions Annual Report 1 That the current position with admissions be noted. No further action required by the Committee 
 2 That the Strategic Director Children’s Services be  AWAITING A RESPONSE 
 requested to strongly urge that all schools, regardless  
 of status, are compliant with the Code of Practice  
 regarding consultation of their admission policy every  
 seven years and comply with the requirement to send  
 their policy, every year to the Local Authority. 

 3 That the Strategic Director Children’s Services request AWAITING A RESPONSE 
  that all schools explore adopting the medical and  
 social priority that the Local Authority has in its own  

 4 That Primary schools be asked to pay particular  AWAITING A RESPONSE 
 attention to explaining the secondary school  
 allocation process to parents and carers. 

 Meeting date: Wednesday, 7th December 2016 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 The development and publication of  1 That the contents of Document “X” be welcomed and  No further action required by the Committee 
 Bradford's local offer. noted. 

 2  That a link to the local offer be emailed to members
 AWAITING A RESPONSE 
  of the Committee and the Governors Service be  
 asked to send the link to governors and use their  
 contacts to promote the Local Offer to all  

 2 Workloads of Children's Social Care 1  That the Social workers be thanked for their  No further 
action required by the Committee 

P
age 129



 29th March 2017 Page 5 of 8 

P
age 130



 Report of All Outcomes for Childrens Services O&S Committee - 2016/17 (continued) 
 Agenda item Resolution Outcome 
 2 Workloads of Children's Social Care 2 That the Committee consider further reports in the  Report considered on 14 Mar 2017 
 2016-17 work programme to ensure the continuation  
 of safe workloads and practice into the future given  
 the current financial climate and changing  

 3  That further updates be requested three times a  Added to the 
Work Programme for 2017-18 
 year and the results of the staff survey be included in  

 4 That future reports include information relating to the  No further action required by the Committee 
 Service’s key performance indicators. 

 3 Children Missing from Home and Care 1 That the work being undertaken to safeguard looked  No further action required by the Committee 
 after children who go missing in Bradford be endorsed. 

 2  That the Multi-Agency Strategy to safeguard  Added to the 
Work Programme for 2017-18 
 children who go missing be supported and reported to 
  elected members on a yearly basis. 

 3  That the evidence of strong partnership working be  No 
further action required by the Committee 
 welcomed. 

 Meeting date: Tuesday, 24th January 2017 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Annual Safeguarding report 1 That the Bradford Safeguarding Children Board  No further action required by the Committee 
 Annual Report and Business Plan be welcomed and  
 the thoughtful nature in which all of the issues are  
 dealt with in the report be noted. 

 2 That the Strategic Director of Children’s Services be  AWAITING A RESPONSE 
 requested to circulate to all local MP’s and members  
 of the Committee a copy of his submission to the  
 Department for Education about the regulation of  

 3 That all relevant documents continue to be submitted No further action required by the Committee 
  to the Professor Jay enquiry into CSE. 

 2 Recruitment and Rentention of Teachers 1 That the report be welcomed and a further report be  Added to the Work Programme for 2017-18 
 presented to the Committee in 12 months. 

 3 Schools Forum Update 1 That the information provided in the update be  No further action required by the Committee 
 2 That the Schools Forum and officers be thanked for  No further action required by the Committee 
 the diligent and conscientious way in which the  
 budget recommendations to the Executive have been 

 4 Children's Services Budget considerations 1 That the details of the budget saving proposals for  No further action required by the Committee 
 2017-18 and 2018-19 be noted. 

P
age 131



 29th March 2017 Page 6 of 8 

P
age 132



 Report of All Outcomes for Childrens Services O&S Committee - 2016/17 (continued) 
 Agenda item Resolution Outcome 
 Meeting date: Tuesday, 31st January 2017 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Foster Care Fees - Call in 1 That the decision be referred back to the Executive to No further action required by the Committee 
  reconsider in the light of Executive carrying out  
 further investigation of the Levels across the Local  
 Authorities used in the table on page 5 of Document  
 “AS” to better understand the comparability on a like  
 for like basis on the levels and descriptors used. 

 Meeting date: Tuesday, 14th February 2017 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Better Start Bradford 1 That the Committee welcomes the report and the  No further action required by the Committee 
 high commitment across and within the District to  
 improving outcomes and reducing inequalities for all  
 young children through the Better Start Programme. 

 2 That the importance of working with fathers, grand  No further action required by the Committee 
 parents and male carers be noted. 

 3 That a report be presented to the Committee in 12  Added to the Work Programme for 2017-18 
 months time demonstrating outcomes of the package  
 of programmes being delivered by Better Start  

 2 Child Sexual Exploitation 1 That the Committee note the contents of the report  Added to the Work Programme for 2017-18 
 and receive a full update in September 2017 which  
 includes data on the number of children under 16  
 that have been diagnosed with a sexual transmitted  
 disease and the number of children under 16 that  
 have had multiple pregnancy terminations. 

 3 Children's Centres 1 That the Committee recognises the importance of  No further action required by the Committee 
 early years development and the role of Children’s  
 Centres in supporting the Council’s drive to raise  
 aspirations and close the inequalities gaps. 

 2 That a progress report be presented to the Committee Added to the Work Programme for 2017-18 
  in 12 months time with clarification of the  
 relationship with health and midwifery. 

 Meeting date: Tuesday, 14th March 2017 in City Hall, Bradford 
 1 Workloads of Children's Social Care 1 That the Children’s Social Care Services Team be  No further action required by the Committee 
 thanked for the work that they undertake in ensuring a  
 strong, robust and well managed Social Work Services 
  for Children and Young People in the District. 

 2 That the Committee consider further reports in the  Added to the Work Programme for 2017-18 
 2017-18 work programme to ensure the continuation  
 of safe workloads and practice into the future given  
 the current financial climate. 

 29th March 2017 Page 7 of 8 

P
age 133



 Report of All Outcomes for Childrens Services O&S Committee - 2016/17 (continued) 
 Agenda item Resolution Outcome 
 2 Children Missing Education - HMRC pilot 1 That officers advise the Committee as soon as they  To follow up in May 2017 
 receive notification as to whether the HMRC Children  
 Missing Education Data Sharing Pilot would continue 
  after June 2017. 

 2 That the Strategic Director, Children’s Services gives  AWAITING A RESPONSE 
 consideration to sharing the Children Missing  
 Education case findings data with the appropriate  
 Council Departments. 

 3 That the Chair of the Committee writes to the Districts  Letters sent 27 March 2017 
 MP’s requesting that the HMRC Children Missing  
 Education Data Sharing Pilot be extended nationally. 

 29th March 2017 Page 8 of 8 

P
age 134


	Agenda
	6 THE YOUTH OFFER IN THE DISTRICT
	Appendix B to Document "AO"
	Appendix C to Document "AO"

	7 SCHOOL CAPITAL FUNDING AND SCHOOL EXPANSION PROGRAMME 2017-2018
	8 SCHOOLS FORUM UPDATE
	Document "AQ" Appendix 1
	Document "AQ" Appendix 2a
	Response ID ANON-2CXQ-1DEZ-J
	Introduction
	A€ What is your name? 
	B€ What is your email address? 
	C€ Response type 
	D€ Would you like your response to be confidential? 

	Page 2 - overall approach
	1€ In designing our national funding formula, we have taken careful steps to balance the principles of fairness and stability. Do you think we have struck the right balance? 

	Page 3 - formula factors
	2€ Do you agree with the following proposals? 
	3€ We propose to use the following weightings for each of the formula factors listed below, adding up to 100%. Do you agree? 

	Page 4 – funding floor
	4€ Do you agree with the principle of protecting local authorities from reductions in funding as a result of this formula? This is referred to as a funding floor in the consultation document. 
	5€ Do you support our proposal to set the funding floor such that no local authority will see a reduction in funding, compared to their spending baseline? 

	Page 5 - local budget flexibility
	6€ Do you agree with our proposals to allow limited flexibility between schools and high needs budgets in 2018-19? 
	7€ Do you have any suggestions about the level of flexibility we should allow between schools and high needs budgets in 2019-20 and beyond?  

	Page 6 – further considerations
	8€ Are there further considerations we should be taking into account about the proposed high needs national funding formula? 

	Page 7 – equalities analysis
	9€ Is there any evidence relating to the 8 protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010 that is not included in the equalities impact assessment and that we should take into account? 



	Document "AQ" Appendix2b
	Response ID ANON-6NX3-5KFE-T
	Introduction
	A€ What is your name? 
	B€ What is your email address? 
	C€ Response type 
	D€ Would you like your response to be confidential?  

	Page 2 - overall approach
	1€ In designing our national funding formula, we have taken careful steps to balance the principles of fairness and stability. Do you think we have struck the right balance? 
	2€ Do you support our proposal to set the primary to secondary ratio in line with the current national average? 
	3€ Do you support our proposal to maximise pupil-led funding? 

	Page 3 - pupil-led factors
	4€ Within the total pupil-led funding, do you support our proposal to increase the proportion allocated to the additional needs factors? 
	5€ Do you agree with the proposed weightings for each of the additional needs factors? 
	6€ Do you have any suggestions about potential indicators and data sources we could use to allocate mobility funding in 2019-20 and beyond?  

	Page 4 - school-led factors
	7€ Do you agree with the proposed lump sum amount of £110,000 for all schools?  
	8€ Do you agree with the proposed amounts for sparsity funding of up to £25,000 for primary and up to £65,000 for secondary, middle and all-through schools? 
	9€ Do you agree that lagged pupil growth data would provide an effective basis for the growth factor in the longer term? 

	Page 5 - funding floor
	10€ Do you agree with the principle of a funding floor? 
	11€ Do you support our proposal to set the funding floor at minus 3%?  
	12€ Do you agree that for new or growing schools (i.e. schools that are still filling up and do not have pupils in all year groups yet) the funding floor should be applied to the per-pupil funding they would have received if they were at full capacity? 

	Page 6 - transition
	13€ Do you support our proposal to continue the minimum funding guarantee at minus 1.5%?  

	Page 7 - further considerations
	14€ Are there further considerations we should be taking into account about the proposed schools national funding formula? 

	Page 8 - central school services block
	Page 9 - central school services block
	15€ Do you agree that we should allocate 10% of funding through a deprivation factor in the central school services block? 
	16€ Do you support our proposal to limit reductions on local authorities' central school services block funding to 2.5% per pupil in 2018-19 and in 2019-20? 
	17€ Are there further considerations we should be taking into account about the proposed central school services block formula? 

	Page 10 - equalities analysis
	18€ Is there any evidence relating to the 8 protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010 that is not included in the equalities impact assessment and that we should take into account? 




	9 RESOLUTION TRACKING 2016-17
	Appendix to Document "AR"


